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` 20,045 mn      27.48% 
Total Revenue

` 3,491 mn      18.25%  
EBITDA

Diversification. 
Expansion. 
Progression.
With an industry experience of over three decades, 
Sansera Engineering has established itself as one of  
the leading manufacturers of high-precision components 
in the Automotive and Non-Automotive space. 

Over the years, Sansera has differentiated itself through its 
DESIGN AND ENGINNERING CAPABILITIES, OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE 
and product quality.
The rich experience gained over the years is a result of Sansera’s resilient endeavours 
and agility. The Company’s focus on ‘Diversification’, ‘Expansion’ and ‘Progression’ 
will further lead towards consolidation and enhancement of global market share within 
its existing portfolio as well as deepen capabilities further in automotive (technology 
agnostic and xEV components etc.) and non-automotive sector.

*EBITDA: Earnings Before Interest Tax and 
Depreciations & Amortisation. **PAT: Profit After Tax

xEVs: All types of electrified vehicles including battery 
electric vehicles, plug in-hybrid electric vehicles, hybrid 

electric vehicles, and fuel-cell electric vehicles

` 1,319  mn      20.05%
PAT
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Sansera Engineering Limited is an  
engineering-led integrated manufacturer  
of complex and critical precision forged  
and machined components catering  
to OEMs globally. 

Sansera Engineering Limited:  
A quick read

Established in the year 1981, Sansera Engineering Limited (‘Sansera’ or ‘the 
Company’) manufactures and supplies a wide range of components and 
assemblies critical for engine, transmission, suspension, braking, chassis and 
other systems for the two-wheeler, passenger vehicle and commercial vehicle 
verticals. In addition, within the Non-Automotive sector, Sansera manufactures 
and supplies a range of precision components for the aerospace, off-road, 
agriculture and other segments.

Sansera is a technology-driven company with a focus on design, engineering, 
machine building and automation capabilities. 

The Company has 17 integrated manufacturing facilities for production, 
coupled with concurrent engineering capabilities, supported by modular and 
fungible production lines. Sansera recently commissioned a dedicated facility 
for xEV parts during Q4 FY 2021-22. Besides, a new facility for aerospace and 
defence will be commissioned during 2022-23.

17
Integrated Manufacturing Facilities

Largest
Supplier of Connecting Rods and 
Rocker Arms for the Light-vehicle 
Segment in India

245
Dedicated Team Members across 
Design, Engineering, Machine 
Building and Automation

Largest
Supplier of Connecting Rods, Rocker 
Arms and Gear Shifter Forks for the 
Two-wheeler Segment in India 

25+ 
Countries Export Presence

Top 10 

Supplier of Connecting Rods 
across the Globe

Source: Ricardo Report and CRISIL report commissioned by the Company in 2021
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Revenue by  
End-user Industry

89% 
Automotive

11% 
non-automotive

Number of  
Customers

56 
Automotive CUSTOMERS

31 
non-automotive 

CUSTOMERS
Revenue by  
Geography

63% 
india

37% 
international



SANSERA ENGINEERING LIMITED

Corporate  
Overview

Statutory  
Reports

Financial  
Statements

4

Mr S Sekhar Vasan 
incorporated Sansera 
Engineering Limited

Received first 
purchase order 
from Maruti 
Udyog Limited

Mr F R Singhvi,  
Mr Unni Rajgopal & 
Mr D Devaraj joined 
the Company as 
Promoters

Started supplying 
two-wheeler parts

Sansera’s growth journey over the years

1981 1986 1991 1996

Received 
investment 
from Monsoon 
India Inflection 
Equity Fund

2006

Commenced 
operations at 
new plants 
in Haryana, 
Maharashtra and 
Uttarakhand

2004-08

Commenced 
the supply 
of machined 
connecting 
rods to  
Toyota 
Kirloskar

2013

DIVERSIFICATION HAS BEEN ONE OF 
THE KEY STRENGTHS THAT ALLOWED 
SANSERA TO ADAPT TO THE EVOLVING 
MARKET NEEDS OVER THE LAST FOUR 
DECADES.
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2013 2021

Investment by 
Client Ebene 
and CVCIGP II 
Employee Ebene

2015

Set up a 
dedicated facility 
and commenced 
Aerospace 
Operations

2017

-	 Acquired 
Mape Sweden, 
European 
manufacturer 
of engine 
components for 
HCV

-	 Started the use 
of green energy

2019

-  	Commissioned 
largest plant in 
Bidadi, Bengaluru 
which also houses 
manufacturing lines 
for aluminium-
forged products 

-  	Platinum certified 
by Indian Green 
Building Council

-  	Commenced supply 
of suspension 
products

2020

Commenced 
development of:

-	 Suspension and drive 
train components for 
a domestic e-2W OEM 

-	 multiple drive train 
components for 
Hybrid PVs and 
steering components 
for PVs

- 	 Braking assembly & 
chassis components 
for HCVs

-	 Commenced 
development 
of components 
for PV braking 
assembly and 
Battery Electric 
Vehicle (BEV)



Dear Shareholders,
It is my privilege to present to you our maiden Annual 
Report post IPO in September 2021.  Our IPO received an 
overwhelming response which is a validation of our robust 
business model and future growth prospects.  I place on 
record my heartfelt thanks to all the investors for showing 
trust and confidence in the Company and its management.

Reflecting on our performance
Our ability to embrace change and promote business 
diversification has resulted in a successful year for the 
Company.  Our total revenues stand at ` 20,045 mn, a 
growth of 27%. We reported an EBIDTA of ` 3,491 mn and 
PAT of ` 1,319 mn showing a growth of 18% and 20% 
respectively.  The EBIDTA and PAT margins were 17.4% 
and 6.6% respectively.

I am delighted to inform you that the Board has approved a 
dividend of 100% on the face value of ` 2 per share for the 
year 2021-22.

Our twin strategies of globalisation and diversification 
have paid off and a healthy order pipeline has been built 
up with global orders constituting 61% of the pipeline. 

Many of these are for our existing products with existing 
customers.

We have built up a strong and diverse product pipeline 
for future growth with 245 purchase orders/LoI from 66 
customers in the auto and 33 customers in the non-auto 
segment.  We now have orders from nine xEV customers 
- 5 e2W manufacturers (both incumbent and new age 
OEMs) and 2 customers each in PV and CV segment.

I would particularly mention what we consider as a 
strategic breakthrough, are the Aluminium forged and 
machined parts that we have developed for BMW 
Motorrad.

Reflecting on our recognitions
I am happy to state that customers have consistently 
recognised us for our creative technology and environment 
sustainable initiatives.

Of particular mention are 

	 The General Motors Annual Supplier Award given at 
Phoenix, Arizona.

CMD’s Message

The year gone by has been challenging, 
to say the least with successive covid 
pandemics to industry related changes 
such as increase in raw material costs, 
semi-conductor shortages and supply 
chain disruptions. However, I am glad to 
state that in such a hostile environment 
your company successfully sailed through 
and crossed ` 20 billion in annual revenues 
for the first time ever.
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	 Award from Honda Motorcycle & Scooters India for 
environmental initiatives.

	 Award from Knorr-Bremse (world leaders in braking 
systems) for Technology Support after being satisfied 
with our line set up at Pune for them.

	 Sansera was nominated amongst  top 3 companies 
globally for sustainability award from Daimler for the 
year 2021.

Reflecting on diversification
As mentioned earlier, we are constantly looking for 
diversification opportunities in order to de-risk ourselves 
and offer a wide spectrum of products to our customers.  
Our foray in several non-automotive sectors such as 
aerospace, off-road and agriculture has further allowed 
us to leverage our existing capabilities and widen our 
addressable markets.  For instance, we are manufacturing 
and supplying several high value components for the 
aerospace segment, which will help us gain a competitive 
edge and also make us ready for exploring other sectors 
such as defence, power transmission and railways.

Reflecting on Expansion
Aligned to our diversification strategy, Sansera continued 
to progress well on its capex plan.  During the year, we 
completed the setting up our dedicated facility for xEV 
components within our existing plant at Bangalore.  We 
have already procured business from traditional OEM’s and 
new age start-ups in the xEV space and production has 
commenced.

Considering an increasing demand from the EV space we 
are confident of optimum utilisation of this capacity over 
the next two years.

We are also setting up a dedicated greenfield facility 
dedicated to Aerospace and Defence.  The same will go on 
stream during 2022-23.  With the ramp up in production 
schedules by aerospace expect considerable traction in 
these segments.

Reflecting on our Intellectual knowhow
Our success over the years is an outcome of our 
consistent investments in the value-added and 
technology-driven components. Our strong engineering 
and innovation capabilities has allowed us to respond to 
the evolving dynamics of the industry and retain customer 
confidence and establishing us as a preferred supplier 
for several major global OEMs. We have been witnessing 

strong momentum in demand for new components and 
today as I write, we have about 255 components under 
various stages of development, including auto and non-
auto excluding aerospace. We are also working at another 
300 components at various stages of RFQ.

Reflecting on Softer Values
The Sansera Board recognises the organisation’s 
responsibilities to the community and the environment 
and considers them as an important component of 
best practice in business management. We strive to 
be recognised as an ‘equal opportunity’ employer, 
committed to promoting diversity and encouraging 
employee engagement across our operations. Besides, 
our operational practices, further allows us to optimise 
processes and reducing impact on the environment as a 
business.

Looking into the future
Going forward, we shall continue to consolidate on our 
strengths and focus on achieving higher operational 
excellence, product quality and ensuring the continuity 
of supply to our customers. While we will continue to 
enhance our global share in the existing portfolio, we 
will also increase our penetration in the non-auto and 
technology agnostic and xEV components. 

I would like to place on record my thanks to the Leadership 
team and our employees, for their outstanding efforts 
during the year. We have some of the best people in the 
industry working at Sansera and their efforts will continue 
to place the Company in a strong position to capture the 
opportunities ahead. I would also like to thank my fellow 
Board Members for their support and guidance during 
the year. We have had a solid year with new family of 
shareholders joining the journey. The outlook is positive, 
as the overall economic conditions are improving, and the 
auto industry is also witnessing recovery. Our wide range 
of product offerings and participation in the growing xEV 
segment further provides better opportunity of growth. 
Diversification into technology-agnostic components 
and non-auto sectors makes our business model more 
agile and resilient. I look forward to the years ahead with 
confidence.

Best Wishes,

S. Sekhar Vasan
Chairman and Managing Director
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Driving Technological Diversity 

Delivering Innovative  
Outcomes

Sansera’s consistent endeavour towards process and 
efficiency improvements, new product development and 
higher responsiveness to customer needs is an outcome of 
its investments in design, engineering, machine building, 
automation & technical support functions while enabling 
fungibility of its equipments across diverse applications.

` 122 mn

Engineering spend

Process

Product Design
3D Modelling

CAE and 
Testing

Process Design
AutoCAD – 2D

Machine  
Design

Fixture Design
AutoCAD - 2D

Special Cutting
Tool Design

Advanced
Engineering

Concurrent Engineering and Design Capabilities

Outcomes

	 Optimised cycle time

	 New product development

Product families supplied
75

+

69

58

2018-19

51

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22
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In-house Machine  
Building Capabilities

Automation  
Capabilities 

Highlights Outcomes

	 Increased productivity

	 Increased cost control

	 Consistent product quality

State-of-the-art Machines State-of-the-art Automation 

950+ CNC machines built in-house

49 machines manufactured in 2021-22

55 dedicated personnel in  
machine building division

Automated cells

Double disc grinding 
machines

4 station special 
propose machines

Vertical honing 
machines

Internal grinding machines

33
Dedicated personnel in the
automation division	

160
Robots installed
across all facilities

Automated fracture and  
bolt assembly cells

Robotic final  
inspection cells
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Building a Diversified Product Portfolio 

Catering to a Large AND GLOBAL 
Customer Base
Sansera manufactures a wide range of complex and critical precision engineered components 
for the Automotive sector. Most of the products are sold directly to OEMs in finished (forged 
and machined) condition leading to significant value-addition. Besides, the Company also 
delivers its products to Non-Auto segments like aerospace, off-road, agricultural and others.

Auto Segment

Sales Mix 2021-22

Motorcycle

37% 
Scooters

10% 
Passenger Vehicles

28% 
Commercial Vehicles

13% 

2

3

4

1

Rocker Arm   |   Connecting Rod   |   Crankshaft   |   Gear Shifter 
Fork   |   Stem Comp (Suspension)   |   Aluminium Forged 
Comp. (Chassis)

Two-wheelers Key Customers

Indian Global

9 out of Top 10  
two-wheeler OEMs

European, US and
Japanese premium  
two-wheeler OEMs
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Passenger Vehicles

1

3

4

2

2

1

3 4

Connecting Rod  |   Rocker Arm (Diamond like  

Carbon Coating)  |  Gear Shifter Fork  |  Attachment 

Lower Ball Joint  |  End RR  |  Towing Hook

Key Customers

Indian Global

Leading Indian PV OEM Leading North American and 
European PV OEMs

Commercial Vehicles

Fractured Connecting Rod  |  Gear Shifter Fork  |  Integral 
Crankshaft (Braking System)  |  Cabin Tilt System Comp. 
(Chassis)

Key Customers

Indian Global

Leading Indian and 
European OEMs

Global supplier of actuation 
and motion control systems

Leading European, Japanese 
and US OEMs

Global suppliers of braking 
systems
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Aerospace
Speciality Seating   |   Aerostructure, Equipment Housings 
Cargo Systems   |   Actuation parts   |   Lighting parts  | 
Engine Casing   |   Landing Gear Components

Non-Auto Segment

Sales Mix

Aerospace

3% 
Off-road

3% 
Agriculture

3% 
Others

2% 

Key Customers

Indian Global

Leading Indian tier 
1 supplier

Global tier 1 suppliers
Global European aircraft OEM
Global North American aircraft OEM

Off-road
Connecting Rod  |  Split  |  Gear Shifter Fork  |  Crankshaft  |  
Rocker Arms 

Key Customers

Global Recreational Vehicle OEM
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Agriculture
Fractured CR  |  Cam Shaft  |  Pump Barrel

OTHERS
Connecting Rod  |  Integral Crankshaft

(Stationary Engine)  |  Crankshaft  |  Pump Barrel 

Key Customers

Indian arm of a global supplier of fuel injection 
systems
Indian arm of a global engine based
fuel and air management systems 
manufacturer

Key Customers

Global OEM of earth moving equipment

Indian arm of a global manufacturing and supply chain 
management co.

Subsidiary of a leading global power tools manufacturer

Global marine engine manufacturer



SANSERA ENGINEERING LIMITED

Corporate  
Overview

Statutory  
Reports

Financial  
Statements

14

Building a Diversified Customer-Base 

Enhancing Presence
The Company 
is consistently 
diversifying its 
customer base 
to enhance 
its footprint 
beyond India. 

Within India, the customers, include nine of the top 
10 two-wheeler OEMs and the leading passenger 
vehicle OEM based on production volume for 2020-
21. The global customers include six out of top 10 
global light vehicle OEMs and three of the top 10 
global MHCV OEMs. The Company also has 30+ 
years of relationship with the leading PV OEM in 
India. Sansera has supplied to 85 customers during 
2021-22, as compared to 71 during 2020-21 and is 
continuously pursuing new customer relationships. 

Revenue by top 5 Customers

17%

12%

8%7%

46%

10%

 Customer 1        Customer 2        Customer 3

 Customer 4        Customer 5        Others  

Customer Relationship

17%

12%

8%7%

46%

10%

  4+ Years         10+ Years         20+ Years

40%

40%

20%

No of customers

85

716864

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22
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Region-wise Revenue Generation

63%
24%

9%
4%

  India        Europe        USA       
  Other Foreign Countries

SANSERA has strategically located its plants in proximity  
to the client production facilities.  

This map is a generalised illustration only for the ease of the reader to understand the locations, and it is not intended to be used for reference purposes. 
The representation of political boundaries and the names of geographical features/states do not necessarily reflect the actual position. The Company 
or any of its directors, officers or employees, cannot be held responsible for any misuse or misinterpretation of any information or design thereof. The 
Company does not warrant or represent any kind in connection to its accuracy or completeness.

India
16 operational plants

1 under-construction 

Global
1 plant

Manesar
(Gurgaon) (1)

Mehsana (1)

Chakan 
(Pune) (1)

Bengaluru
and Bidadi (9)

Tumkur (3)

Pantnagar (1)

Sweden (1)
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Sansera’s 5-year Vision Road Map 

ICE : Internal Combustion Engine
% reflect percentage of total sales

Revenue Growth

36%26%

13%

7% 1%

83%

11%
6%

Long-term 
5 years

FY2021-22
FY2021-22

  Auto-ICE   Non-Auto     
  Auto-Tech Agnostic & xEV

  2W-Motorcycles     PV      HCV    
  2W-Scooters     3W

  Auto-ICE         Non-Auto        
  Auto-Tech Agnostic & xEV

Auto-ICE

60%
25%

15%

THE INDUSTRY OPPORTUNITY IS 
EVOLVING. SANSERA’S VISION AND 
EXPANSION PLANS ARE ALIGNED 
TO MEET THE NEEDS OF THE 
CUSTOMERS BY PARTICIPATING IN 
THE GROWING xEV OPPORTUNITY 
AND DIVERSIFYING INTO 
TECHNOLOGY AGNOSTIC 
COMPONENTS AND NON-AUTO 
SECTORS.
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Strong and diverse business pipeline
245 LOIs/Purchase Orders from 66 customers in the Auto and 33 customers in the Non-Auto sector

  Auto-ICE    

  Auto-Tech Agnostic & xEV       

  Non-Auto

  Auto-ICE     

  Auto-Tech Agnostic & xEV      

  Non-Auto

Automotive customers (#)

 Indian    

  International

245 LOIs/Purchase Orders rising peak annual revenues

35%40%

24%

Non-automotive customers (#)

 Indian    

  International

9 xEV Customers

Auto-ICE

5 (2w)

47% (PV & CV)

2 (PV)

15% (2W)

2 (CV)

Strong pipeline

16%

22%

62%

Apr-22

` 14.9 bn

Domestic 39%

Global 61%

66 33
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Sansera’s Progression Strategies

Diversify into tech-agnostic products and cater to the xEV opportunity.
Indian markets are witnessing a robust demand of Electric Vehicles (EV). According to registrations on the Vahan portal, total 
EV sales increased 211% in 2021-22. The Company is developing multiple technology-driven systems and components for 
catering the growing opportunities in electrification of vehicles. It has also set up a dedicated facility for hybrid and electric 
components within its existing plant located in Bengaluru. Production lines for e-2W and hybrid-PVs have begun mass 
production in the last quarter of 2021-22.

RECENT PRODUCTS/PRODUCTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

#STRATEGY 1

2W/e-2W

Drive Train 
Components

Suspension 
Components

-	 LoI/PO from 5 e2W OEMs

-	 Commenced supplies  
during 2021-22

PV/Hybrid/B-EV CV

Steering 
Parts

Chassis 
Components 

(Cabin Tilt System) 

Drive Train
Components

Braking 
System 

Components

-	 Supply of steering components 
started in 2021-22

-	 Supply of drivetrain components 
for Hybrid EVs started in  
2021-22

-	 Supply of braking assembly 
components to start in 2022-23

-	 Developing proto samples for a 
leading global BEV OEM

-	 Supply of cabin tilt system 
components started in 2020-21

-	 Supply of braking system 
components to start from  
2022-23

Braking System Components
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Leverage existing capabilities to diversify further into non-automotive 
businesses and expand addressable market

#STRATEGY 2

Sansera’s Foray into  
non-automotive business 

Engine Casing Suspension  
Components

-	 Supplied machined engine casings to 
Aerospace segment in from 2021-22

-	 Supply of suspension components for off-
road started in 2021-22

-	 Supply of common rail systems for 
agriculture to start in 2022-23

Common Rails

Sansera’s Initiatives Towards Addressing the 
New Business Opportunities 

Key Initiatives 

Aerospace/Defence -	 Dedicated facility for aerospace 
& defence under construction in 
Bengaluru

-	 Secured orders from Defence 
sector for applications in radar 
system and space telescope

Bicycles -	 Secured order for supply of 
premium bicycle parts from North 
American customer

-	 High potential in this growing 
market for forged (Aluminium, 
Steel) and machined parts

Other Sectors -	 Developed multiple components, 
including CR for industrial engines 
& construction equipment

-	 Developed precision components 
for power transmission & railways 
segment
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Retain and strengthen technological leadership through continued 
focus on engineering capabilities
Sansera places strong emphasis on continuous enhancement of its design and engineering capabilities, to provide high 
value-added and technology-driven components. It would allow the Company to capture shifts in customer preferences and 
evolving regulatory requirements, such as stricter emissions control standards. Furthermore, this would boost the chances of 
being a favoured supplier, providing opportunity to strengthen its industry positioning.

Technology Enhancements to Upgrade Engineering Capabilities 

#STRATEGY 3

Technological innovation

Commissioned 
Aluminium  

Forging Lines

Five-axis 
Machining 

Capabilities

Fatigue Testing Machine

Opportunity 

-	 Capitalise on growing demand for 
light-weight and environment-friendly 
components

-	 Machining of large structural 
components for aerospace

-	 Enhance product reliability, durability 
and performance

Leveraging engineering know-how  
in product design

Multiple Drive Train 
Components

Aluminium Forged

GSF with Moly Coating 

Finger Followers with 
Diamond like Coating

Hybrid and BEV 
Transmission Systems

Intricately shaped 
components for ICE and 

Electric 2W

For Multiple Global  
OEM and PVs
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Numbers that Testify  
the Progress 

Key Financial Parameters
Despite the industry facing headwinds in the form of higher material cost, shortage of semi-
conductors and supply chain disruptions, the Company showcased resilience leading to 
stronger financial outcome. 



SANSERA ENGINEERING LIMITED

Annual Report 2021-22

23

2019-202018-19

0.740.82 0.55 0.57

2020-21 2021-22

Net-Debt-to-Equity 
(x times)

2019-202018-19

11.418.5 14.4 15.3

2020-21 2021-22

*ROCE
(%)

2019-202018-19

11.015.3 13.4 13.7

2020-21 2021-22

*ROE 
(%)

2019-202018-19

14,73116,408 15,724 20,045

2020-21 2021-22

Revenue from Operations		                                                                       
(` in mn)

2019-202018-19

2,4073,055 2,952 3,491

2020-21 2021-22

EBITDA (` in mn)  
and EBITA Margins	 (%)	                                                                      

2019-202018-19

799981 1,099 1,319

2020-21 2021-22

PAT and (` in mn)  
PAT Margins (%)	                                                                      

*ROCE: Return on capital employed
*ROE: Return in equity

18
.6

%

6.
0%

16
.3

%

5.
4%

18
.8

%

7.
0%

17
.4

%

6.
6%
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Initiatives undertaken in the field of healthcare

	 Distributed food packets during COVID-19 

	 Donated beds and ECG Machine to Corona Primary 
Health Care Centre 

	 Provided Oxygen Concentrators & Bipap Donation

	 Donated Oxygen Concentrators

	 Encouraged blood donation by Sansera employees

	 Supported Government Primary Healthcare centre

Environmental Initiatives

	 Rejuvenation of Bommasandra Lake

	 Waste Management

Healthcare 
Sansera Engineering emphasizes on 
providing healthcare programmme 
and conducts various initiatives for the 
upliftment health care facilities. 

Environment

Lake & Solid waste management

Being a socially responsible Company, Sansera pays special attention to the environment and 
related aspects, and endeavours to enhance the same.
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Leadership Team that  
Drives Progression
Governance

Sansera has a strong, purpose-driven and experienced Board of Directors, who are 
invested in and committed to intellectual leadership. The Board leads the business 
with integrity as it consistently pursues sustainable value-creation while preserving 
unique entrepreneurial spirit.

Board of Directors 

Mr F R Singhvi 
Joint Managing Director

Qualification: Previously 
with M/s Singhvi, Dev 
& Unni (CA) Chartered 
Accountant

Experience: He has 39 
years of professional 
experience. He has been 
associated with Sansera 
for over 15 years now and 
guides the automobile and 
aerospace business.

Mr S Sekhar Vasan  
Chairman and  
Managing Director

Qualification: PGDM 
from IIM Bengaluru and 
Bachelor of Technology 
from IIT Madras

Experience: He has 39 
years of experience in the 
field of manufacturing of 
precision products. He has 
been with Sansera since 
the incorporation.

Mr Raunak Gupta  
Non-Executive,  
Nominee Director 

Qualification: PGDCM from 
IIM Calcutta and Bachelor 
of Technology from IIT 
Delhi

Experience: Currently, the 
Managing Director at The 
Rohatyn Group (TRG). He 
was previously associated 
with Citi Venture Capital 
International, Motilal 
Oswal, Rabo India and 
Infosys.

Mr Muthuswami Lakshminarayan  
Non-Executive,  
Independent Director

Qualification: Master’s 
Degree in Technology from 
IIT Bombay

Experience: He has 
previously been appointed 
as the MD at Bosch and 
Harman International.
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Mr Sylvain Bilaine  
Non-Executive,  
Independent Director

Qualification: Engineering 
Degree from National 
Higher College, Polytechnic 
National Institute of 
Grenoble

Experience: He was 
previously associated with 
Renault & founded SY.B 
Consulting. An Executive 
development from 
International Institute for 
Management Development 
in Switzerland.

Mrs. Revathy Ashok  
Non-Executive,  
Independent Director

Qualification: PGDM from 
IIM Bengaluru

Experience: Has previously 
been associated with 
Tishman Speyer & CFO of 
Syntel. She was awarded 
the ‘Faculty medal for Best 
Performance’ – Habitat & 
Environmental Studies.

Mr Samir Purushottam Inamdar 
Additional Director  
(Non-executive Independent Director)

Qualification: PGDM from IIM 
Calcutta and Bachelor’s in 
Mechanical Engineering from 
Mumbai University

Experience: Has 40+ years of 
experience. He has previously 
been appointed as the President 
& CEO for major businesses of 
General Electric in South Asia, 
and as the CEO & Managing 
Director of Tyco Electronics in 
South Asia, for 11+ years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr S Sekhar Vasan 
Chairman & Managing Director

Mr F R Singhvi 
Joint Managing Director

Mrs Revathy Ashok 
Independent Director

Mr Lakshminarayan M 
Independent Director

Mr Raunak Gupta 
Non-Executive, Nominee Director

Mr Sylvain Bilaine 
Independent Director
(retiring on July 28, 2022) 

Mr Samir Purushottam Inamdar 
Additional Independent Director  
(appointed on May 23, 2022)

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr B R Preetham

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr Vikas Goel

COMPANY SECRETARY &  
COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr Rajesh Kumar Modi

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

M/s. BMP & Co., LLP, Company Secretaries

COST AUDITORS

M/s. Rao, Murthy & Associates, Cost Accountants

INTERNAL AUDITORS

M/s. Aneja & Associates, Chartered Accountants

REGISTERED OFFICE

Plant 7, Plot No. 143/A
Jigani Link Road, Bommasandra Industrial Area
Bengaluru 560105, Karnataka, India.
CIN: L34103KA1981PLC004542
Phone No.: +91 80 27839081/82/83
Email: rajesh.modi@sansera.in
Website: www.sansera.in

REGISTRAR AND SHARE  
TRANSFER AGENT (RTA)

Link Intime India Private Limited
C 101, 247 Park,  L B S Marg
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400083

BANKERS & LENDERS
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Sensitivity analysis

Particulars Percentage 
movement

Effect on profit before tax Effect on equity
Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

31 March, 2022
USD 4%  31.50  (31.50)  23.57  23.57 
EUR 2%  17.10  (17.10)  12.80  (12.80)
CHF 6%  0.05  (0.05)  -    -   

31 March, 2021
USD 3%  16.90  (16.90)  12.65  (12.65)
EURO 3%  20.15  (20.15)  15.08  (15.08)
JPY 5%  (1.30)  1.30  (0.97)  0.97 
GBP 7%  (1.15)  1.15  (0.86)  0.86 

* GBP 3,226 not presented above due to rounding off to nearest mn.

45 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to 
sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital employed.

The Company manages capital risk by maintaining sound/optimal capital structure through monitoring of financial ratios, such 
as debt-to-equity ratio and net borrowings-to-equity ratio and implements capital structure improvement plan when necessary.

The Company uses debt ratio as a capital management index and calculates the ratio as net debt divided by total equity. Net 
debt and total equity are based on the amounts stated in the standalone Ind AS financial statements.	

(Amount in ` mn)

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

Gross debt*  6,035.11  5,045.24 

Less : Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances  385.79  398.03 

Net debt (A)  5,649.32  4,647.21 

Total equity** (B)  10,336.67  8,874.38 

Debt ratio (A / B) 0.55 0.52

* Gross debt includes non-current borrowings, current borrowings, current maturities of long term debts, lease liabilities and 
accrued interest .	

** Total equity incudes Equity share capital, instruments entirely equity in nature and other equity.
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47 DUES TO MICRO, SMALL AND ENTERPRISES

(Amount in ` mn)

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at 
the end of each accounting year: *

– Principal  106.07  102.81 

– Interest  3.80  1.31 

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), along with the amount of the 
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

 -    -   

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which 
has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 
interest specified under the MSMED Act.

 2.49  0.51 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.  3.80  1.31 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding year, 
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise 
for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the 
MSMED Act.

 -    -   

* Includes amount payable to capital creditors amounting to ` 28.03 mn (31 March, 2021: ` 25.00 mn)	

48 EXPENDITURE ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Company meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of 
its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. A 
CSR committee has been formed by the Company as per the Act. The funds are allocated to the  activities which are specified 
in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

(Amount in ` mn)

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March, 2022

For the year ended  
31 March, 2021

(i) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year  27.12  28.74 
(ii) Amount of expenditure incurred  33.98  20.32 
	 a) Construction/acquisition of any asset  11.67  0.31 
	 b) On purpose other than (a) above  22.31  20.01 
(iii) Shortfall at the end of the year *  -    8.42 
(iv) Total of previous years' shortfall  -    8.42 

(v) Reason for shortfall : For the year ended 31 March, 2022 the Company has spent required amount under CSR.

(vi) Nature of CSR activities: Promotion of education of underprivileged children, construction of sanitation facilities in rural 
schools, project related to environmental sustainability etc.

(vii) Details of related party transactions: Trust in which the Director is a trustee. Refer note 40				  
* The unspent amount was transferred to unspent CSR account within 30 days from the end of the financial year, in accordance 
with the Companies Act, 2013 read with the CSR Amendment Rules.
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49 CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES 
Reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the standalone balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing 
activities:

Particulars Opening balance Cash flows Non-cash 
movements

Closing balance

1 April, 2021 Proceeds Repayments Fair value 
changes

31 March, 2022

Non-current borrowings                 2,795.57                      1,576.01                              (1,056.66)                              (6.02)                       3,308.90 
Current borrowings *                 2,048.47                         329.37                                            -                               7.50                       2,385.34 
Total liabilities from 
financing activities

                4,844.04 1,905.38 (1,056.66) 1.48 5,694.24 

Particulars Opening balance Cash flows Non-cash 
movements

Closing balance

1 April, 2020 Proceeds Repayments Fair value 
changes

31 March, 2021

Non-current borrowings  2,702.74  1,048.42  (952.17)  (3.42)  2,795.57 
Current borrowings *  3,265.26  -  (1,207.25)  (9.54)  2,048.47 
Total liabilities from 
financing activities

 5,968.00  1,048.42  (2,159.42)  (12.96)  4,844.04 

 * Current borrowings are disclosed net of repayments/ proceeds.

50 SEGMENT REPORTING
Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment 
of segment performance focuses on the types of goods or services delivered or provided. The Company is in the business 
of manufacture and sale of automobile/aerospace components, which in the context of Ind AS 108 ‘Segment Information’ 
represents single reportable business segment. The entire operations are governed by the same set of risk and returns. 
Accordingly, these operations represent a single segment. The revenues, total expenses and net profit as per the standalone 
statement of profit and loss represents the revenue, total expenses and the net profit of the sole reportable segment.

(i) Geographical information

Geographic segmentation is based on business sourced from specific geographic regions. Other foreign countries comprises 
all other places except India, Europe and USA:

(a) Revenue from operations

(Amount in ` mn)

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March, 2022

For the year ended  
31 March, 2021

India  12,121.82  9,582.63 
Europe  2,832.17  2,436.84 
USA  1,774.14  1,087.55 
Other foreign countries  721.91  406.38 
Total revenue from operations as per the standalone statement of profit and loss  17,450.04  13,513.40 
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(b) Non-current assets

(Amount in ` mn)

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

India  11,851.13  10,276.84 
Total  11,851.13  10,276.84 
Reconciling items:
Non-current financial assets  1,130.22  1,139.56 
Income tax assets  10.19  9.91 
Total non-current assets  12,991.54  11,426.31 

51 DETAILS OF NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS PURCHASED AND SOLD UNDER SECTION 186(4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013.

Investments in equity and preference instruments

Subsidiaries  Face value per 
share 

As at 
1 April, 2021

Purchased 
during the year

Redemption 
during the year

As at 
31 March, 2022

Fitwel Tools and Forgings Private 
Limited (Equity Shares)

` 10 201.65                                          
-   

                                  
-   

201.65 

 (248,872)*  (248,872)* 

Sansera Engineering Pvt. Ltd., 
Mauritius (Equity Shares)

Euro 10 6.88 -   -   6.88 

 (10,000)*  (10,000)* 

Sansera Engineering Pvt. Ltd., 
Mauritius (Preference Shares)

Euro 10 749.27 -   82.69 666.58 

 (1,040,000)*  (110,000)*  (930,000)* 

Subsidiaries  Face value per 
share 

As at 
1 April, 2020

Purchased 
during the year

Redemption 
during the year

As at 
31 March, 2021

Fitwel Tools and Forgings Private 
Limited (Equity Shares)

`10 201.65  -    -   201.65

 (248,872)*  (248,872)* 

Sansera Engineering Pvt. Ltd., 
Mauritius (Equity Shares)

Euro 10  6.88  -    -    6.88 

 (10,000)*  (10,000)* 

Sansera Engineering Pvt. Ltd., 
Mauritius (Preference Shares)

Euro 10  911.69  -    162.42  749.27 

 (1,230,000)*  (190,000)*  (1,040,000)* 

* The figures in parenthesis represents number of shares.

52

The Company has considered various internal and external sources consisting of feedback from the customers and the market 
trends, up to the date of approval of the Standalone financial statements in determining the impact, if any, arising from the 
pandemic on various elements of its Standalone financial statements. The Company has used the principles of prudence in 
applying judgments, estimates and assumptions and based on its current estimates, the Company expects to recover the 
carrying value of its financial and non-financial assets, including tangible assets and meet its financial obligations in the normal 
course of business. The eventual outcome of the possible impact of the pandemic may be different from that estimated as on 
the date of approval of these Standalone financial statements. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to 
future economic conditions and consequential impact on its Standalone financial statements.				  
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53

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (“the Code) which would impact the contributions by the Company towards Provident 
Fund and Gratuity has received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code have been published in the Gazette of India. 
However, the date from which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Company will complete its evaluation 
and will give appropriate impact in its standalone financial statements in the period in which the Code becomes effective and 
the related rules are published.									       

54 ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION:

a) �	� There are no transactions or balances with Companies which have been removed from the Register of Companies (Struck 
off Companies), during the year ended/as at 31 March, 2022.

b) 	 The Company has not traded/invested in Cryptocurrency/Virtual currency.

c) 	� The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

	 (i)  	� directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

	 (ii) 	 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

d) 	� The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with 
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall

	 (i) 	� directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

	 (ii) 	 provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

e) 	� The Company has no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or 
any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

55

The Board of Directors have recommended final dividend of ` 2 per equity share having face value of ` 2 each for the year ended 
31 March, 2022, subject to approval of shareholders.								      

56

The Board of Directors of the Company have approved these Standalone Financial Statements of the Company in their meeting 
held on 23 May, 2022.

for Sansera Engineering Limited
CIN: L34103KA1981PLC004542

S Sekhar Vasan F R Singhvi
Managing Director Joint Managing Director
DIN : 00361245 DIN : 00233146

B R Preetham Vikas Goel
Chief Excutive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Rajesh Kumar Modi
Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 23 May, 2022

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022 (Contd.)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To 

The Members of Sansera Engineering Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements of Sansera Engineering Limited 
(”the Parent”) and its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its 
subsidiaries  together  referred  to  as “the  Group”) which 
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at  31 March, 
2022, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated 
Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, and based on 
the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate 
financial statements of the subsidiaries referred to in 
Other Matters section below, the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the 
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended (‘Ind AS’), and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated 
state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March, 2022, and their 
consolidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive 
income, their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated 
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). 
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
obtained by us and other auditors in terms of their reports 

referred to in the Other Matters section below is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. 
We have determined that there are no key audit matters to 
communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and 
Auditor’s Report Thereon

•	� The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Management Discussion 
and Analysis, Business Responsibility Report, Director’s 
Report and Corporate Governance Report but does 
not include the consolidated financial statements, 
standalone  financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of 
this auditor’s report, and any other information which 
is expected to form part of the annual report, which is 
expected to be made available to us after that date.

•	� Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

•	� In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information, compare with the financial statements of 
the subsidiaries audited by the other auditors to the 
extent it relates to these entities and, in doing so, place 
reliance on the work of the other auditors and consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the consolidated financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other 
information so far as it relates to subsidiaries, is traced 
from their financial statements audited by the other 
auditors

•	� If, based on the work we have performed on the other 
information that we obtained prior to the date of this 
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 
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the preparation of these  consolidated  financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 
position, consolidated financial performance including 
other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and 
consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance 
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of 
the companies included in the Group are responsible 
for maintenance of  adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable  and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of 
the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the 
Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated  financial statements, the 
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in 
the Group are responsible for assessing the  ability of the 
respective entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective 
Board of Directors either intends to liquidate their respective 
entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included 
in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial 
reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•	� Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.

•	� Obtain an understanding of internal financial control 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section  143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent has 
adequate internal financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by the management.

•	� Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use 
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

•	� Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the consolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•	� Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding 
the financial information of entities or business 
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible 
for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the audit of the financial statements of such entities 
included in which we are the independent auditors. For 
the entities in the consolidated financial statements, 
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which have been audited by other auditors, such other 
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision 
and performance of the audits carried out by them. We 
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
consolidated financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions 
of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results 
of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of 
the Parent regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements / financial 
information of two subsidiaries included in the consolidated 
financial statements whose financial statements / financial 
information reflect total assets of Rs. 2,391.55 million as at 
31 March, 2022, total revenues of Rs. 1,666.79 million and 
net cash outflows amounting to Rs. 105.41 million for the 
year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated 
financial statements. These financial statements have been 
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished 
to us by the Management and our opinion on the financial 
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and 
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our 
report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, 

in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based 
solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above 
and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with 
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of 
other auditors and the financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. 	� As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our 
audit we report that:

a) 	� We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of 
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b) 	� In our opinion, proper books of account as required by 
law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books.

c) 	� The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of 
Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes 
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the relevant books of account maintained for the 
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements.

d) 	� In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act.

e) 	� On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors of the Parent as on 31 March, 
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the 
Parent and the reports of the statutory auditors of the 
subsidiary company incorporated in India, none of the 
directors of the Parent is disqualified as on 31 March, 
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) 	� With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over  financial reporting 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate Report in “Annexure A” which is based 
on the auditors’ reports of the Parent and the subsidiary 
company incorporated in India. Our report expresses 
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting.

g) 	� With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of 
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section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion 
and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 
Parent to its directors during the year is in accordance 
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) 	� With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,  2014, 
as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to 
us:

	 i)	� The consolidated financial statements disclose the 
impact of pending litigations on the consolidated 
financial position of the Group;

	 ii)	� The Group did not have any material foreseeable 
losses on long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts;

	 iii)	� There has been no delay in transferring amounts, 
required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Parent.

	 iv)	� (a) 	 The respective Managements of the 
Parent and its subsidiary which is a company 
incorporated in India, whose financial statements 
have been audited under the Act, have represented 
to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, 
as disclosed in the note 52(c) to the consolidated 
financial statements, no funds have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds 
or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the Parent or its subsidiary to or in any 
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Parent or 
its subsidiary (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

		�  (b)  The respective Managements of the Parent and 
its subsidiary which is a company incorporated 
in India, whose financial statements have been 
audited under the Act, have represented to us 
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the note 52(d) to the consolidated 

financial statements, no funds have been received 
by the Parent or its subsidiary from any person(s) 
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding 
Parties”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Parent 
or its subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

		�  (c) Based on the audit procedures that have 
been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our 
notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, 
contain any material misstatement.

	 v) 	� As stated in note 53 to the consolidated financial 
statements, the Board of Directors of the Parent 
have proposed final dividend for the year which 
is subject to the approval of the members at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of 
proposed dividend is in accordance with section 
123 of the Act, as applicable.

i)	�� With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) 
of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the Companies 
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO”/ “the Order”) 
issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 
143(11) of the Act, according to the information and 
explanations given to us, and based on the CARO 
reports issued by us for the Parent and its subsidiary 
included in the consolidated financial statements to 
which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report 
that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in 
these CARO reports.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S)

Monisha Parikh
(Partner)

Place: Bengaluru 	 (Membership No. 47840)
Date: 23 May, 2022 	 (UDIN: 22047840AJKHCQ6189)
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the Company as of and for the year ended 
31 March, 2022, we have audited the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of Sansera Engineering 
Limited  (hereinafter referred to as “the Parent”) and its 
subsidiary company incorporated in India as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Parent is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the respective Companies considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI)”. These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of the Parent and 
its subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated 
in India based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under 
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and 
the audit evidence, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting of the Parent and Subsidiary 
company, which is a company incorporated in India

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors 
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the Parent and its subsidiary 
company, which is a company incorporated in India, have, in 
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as 
at 31 March, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial 
control over financial reporting established by the respective 
companies considering the essential components of internal 

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT   (Contd.)

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S)

Monisha Parikh
(Partner)

Place: Bengaluru 	 (Membership No. 47840)
Date: 23 May, 2022 	 (UDIN: 22047840AJKHCQ6189)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH, 2022

(Amount in ` mn) 
Particulars Note As at

31 March, 2022
As at 

31 March, 2021
ASSETS 
Non-current assets 

Property, Plant and Equipment 3.a  11,040.79  10,000.05 
Capital work-in-progress 3.b  1,224.25  604.24 
Goodwill 3.e  352.25  358.37 
Other Intangible assets 3.c  23.96  19.17 
Right-of-use assets 3.d  977.27  892.35 
Financial assets
(i) Investments  4  104.93  36.93 
(ii) Loans  5  15.72  9.15 
(iii) Other financial assets 6  287.95  289.48 
Current tax assets (Net) 7.a  28.30  27.14 
Other non-current assets 8  209.33  224.70 

Total non-current assets  14,264.75  12,461.58 
Current assets 

Inventories  9  2,776.03  2,485.69 
Financial assets  
(i) Investments  10  5.97  5.58 
(ii) Trade receivables  11  4,085.64  3,129.83 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents  12  383.44  365.00 
(iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 13  119.84  286.42 
(v) Loans 14  25.15  29.26 
(vi) Other financial assets 15  201.69  193.55 
Other current assets  16  347.18  331.92 

Total current assets  7,944.94  6,827.25 
Total Assets  22,209.69  19,288.83 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 

Equity share capital 17.a  104.31  93.87 
Instruments entirely equity in nature 17.b  -    105.00 
Other equity 18  10,129.51  8,583.55 
Total equity attributable to owners of the Company  10,233.82  8,782.42 
Non-controlling interests  119.34  104.99 

Total Equity  10,353.16  8,887.41 
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilites
(i) Borrowings 19  2,335.04  1,876.52 
(ia) Lease liabilities 3.d  910.63  810.28 
Provisions 20  82.23  151.83 
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 21  641.93  617.98 
Other non-current liabilities 22  509.82  467.16 

Total non-current liabilities  4,479.65  3,923.77 
Current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 23  4,116.40  3,606.04 
(ia) Lease liabilities 3.d  102.51  110.88 
(ii) Trade payables 24

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  77.54  86.39 
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises  2,575.43  2,184.07 

(iii) Others financial liabilities 25  121.83  182.95 
Other current liabilities 26  263.54  207.63 
Provisions 27  111.14  99.10 
Current tax liabilities (Net) 7.b  8.48  0.59 

Total current liabilities  7,376.87  6,477.65 
Total Equity and Liabilities  22,209.69  19,288.83 
See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone fnd AS financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells for Sansera Engineering Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN: L34103KA1981PLC004542
Firm’s Registration No.: 008072S

Monisha Parikh S Sekhar Vasan F R Singhvi
Partner Managing Director Joint Managing Director
Membership No. 47840 DIN : 00361245 DIN : 00233146

B R Preetham Vikas Goel
Chief Excutive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Rajesh Kumar Modi
Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: 23 May, 2022 Date: 23 May, 2022
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The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone fnd AS financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells for Sansera Engineering Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN: L34103KA1981PLC004542
Firm’s Registration No.: 008072S

Monisha Parikh S Sekhar Vasan F R Singhvi
Partner Managing Director Joint Managing Director
Membership No. 47840 DIN : 00361245 DIN : 00233146

B R Preetham Vikas Goel
Chief Excutive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Rajesh Kumar Modi
Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: 23 May, 2022 Date: 23 May, 2022

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
(INCLUDING OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022

(Amount in ` mn) 
Particulars Note For the year ended  

31 March, 2022 
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021 
Revenue from Operations 28  19,890.32  15,492.71 
Other income 29  154.93  230.93 
Total income  20,045.25  15,723.64 
EXPENSES 
Cost of materials consumed 30  8,871.08  6,678.31 
Changes in inventory of finished goods and work-in-progress 31  (230.08)  (43.71)
Conversion charges  650.14  526.15 
Consumption of stores and spares  1,691.54  1,335.80 
Power and fuel  913.17  670.65 
Employee benefits expense 32  2,773.58  2,137.50 
Finance costs 33  510.13  473.93 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 34  1,197.03  1,016.76 
Other expenses 35  1,884.98  1,466.80 
Total expenses   18,261.57  14,262.19 
Profit before tax  1,783.68  1,461.45 
Tax expense: 39
	 Current tax  427.85  303.87 
	 Current tax relating to prior year  7.65  -   
	 Deferred tax  29.29  58.98 
Total tax expense  464.79  362.85 
Profit for the year  1,318.89  1,098.60 
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
	 Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability  25.64  (25.94)
	 Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (6.45)  6.59 
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) not to be reclassified subsequently to 
profit or loss  19.19  (19.35)

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
	 Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations  (45.14)  52.92 
	 Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  11.36  (13.32)
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) to be reclassified subsequently to profit 
or loss  (33.78)  39.60 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of income tax  (14.59)  20.25 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  1,304.30  1,118.85 
Profit attributable to :
	 Owners of the Company  1,304.52  1,079.86 
	 Non-controlling interests  14.37  18.74 
Total profit for the year  1,318.89  1,098.60 
Other comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to:
	 Owners of the Company  (14.56)  20.78 
	 Non-controlling interests  (0.03)  (0.53)
Total other comprehensive income/(loss)  (14.59)  20.25 
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
	 Owners of the Company  1,289.96  1,100.64 
	 Non-controlling interests  14.34  18.21 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  1,304.30  1,118.85 
Earnings per equity share (face value of ` 2 each)
	 Basic (in `) 36  25.27 21.02
	 Diluted (in `) 36  24.36 20.55
See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022

(Amount in ` mn)

Particulars Note  For the year ended 
31 March, 2022

 For the year ended
31 March, 2021

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax  1,783.68  1,461.45 

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

	 Depreciation and amortisation expenses 34  1,197.03  1,016.76 

	 Income from government grants 29  (52.01)  (45.11)

	 Adjustment for rental concession and derecognition of lease  (4.12)  (2.71)

	 Interest income 29  (14.42)  (22.42)

	 Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 29  (0.39)  (2.05)

	 Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net 29  (1.88)  (4.77)

	 Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net  3.86  (49.45)

	 Employee stock compensation expense 32  79.89  -   

	 Insurance claim receivable written off 35  -    11.26 

	 Finance costs 33  510.13  473.93 

	 Share of profit from investment in Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) 29  (4.17)  -   

Operating cash flows before working capital changes  3,497.60  2,836.89 

Working capital adjustments

	 Changes in trade receivables  (934.58)  (442.92)

	 Changes in other financial assets and other assets  (52.46)  41.02 

	 Changes in inventories  (290.34)  (96.51)

	 Changes in trade payables and financial liabilities  322.30  527.14 

	 Other liabilities and provisions  17.33  25.37 

Cash generated from operations  2,559.85  2,890.99 

Income taxes paid, net  (429.20)  (330.64)

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)  2,130.65  2,560.35 

Cash flows from investing activities

	 Payments for property, plant and equipment  (2,668.28)  (1,351.21)

	 Purchase of intangible assets 3.c  (6.81)  -   

	 Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  4.79  11.52 

	 Receipt of government grant  -    92.67 

	 Investment in Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) 4  (68.00)  -   

	 Interest received 29  14.42  22.42 

	 Share of profit from investment in Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) 29  4.17  -   

Movement in fixed deposits, net 13  166.58  (170.06)

Net cash used in investing activities (B)  (2,553.13)  (1,394.66)

Cash flows from financing activities

	 Proceeds/(repayments) of non-current borrowings: 	

	     Proceeds  1,606.01  1,099.93 

	     Repayments  (1,099.93)  (979.92)

	 Proceeds/(repayments) of current borrowings, net  464.91  (992.26)

	 Interest paid  (515.43)  (459.00)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022 (Contd.)

Particulars Note  For the year ended 
31 March, 2022

 For the year ended
31 March, 2021

	 Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities  (71.62)  (60.75)

	 Proceed from issue of equity share capital  81.52  -   

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (C )  465.46  (1,392.00)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  42.98  (226.31)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12  365.00  600.08 

Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign currency cash and 
cash equivalents

 (24.54)  (8.77)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer below) 12  383.44  365.00 

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents 
comprise the following:

	 Cash on hand  0.84  0.72 

	 Balances with banks - on current accounts  382.60  364.28 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  383.44  365.00 
See accompanying notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

(Amount in ` mn)

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone fnd AS financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells for Sansera Engineering Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN: L34103KA1981PLC004542
Firm’s Registration No.: 008072S

Monisha Parikh S Sekhar Vasan F R Singhvi
Partner Managing Director Joint Managing Director
Membership No. 47840 DIN : 00361245 DIN : 00233146

B R Preetham Vikas Goel
Chief Excutive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Rajesh Kumar Modi
Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: 23 May, 2022 Date: 23 May, 2022
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A. 	 Equity share capital

(Amount in ` mn)

Equity shares No. of shares Amount

Balance as at 1 April, 2020  4,69,36,500  93.87 

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors  -    -   

Restated balance as at 1 April, 2020  4,69,36,500  93.87 

Change in Equity Share Capital  -    -   

Balance as at 31 March, 2021  4,69,36,500  93.87 

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors  -    -   

Restated balance as at 31 March, 2021  4,69,36,500  93.87 

Add: Shares issued on conversion Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares (CCPS)  44,41,350  8.88 

Add: Shares issued on exercise of employee stock options  7,77,965  1.56 

Balance as at 31 March, 2022  5,21,55,815  104.31 

B. 	 Instruments entirely equity in nature

(Amount in ` mn)

Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares No. of shares Amount

Balance as at 1 April, 2020 10,50,000  105.00 

Changes in Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share due to prior period errors  -    -   

Restated balance as at 1 April, 2020  10,50,000  105.00 

Change in Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share  -    -   

Balance as at 31 March, 2021 10,50,000  105.00 

Changes in Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share due to prior period errors  -    -   

Restated balance as at 31 March, 2021 10,50,000  105.00 

Conversion of Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) (10,50,000) (105.00)

Balance as at 31 March, 2022  -    -   

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AS AT 31 MARCH, 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022

Group Overview

Sansera Engineering Limited (erstwhile Sansera Engineering 
Private Limited) (“the Company”) along with its subsidiaries 
Fitwel Tools and Forgings Private Limited, Sansera 
Sweden AB and Sansera Engineering Pvt. Ltd., Mauritius 
(together referred to as “Group”) was incorporated on  
15 December, 1981 under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956 with its registered office in Bengaluru, Karnataka. 
The Group is involved in the business of manufacture of 
auto components such as rocker arms, connecting rods, 
gear shifters, crank shafts, and aerospace components. It is 
also involved in providing services such as forging and other 
related services.

The Company is a public limited company incorporated and 
domiciled in India and has its registered office at Bengaluru, 
Karnataka, India and has offices in Sweden. The consolidated 
financial statements were authorised for issuance by the 
Company’s Board of Directors on 23 May, 2022.

1.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION

a.	 Statement of compliance

	� These consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under 
Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and 
other relevant provisions of the Act.

	� Accounting policies have been consistently applied 
except where a newly issued accounting standard is 
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting 
standard requires a change in the accounting policy 
hitherto in use.

b.	 Principles of consolidation

	� The consolidated financial statements include the 
results of the following subsidiaries:

S. 
No.

Name of the Entity Country of 
incorporation

Effective group 
shareholding %

1 Fitwel Tools and Forgings 
Private Limited

India 70

2 Sansera Sweden AB Sweden 100
3 Sansera Engineering Pvt. 

Ltd., Mauritius
Mauritius 100

c.	 Basis of consolidation

	� Business combinations (other than common control 
business combinations)

	� In accordance with Ind AS 103, the Group accounts 
for these business combinations using the acquisition 
method when control is transferred to the Group. The 
consideration transferred for the business combination 
is generally measured at fair value as at the date the 
control is acquired (acquisition date), as are the net 

identifiable assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is 
tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain 
purchase is recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income and accumulated in equity as capital reserve 
if there exists clear evidence of the underlying reasons 
for classifying the business combination as resulting in 
a bargain purchase; otherwise the gain is recognised 
directly in equity as capital reserve. Transaction costs 
are expensed as incurred, except to the extent related to 
the issue of debt or equity securities.

	� In accordance with Appendix C to Ind AS 103 on 
Business combinations of entities under common 
control, the Group accounts for these business 
combinations using the pooling of interest method as 
per the guidance provided under Appendix C to Ind AS 
103. The consolidated financial statements in respect 
of prior periods are restated as if the combination had 
occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in 
the consolidated financial statements, irrespective of 
the actual date of the combination. All the assets and 
liabilities including have been recorded at their existing 
carrying amounts.

	 Subsidiary companies

	� Subsidiary companies are all entities over which the 
group has control. The group controls an entity when 
the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable 
returns from its involvement with the entity and has 
the ability to affect those returns through its power to 
direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries 
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is 
transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from 
the date that control ceases.

	� Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised 
gain / loss on transactions between group companies 
are eliminated. The financial statements are prepared 
by applying uniform policies in use at the Group.

	 Non- controlling interests (NCI)

	� NCI in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown 
separately in the consolidated statement of profit and 
loss, consolidated statement of changes in equity and 
balance sheet respectively. NCI are measured at their 
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable 
assets at the date of acquisition. The parent portion of 
equity in such subsidiary is determined on the basis of 
book values of assets and liabilities as per the financial 
statements of the subsidiary as on the date of the 
investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022 (Contd.)

d. 	 Functional and presentation currency

	� Items included in the financial statements of each of 
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of 
the primary economic environment in which the entity 
operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated 
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees 
INR which is also the functional currency of the 
Company, and the presentation currency considered for 
the Group. The functional currency of the subsidiaries 
operations in Mauritius is Euro and that of its operations 
in Sweden is Swedish Krona (SEK).

	� For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial 
statements assets and liabilities of Group’s foreign 
operations with functional currency different from the 
Company are translated into Company’s functional 
currency i.e. INR using exchange rates prevailing at 
the end of each reporting period. Income and expense 
items are translated at the average exchange rates for 
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly 
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at 
the dates of the transactions are used.

	 �Exchange differences arising, if any are recognised in 
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity.

	� On the disposal of foreign operation, all of the exchange 
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that 
operation attributable to the owners of the Company 
are reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

	� All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest 
millions, unless otherwise indicated.

e. 	 Basis of measurement

	� The consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared on the historical cost basis except for the 
following items:

	 •	 Derivative instruments at fair value;

	 •	� Net defined benefit (asset)/liability at fair value of 
plan assets less present value of defined benefit 
obligations;

	 •	� Current investments at fair value through 
consolidated statement of profit and loss and

	 •	 Share based payment transactions at fair value

f. 	 Use of estimates and judgements

	� The preparation of the consolidated financial statements 
in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the application of accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 

an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are 
revised and in any future periods affected.

	 Judgements

	� Information about judgements made in applying 
accounting policies that have the most significant 
effects on the amounts recognised in the consolidated 
financial statements is included in lease classification.

	 Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

	� Information about assumptions and estimation 
uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a 
material adjustment in the year ending ended 31 March, 
2022 is included in the following notes:

	 •	� Note 2(a), 2(b), 3(a) and 3(c) - Depreciation and 
amortisation method and useful lives of items 
of property, plant and equipment and intangibles 
assets;

	 •	� Note 3(a) and 3(c) – Impairment of property, plant 
and equipment;

	 •	 Note 39 – recognition of deferred tax assets;

	 •	� Note 32 and 41– measurement of defined benefit 
obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

	 •	 Note 44 – Impairment of financial assets; and

	 •	 Note 48 – Impairment of goodwill

	 •	 Note 15 and 44 – Derivative contracts at fair value;

g. 	 Measurement of fair values

	� Certain accounting policies and disclosures require the 
measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities.

	� Fair values are categorised into different levels in a 
fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the 
valuation techniques as follows:

	� Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities.

	� Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in 
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived 
from prices). The derivative contracts are valued using 
market approach, determined using forward exchange 
rates as at the balance sheet date.

	� Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based 
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

	� When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, 
the Group uses observable market data as far as 
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value 
of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the 
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement 
is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the 

1. 	 Basis of preparation (Continued)
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fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is 
significant to the entire measurement. The Group 
recognises transfers between levels of the fair value 
hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which 
the change has occurred.

	� For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group 
has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the 
asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy 
as explained above. This note summarises accounting 
policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures 
are given in the relevant notes.

	 - Note 42 – Share-based payments arrangements; and

	 - Note 43 – financial instruments;

2. 	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. 	 Property, plant and equipment

	 i. 	 Recognition and measurement

	�� Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any.

	� Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment 
comprises its purchase price, including import duties 
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting 
trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable 
cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its 
intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and 
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is 
located.

	� All items of property, plant and equipment are stated 
at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost 
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to 
the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are 
included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised 
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the 
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount 
of any component accounted for as a separate asset 
is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and 
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the 
reporting period in which they are incurred.

	� If significant parts of an item of property, plant and 
equipment have different useful lives, then they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) 
of property, plant and equipment.

	� Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is recognised in the consolidated 
statement of profit or loss.

	� Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition/

construction of the qualifying asset are capitalised as 
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are 
recognised as expense in the consolidated statement of 
profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

	 ii. 	� Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives 
and residual values

	� Depreciation is provided on a Straight-Line Method 
(“SLM”) over the useful life of property, plant and 
equipment as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II 
of the Companies Act, 2013. In case of second hand 
assets purchased, the useful life considered is based 
on the remaining useful life of such asset determined 
based on technical evaluation and its proposed use. 
Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period 
is proportionately charged. The useful lives for property, 
plant and equipment is as follows:

Asset category	 Estimated useful life 
(in years)

Buildings 30
Plant and machinery 5-25
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles 8
Office equipment 5
Electrical installations 10
Computers (including software) 3-6

Freehold land is not depreciated.

b. 	 Business combination, Goodwill and Intangible assets

	� Business combinations, other than through common 
control transactions, are accounted for using the 
purchase (acquisition) method in accordance with 
Ind AS 103, Business Combinations. The cost of 
an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the 
assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities 
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange. The 
cost of acquisition also includes the fair value of any 
contingent consideration. Identifiable assets acquired 
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a 
business combination are measured initially at their fair 
value on the date of acquisition.

	� Business combinations through common control 
transactions are accounted on a pooling of interests 
method. Transaction costs incurred in connection with 
a business combination are expensed as incurred.

(i)	 Goodwill:

	� The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s 
share in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities is recognised 
as goodwill. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually 
for impairment.
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(ii)	 Customer relationships:

	 �Ind AS 103 requires the identifiable intangible assets 
and contingent consideration to be fair valued in order 
to ascertain the net fair value of identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree. 
Significant estimates are required to be made in 
determining the value of contingent consideration and 
intangible assets. These valuations are conducted by 
independent valuation experts. Such intangible assets 
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 
The estimated useful life for customer relationship 
is expected to be 7 years. The residual values, useful 
lives and method of amortisation of intangible assets 
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if 
appropriate.

(iii)	 Other Intangibles:

	� Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost 
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment, if any. Intangible assets are amortised in 
the statement of profit and loss over their estimated 
useful life of 3 years on a straight-line basis.

c. 	 Inventories

	 i.	� Inventories are measured at the lower of cost 
and net realisable value (NRV). Cost comprises 
purchase price and all expenses incurred in 
bringing the inventory to its present location and 
condition. Cost has been determined as follows:

Raw materials, 
stores and spares

: on weighted average basis

Work in progress : includes cost of conversion
Finished goods : includes cost of conversion

	 ii.	� Fixed production overheads are allocated on the 
basis of normal capacity of production facilities. 
The comparison of cost and NRV is made on 
an item-by-item basis. Spare parts that meet 
the definition of asset are capitalised at their 
respective carrying amounts. The NRV of work-in-
progress is determined with reference to NRV of 
related finished goods

	 iii.	� Raw materials and other supplies held for use in 
production of inventories are not written down 
below cost except in cases where material prices 
have declined, and it is estimated that the cost of 
the finished products will exceed their NRV

	 iv.	� Provision for inventory obsolescence is assessed 
periodically and is provided as considered 
necessary

d. 	 Revenue recognition

	� The Group recognises revenue to depict the transfer of 
promised goods or services to customers in an amount 
that reflects the consideration to which the Group 
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods 
or services. A 5-step approach is used to recognise 
revenue as below:

	 Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer;

	 Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract;

	 Step 3: Determine the transaction price;

	� Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance 
obligations in the contract; and

	� Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity 
satisfies a performance obligation.

	� Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of 
goods or services to buyer in an amount that reflects 
the consideration which the Group expects to receive in 
exchange for those goods or services.

	� Sale of products is adjusted net of Goods and Service 
tax, returns, trade discounts, and volume rebates.

	� Service income is recognised when the related services 
are rendered unless significant future contingencies 
exist.

	� Export incentives are recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss when the right to receive credit as per 
the terms of the entitlement is established in respect of 
export made.

	� Dividend income is recognised in consolidated 
statement of profit and loss on the date on which the 
right to receive payment is established.

	� Interest on the deployment of funds is recognised 
using the time-proportion method, based on underlying 
interest rates.

e. 	 Foreign currency transactions and balances

	� Foreign currency transactions are translated into the 
functional currency using the exchange rates at the 
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains 
and losses resulting from the settlement of such 
transactions and from the translation of monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in 
the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

	� Foreign exchange differences regarded as an 
adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the 
consolidated statement of profit and loss, within finance 
costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are 
presented in the consolidated statement of profit and 
loss on a net basis within other gains/ (losses).

2. 	 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
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	� Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in 
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. 
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at 
fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

	� Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the 
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets 
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the 
exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date.

	� Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net 
basis. This includes changes in the fair value of foreign 
exchange derivative instruments, which are accounted 
at fair value through profit or loss.

f. 	 Government Grants

	� Government grants are recognised at their fair value 
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will 
be received and the Group will comply with all attached 
conditions.

	� Grants related to assets are government grants whose 
primary condition is that an entity qualifying for them 
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-
term assets. Grants related to income are government 
grants other than those related to assets.

	� Government grants relating to an expense item are 
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit 
and loss over the period necessary to match them 
with the costs that they are intended to compensate 
and presented as a deduction in reporting the related 
expense. The presentation approach is applied 
consistently to all similar grants.

	� Government grants relating to the purchase of property, 
plant and equipment are included in liabilities as 
deferred income and are credited to the consolidated 
statement of profit and loss over the periods and in 
proportions in which depreciation expense on those 
assets is recognised.

	� Income from export incentives are recognised in the 
consolidated statement of profit and loss when the right 
to receive credit as per the terms of the entitlement is 
established in respect of exports made and disclosed 
as other operating revenues.

	� Income from government incentives (other than export 
incentive) are recognised in the consolidated statement 
of profit and loss when the right to receive credit as 
per the terms of the entitlement and disclosed as a 
reduction to the related expenses.

g. 	 Leases

	� A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys 
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 
period of time in exchange for consideration.

	 Group as a lessee

	� The Group accounts for each lease component 
within the contract as a lease separately from non- 
lease components of the contract and allocates the 
consideration in the contract to each lease component 
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the 
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price 
of the non-lease components.

	� The Group recognises a right-of-use asset representing 
its right to use the underlying asset for the lease 
term at the lease commencement date and a lease 
liability at the lease commencement date. The cost 
of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall 
comprise of the amount of the initial measurement 
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments 
made at or before the commencement date less any 
lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs 
incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by 
the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying 
asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which 
it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently 
measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, 
accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted 
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The 
right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-
line method from the commencement date over the 
shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. 
The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are 
determined on the same basis as those of property, 
plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for 
impairment whenever there is any indication that their 
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment 
loss, if any, is recognised in the consolidated statement 
of profit and loss.

	� The Group measures the lease liability at the present 
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments 
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the 
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that 
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses 
incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably 
similar characteristics, the Group, on a lease by lease 
basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate 
specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate 
for the portfolio as a whole.

	� The lease payments shall include fixed payments, 
variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, 
exercise price of a purchase option where the Group is 
reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments 
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term 
reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the 
lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured 
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by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest 
on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to 
reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring 
the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or 
lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance 
fixed lease payments. The Group recognises the 
amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due 
to modification as an adjustment to the right-of-
use asset and a charge or credit to the consolidated 
statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature 
of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further 
reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the 
Group recognises any remaining amount of the re-
measurement in consolidated statement of profit and 
loss.

	� Lease payments associated with following leases are 
recognised as expense on straight-line basis:

	 (i) 	 Low value leases; and
	 (ii) 	 Leases which are short-term.

h. 	 Financial instruments

	 i. 	 Recognition and initial measurement
	� Trade receivables are initially recognised when they 

are originated. All other financial assets and liabilities 
are recognised when the Group becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial 
assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. 
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added 
to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial 
recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

	� A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured 
at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through 
profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

	 ii. 	 Classification and subsequent measurement

	 Financial assets

	 Cash and cash equivalents
	� Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, 

other short-term highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

	 Financial assets carried at amortised cost
	� A financial asset is subsequently measured at 

amortised cost if it is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect 

contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

	� Financial assets at fair value through other 
comprehensive income

	� A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) if 
it is held within a business model whose objective is 
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and 
selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

	� A financial asset which is not classified in any of the 
above categories are subsequently fair valued through 
profit or loss (FVTPL). This include all derivative assets 
and current investments.

	 Financial liabilities

	� Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value 
and net gains and losses, including any interest expense 
and are recognised in consolidated statement of profit 
and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently 
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains 
and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain 
or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss.

	 Derivative Instruments

	� The Group holds derivative financial instruments such 
as foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate the 
risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency 
exposures. The counterparty for these contracts is 
generally a bank. These derivative instruments are 
recorded at fair value on every reporting date with 
changes being accounted in consolidated statement of 
profit and loss.

iii. 	 Derecognition

	 Financial assets

	� The Group derecognises a financial asset when the 
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the 
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset are transferred or in which the 
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain 
control of the financial asset.
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	� The Group derecognises a financial liability when its 
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or 
expire. The Group also derecognises a financial liability 
when its terms are modified and the cash flows under 
the modified terms are substantially different. In this 
case, a new financial liability based on the modified 
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between 
the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished 
and the new financial liability with modified terms is 
recognised in the consolidated statement profit and loss.

i. 	 Impairment

	 i. 	 Impairment of financial assets

	� The Group recognises loss allowances for expected 
credit losses (ECL) on financial assets measured at 
amortised cost.

	 �At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial 
assets carried at amortised cost are credit impaired. A 
financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events 
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash 
flows of the financial assets have occurred.

	 �The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition 
of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The 
application of simplified approach does not require the 
Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises 
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at 
each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. For 
recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets 
and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether 
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk 
since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased 
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for 
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased 
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent period, 
credit quality of the instrument improves such that there 
is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition, then the Group reverts to recognising 
impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL.

	 ii. 	 Impairment of non - financial assets

	� A cash-generating unit (CGU) is the smallest identifiable 
group of assets that generates cash inflows that are 
largely independent of the cash inflows from other 
assets or groups of assets.

	� The Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories 
and deferred tax assets, are evaluated for recoverability 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. 
For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable 
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell 

and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual 
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash 
flows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is 
determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

	� If such assets are considered to be impaired, the 
impairment to be recognised in the consolidated 
statement of profit and loss is measured by the amount 
by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the 
estimated recoverable amount of the asset.

	� An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not 
subsequently reversed. In respect of assets for which 
impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, 
the Group reviews at each reporting date whether 
there is any indication that the loss has decreased or 
no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed in the 
consolidated statement of profit and loss if there has 
been a change in the estimates used to determine the 
recoverable amount.

	� The carrying amount of the asset is increased to 
its revised recoverable amount, provided that this 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined (net of any accumulated 
amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss 
been recognised for the asset in prior years.

j. 	 Employee benefits

	 i. 	 Defined benefit plan

	 Gratuity

	� The Group’s gratuity plan is a defined benefit plan. The 
present value of obligation under such defined benefit 
plan is determined based on actuarial valuation carried 
out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit 
Credit Method. The obligation is measured at the present 
value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates 
used for determining the present value of obligation 
under defined benefit plan is based on the market yields 
on Government securities as at the balance sheet date, 
having maturity periods approximating to the terms 
of related obligations. Actuarial gains and losses are 
recognised immediately in the consolidated balance 
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained 
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.

	 Compensated absences

	� The employees of the Group are entitled to compensated 
absences. The employees can carry forward a portion of 
the unutilised accumulating compensated absence and 
utilise it in future periods or receive cash compensation 
at retirement or termination of employment. The Group 
records an obligation for compensated absences in 
the period in which the employee renders the services 
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that increases this entitlement. The Group measures 
the expected cost of compensated absence as the 
additional amount that the Group expects to pay as a 
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated 
at the balance sheet date. The calculation of the Group’s 
obligation is performed annually by an independent 
actuary using the projected unit credit method as at the 
balance sheet date.

	� Non-accumulating compensated absences are 
recognised in the period in which the absences occur. 
The Group recognises actuarial gains and losses 
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit and 
loss.

	 ii. 	 Defined contribution plan

	 Provident fund

	� Provident fund is a post-employment benefit plan under 
which t makes specified monthly contribution towards 
Government administered provident fund scheme. 
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution 
plan are recognised as an employee benefit expense in 
the consolidated statement of profit and loss during the 
period in which the related services are rendered by the 
employees.

	 iii. 	 Share-based payment transactions

	� Employees of the Group receive remuneration in the 
form of equity settled instruments, for rendering services 
over a defined vesting period. Equity instruments 
granted are measured by reference to the fair value 
of the instrument at the date of grant. The expense 
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit 
and loss with a corresponding increase in equity over 
the period that the employees unconditionally become 
entitled to the award. The equity instruments generally 
vest in a graded manner over the vesting period. The 
fair value determined at the grant date is expensed over 
the vesting period of the respective tranches of such 
grants. The stock compensation expense is determined 
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments 
that will eventually vest.

k. 	 Taxes

	 Current income tax

	� Current income tax comprises the expected tax payable 
or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year 
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable 
in respect of previous years. The amount of current 
income tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount 
expected to be paid or received after considering 
the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is 

measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

	� Current income tax relating to items recognised 
outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss 
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). 
Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the 
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken 
in the tax returns with respect to situations in which 
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation 
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

	 Deferred income tax

	� Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the 
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is 
not recognised for temporary differences on the initial 
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that 
is not a business combination and that affects neither 
accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

	� Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to be applied to the temporary differences 
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

	� Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities 
and assets and they relate to taxes levied by the same 
tax authority on the same taxable entity.

	� A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, 
tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the 
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will 
be available against which they can be utilised. Deferred 
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
the related tax benefit will be realised.

l. 	 Earnings per share

	� The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing 
the net profit for the year attributable to the owners of 
the Company by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year.

	� Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the 
profit for the year for the year attributable to the owners 
of the Group by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year, after adjustment 
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted 
as of the beginning of the year, unless issued at a later 
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined 
independently for each year presented. The number of 
equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are 
adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.
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m. 	 Cash flow statement

	� Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, 
whereby net profit/(loss) before tax is adjusted for 
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash 
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses 
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The 
cash flows from operating, investing and financing 
activities of the Group are segregated.

n. 	 Provisions and contingencies

	� A provision is recognised when an enterprise has 
a present obligation as a result of past events, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required 
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably 
estimated. Provisions are determined by discounting 
the expected future cash flows to their present value 
and are determined based on best estimate required to 
settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These 
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted 
to reflect the current best estimates.

	� Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e., contracts 
where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the 
obligations under the contract exceed the economic 
benefits expected to be received under it, are recognised 
when it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
a present obligation as a result of an obligating event, 
based on a best estimate of such obligation.

	� Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is 
a possible obligation arising from past events, the 
existence of which will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the Group or 
a present obligation that arises from past events where 
it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will 
be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate 
of the amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are 
neither recognised nor disclosed in the consolidated fin 
ancial statements.

o. 	 Segment reporting

	� Based on the “management approach” as defined in 
Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, Managing Directors 
of the Group has been identified as the Chief Operating 
Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM evaluates the 
Group’s performance and allocates resources based on 
single segment approach and accordingly, information 
has been presented.

p.	 Recent pronouncements

	� Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new 
standard or amendments to the existing standards 
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules as issued from time to time. On 23 March, 2022, 
MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from  
1 April, 2022, as below:

	 a)	 Ind AS 103 – Reference to Conceptual Framework

	� The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition 
as part of applying the acquisition method, the 
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed 
must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the 
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under 
Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India at the acquisition date. These changes do not 
significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. 
The Group does not expect the amendment to have 
any significant impact in its consolidated financial 
statements.

	 b)	 Ind AS 16 – Proceeds before intended use

	� The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from 
deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment 
amounts received from selling items produced while 
the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. 
Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds 
and related cost in profit or loss. The Group does not 
expect the amendments to have any impact in its 
recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its 
financial statements.

	 c)	� Ind AS 37 – Onerous Contracts - Costs of fulfilling 
a contract.

	� The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ 
a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to 
the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can 
either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract 
(examples would be direct labour, materials) or an 
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling 
contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification, 
and the Group does not expect the amendment to have 
any significant impact in its financial statements.

	 d)	� Ind AS 109 – Annual improvements to Ind AS 
(2021)

	� The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes 
when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in 
assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. 
The Group does not expect the amendment to have any 
significant impact in its financial statements.
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3.b Capital-work-in progress (CWIP) aging schedule 

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More   than   3 years Total
Projects in-progress
As at 31 March, 2022  1,119.28  90.05  3.78  11.14  1,224.25 
As at 31 March, 2021  478.82  108.86  9.54  7.02  604.24 

The Company has a dedicated facility in Bengaluru for machine building and machine design with special purpose machines 
being manufactured in-house. Special purpose machines are customised machines deployed to automate industrial processes 
to ensure high productivity. Machinery component required for machine building process are included in capital work-in-
progress.

There are no projects which are under suspension. With regard to the ongoing projects there are no projects where completion is 
overdue or has exceeded the cost as compared to its original plan, considering amendments as may be approved. The Projects 
in-progress for more than 3 years represent components which would be commonly used across various special purpose 
machines being manufactured in-house.				  

3.c Intangible Assets

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars  Owned intangible assets Total

 Customer 
relationship 

 Computer 
Software 

Gross Carrying Amount
Balance as at 1 April, 2020  32.49  15.38  47.87 
Reclassified from Computers  -    (0.70)  (0.70)
Additions  -    -    -   
Disposals  -    -    -   
Effect of foreign exchange differences  5.13  -    5.13 
Balance as at 31 March, 2021  37.62  14.68  52.30 
Reclassified from Computers  -    33.05  33.05 
Additions  -    6.81  6.81 
Disposals  -    -    -   
Effect of foreign exchange differences  (1.09)  -    (1.09)
Balance as at 31 March, 2022  36.53  54.54  91.07 
Accumulated Amortisation
Balance as at 1 April, 2020  13.92  8.23  22.15 
Reclassified from Computers  -    1.20  1.20 
Amortisation for the year  4.64  2.20  6.84 
Disposals  -    -    -   
Effect of foreign exchange differences  2.94  -    2.94 
Balance as at 31 March, 2021  21.50  11.63  33.13 
Reclassified from Computers  -    22.79  22.79 
Amortisation for the year  4.64  6.59  11.23 
Disposals  -    -    -   
Effect of foreign exchange differences  (0.04)  -    (0.04)
Balance as at 31 March, 2022  26.10  41.01  67.11 
Carrying Amount (Net)
Balance as at 31 March, 2022  10.43  13.53  23.96 
Balance as at 31 March, 2021  16.12  3.05  19.17 
Note: Software have been reclassified from the opening carry forward balance of computer and included as intangible assets.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022 (Contd.)
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3.d Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

(Amount in ` mn)

i) Following are the changes in the carrying value of right-of-use assets for the year ended 31 March, 2022:

Particulars Leasehold land Lease buildings  Total

Balance as at 1 April, 2020  36.22  836.75  872.97 

Additions  -    15.31  15.31 

Deletion  -    -    -   

Depreciation (0.46) (79.10)  (79.56)

Effect of foreign exchange differences  -    83.63  83.63 

Balance as at 31 March, 2021  35.76  856.59  892.35 

Additions  133.24  72.15 205.39

Deletion  -    (6.65) (6.65)

Depreciation  (6.96)  (87.56) (94.52)

Effect of foreign exchange differences  -    (19.30) (19.30)

Balance as at 31 March, 2022  162.04  815.23  977.27 

ii) The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March, 2022:

Particulars Leasehold land Lease buildings  Total

Balance as at 1 April, 2020  1.72  883.81  885.53 

Additions  -    15.31  15.31 

Finance cost accrued during the year  0.14  41.66  41.80 

Rental concession*  -    (2.71)  (2.71)

Deletions  -    -    -   

Payments  (0.14)  (102.41)  (102.55)

Effect of foreign exchange differences  -    83.78  83.78 

Balance as at 31 March, 2021  1.72  919.44  921.16 

Additions  133.24  61.05  194.29 

Finance cost accrued during the year  10.39  39.21  49.60 

Rental concession*  -    (0.44)  (0.44)

Deletions  -    (10.33)  (10.33)

Payments  (6.00)  (115.22)  (121.22)

Effect of foreign exchange differences  -    (19.92)  (19.92)

Balance as at 31 March, 2022  139.35  873.79  1,013.14 

iii) The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

Current lease liabilities  102.51  110.88 

Non-current lease liabilities  910.63  810.28 

Total  1,013.14  921.16 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022 (Contd.)
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iv) The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

Less than one year  125.06  110.88 

One to five years  414.57  369.25 

More than five years  835.26  701.54 

Total lease liabilities  1,374.89  1,181.67 

Less: Implicit interest 361.75 260.51

Lease liabilities included in the Balance sheet  1,013.14  921.16 

v) Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

Depreciation on Right-of-use assets  94.52  79.56 

Interest on lease liabilities  49.60  41.80 

Low value lease rentals 
(included with rent, classified under other expenses)

 10.41  3.08 

vi) Amount recognised in the statement of cash flows:

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

Cash outflows for leases

Interest portion of lease liabilities  49.60  41.80 

Principal portion of lease liabilities  71.62  60.75 

Total  121.22  102.55 
*The Group has applied the practical expedient to all eligible rent concessions and subsequently for the year ended 31 March, 
2022 an amount of ` 0.44 mn (31 March, 2021: ` 2.71 mn) has been recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.e Goodwill

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year  358.37  323.64 

Effect of foreign exchange differences  (6.12)  34.73 

Total  352.25  358.37 

Note: For details of impairment tests for goodwill refer note 48.

4 INVESTMENTS (NON-CURRENT)
(Amount in ` mn)

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

Unquoted (Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income)

Partner contribution

Clean Max Vega Power LLP *  104.93  36.93 

26% (31 March, 2021: 26%)

Total  104.93  36.93 
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(Amount in ` mn)
Name of the Partners As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021

Monetary Value of 
Contribution

Contribution Ratio Monetary Value of 
Contribution

Contribution Ratio

Clean Max Enviro Energy Solutions Private 
Limited

 265.98 65.90%  72.45 51.00%

CleanMax Renewable Trust  32.67 8.10%  32.67 23.00%
Sansera Engineering Limited  104.93 26.00%  36.93 26.00%
Kuldeep Jain #  -   0.00%  -   0.00%
Total Capital  403.58 100.00%  142.05 100.00%
* On 3 May, 2019, the Company had entered into Group Captive Power Project agreement with Clean Max Vega Power LLP 
(“LLP”) and Clean Max Enviro Energy Solutions Private Limited towards generation and supply of renewable energy for private 
consumers of electricity. The agreement is for a period of 25 years wherein the Company has committed to purchase atleast 
51% of the total power produced by the power producer. Further, on 3 March, 2022, the Company entered into a supplementary 
agreement for expanding the project and installing an additional capacity of wind power and solar power capacity and accordingly, 
there was an additional investment of ` 68 mn made by the Company during the year ended 31 March, 2022.	

# ` 10 (31 March, 2021: ` 10) not presented above due to rounding off to nearest ` in mn.

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  -    -   

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  104.93  36.93 

Aggregate amount of impairment in investments  -    -   

5 LOANS (NON-CURRENT)

	 (Amount in ` mn)

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

Unsecured, considered good

Loans to Director of subsidiary Company  2.70  9.15 

Loans to employees  13.02  -   

Total  15.72  9.15 

Loans to employees, previously disclosed under Other financial assets (Refer note 6) have been classified under Loans, 
consequent to the amendment to Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.

6 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (NON-CURRENT)

	 (Amount in ` mn)

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

Security deposits

	 Unsecured, considered good  282.27  284.54 

	 Doubtful  -    -   

Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity *  5.68  4.94 

Total  287.95  289.48 

*Includes certain deposits pledged against bank guarantees and letter of credits provided by the bank.		

Security deposits, previously disclosed under Loans (Refer note 5) have been classified under Other Financial Assets, consequent 
to the amendment to Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.
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7

7a. Current tax assets (Net)	 (Amount in ` mn)

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

Advance tax including tax deducted at source, net of provision for tax  28.30  27.14 

Total  28.30  27.14 

7b. Current tax liabilities (Net)	 (Amount in ` mn)

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

Provision for tax, net of advance tax including tax deducted at source  8.48  0.59 

Total  8.48  0.59 

8 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

	 (Amount in ` mn)

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

Capital advances  205.50  220.38 

Prepayments  -    0.49 

Duty paid under protest  3.83  3.83 

Total  209.33  224.70 

9 INVENTORIES (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

		  (Amount in ` mn)

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

Raw materials*  993.68  838.03 

Work-in-progress  1,055.89  897.45 

Finished goods **  466.79  395.15 

Stores and spares  259.67  355.06 

Total  2,776.03  2,485.69 

*   Includes stock of assembled components.

** Includes stock in transit of ` 162.80 mn (31 March, 2021: ` 83.87 mn).

The mode of valuation of inventories has been stated in note 2.c
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10 CURRENT INVESTMENTS

		  (Amount in ` mn)

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

Quoted equity shares

Equity shares at fair value through statement of profit and loss

800 (31 March, 2021: 800) equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid up of Maruti Suzuki India 
Limited

 5.97  5.58 

Total  5.97  5.58 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  5.97  5.58 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  -    -   

Aggregate amount of impairment in investments  -    -   

11 TRADE RECEIVABLES

		  (Amount in ` mn)

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

Considered good - Secured  -    -   

Considered good - Unsecured  4,118.27  3,153.44 

That have an increase in Credit Risk that is significant  -    -   

Credit Impaired  -    -   

Total  4,118.27  3,153.44 

Less: Allowance for credit losses  (32.63)  (23.61)

Trade receivables  4,085.64  3,129.83 

The Group’s exposure to credit and currency risk, and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in note 44.	
The Group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a 
provision matrix, The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking 
information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rebates as 
given in the provision matrix. The provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows:.

Ageing Expected Credit loss (%)

within the credit period 0.00%

1-90 days past due 0.01% to 0.84%

91-180 days past due 1.31% to 2.00%

181-270 days past due 9.81% to 25.93%

271-360 days past due 32.45% to 42.66%

More than 360 days past due 100.00%
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Trade receivables ageing schedule

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not Due Less than 
6 months

6 months - 
1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Total

As at 31 March, 2022

(i)  �Undisputed Trade receivables - 
considered good

 2,773.56  1,241.09  83.46  12.42  5.74  2.00  4,118.27 

(ii) �Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iii) �Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
credit impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) �Disputed Trade Receivables - 
considered good

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(v)  �Disputed Trade Receivables - which 
have significant increase in credit 
risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vi) �Disputed Trade Receivables - credit 
impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  2,773.56  1,241.09  83.46  12.42  5.74  2.00  4,118.27 

As at 31 March, 2021

(i)  Undisputed Trade receivables - 
considered good

 2,329.32  799.22  14.86  2.80  5.94  1.30  3,153.44 

(ii)  Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
which have significant increase in credit 
risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
credit impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - 
considered good

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(v)  Disputed Trade Receivables - which 
have significant increase in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit 
impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  2,329.32  799.22  14.86  2.80  5.94  1.30  3,153.44 

12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

		  (Amount in ` mn)

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

Balance with banks

in current accounts  382.60  364.28 

Cash on hand  0.84  0.72 

Total  383.44  365.00 
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13 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

		  (Amount in ` mn)

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

Bank deposits within 12 months maturity *  119.84  286.42 

Total  119.84  286.42 

*Includes certain deposits amounting to ` 45.21 mn as at 31 March, 2022 (31 March, 2021: ` 19.92 mn) pledged against bank 
guarantees and letter of credits provided by the bank.						    

14 LOANS (CURRENT)

		  (Amount in ` mn)

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

Unsecured, considered good

Loans to Key Managerial Personnel (Refer note 40)  3.88  3.88 

Loans to employees  21.27  25.38 

Total  25.15  29.26 

Type of Borrower Amount of loan or advance in the nature 
of loan outstanding

Percentage to the total Loans and 
Advances in the nature of loans

Key Managerial Personnel  3.88 9.49%

15 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 

		  (Amount in ` mn)

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

Unsecured, considered good

Amounts recoverable from shareholders (IPO related) (Refer note 40)  3.47  94.21 

Unbilled revenue*  172.70  50.31 

Derivative contracts at fair value  6.13  38.54 

Others  19.39  10.49 

Total  201.69  193.55 

* Unbilled revenue represents revenue recognised in excess of invoicing towards price increases, where there is an unconditional 
right to receive cash, and only act of invoicing is pending.							     

16 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

		  (Amount in ` mn)

Particulars  As at
31 March, 2022

 As at
31 March, 2021

Duty drawback receivables  45.99  71.61 

Advance to suppliers  89.72  68.79 

Balances with government authorities  145.03  172.63 

Prepayments  66.44  18.89 

Total  347.18  331.92 
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17A 
(i) Equity share capital

(Amount in ` mn except no. of shares)
Particulars As at   

31 March, 2022
As at   

31 March, 2021
Authorised share capital
Equity shares
62,500,000 (31 March, 2021: 6,25,00,000) equity shares of ̀  2 each (31 March, 2021: 
` 2 each)

 125.00  125.00 

Total  125.00  125.00 
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
Equity shares
52,155,815 (31 March, 2021: 4,69,36,500) equity shares of ̀  2 each (31 March, 2021: 
` 2 each) 

 104.31  93.87 

Total  104.31  93.87 

(ii)	 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Particulars As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Equity shares
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,69,36,500 93.87 4,69,36,500 93.87
Add: Shares issued on conversion of Compulsorily Convertible 
Preference shares (CCPS) 

44,41,350 8.88 - -

Add: Shares issued on exercise of employee stock options 7,77,965 1.56 - -
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year 5,21,55,815 104.31 4,69,36,500 93.87

(iii)	 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

	� The Company has a single class of equity shares. Each holder of the equity share, as reflected in the records of the 
Company as of the date of the shareholder meeting, is entitled to one vote in respect of each share held for all matters 
submitted to vote in the Shareholders’ meeting. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the 
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

	� In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive residual assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity 
shares held by the shareholders or in line with the terms of the shareholders agreement as the case may be.

(iv)	 Shares held by holding / ultimate holding company and / or their subsidiaries / associates:

Name of the shareholder As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Equity shares
Client Ebene Limited 95,54,842 19.11 1,53,43,900 30.69
CVCIGPII Employee Ebene Limited 53,51,702 10.70 85,93,425 17.19
Total 1,49,06,544 29.81 2,39,37,325 47.88

(v)	 List of persons holding more than 5 percent shares in equity shares of the Company

Name of the shareholder As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding

Client Ebene Limited 95,54,842 18.32% 1,53,43,900 32.69%
CVCIGPII Employee Ebene Limited 53,51,702 10.26% 85,93,425 18.31%
S Sekhar Vasan 1,02,49,531 19.65% 1,23,07,600 26.22%
Unni Rajagopal K 28,45,549 5.46% 34,16,925 7.28%
F R Singhvi * 27,95,549 5.36% 34,16,925 7.28%
D Devaraj 21,76,374 4.17% 27,47,750 5.85%

	� * Pursuant to the provisions of a memorandum of understanding executed between F R Singhvi and the Singhvi Family 
Shareholders, dated 15 May, 2013, F R Singhvi is acting in trust in relation to 1,658,624 Equity Shares held by the Singhvi 
Family Shareholders.
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(vi)	� As at 31 March, 2022, the Company has reserved 25,41,037 shares (31 March, 2021: 2,362,050 shares) for issuance 
towards outstanding employee stock option available for exercise. Refer note 42.

(vii)	 (a)	� There have been no shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash during 
five years immediately preceding 31 March, 2022, except with effect from 27 July, 2018, on approval of shareholders, 
one equity share of ` 100 each was sub-divided into 50 equity shares of ` 2 each resulting into 3,237,000 number of 
shares. Subsequently, the Company had issued 4,36,99,500 bonus shares in the proportion of 27:2.

	 (b)	� There are no shares bought back during 5 years immediately preceding 31 March, 2022.

(viii)	Shareholding of Promoters in equity shares of the Company

Promoter name Shares held by promoters at the end of 
the year

% Change during the 
year

No. of Shares % of total shares
S Sekhar Vasan  1,02,49,531 19.65% (16.72%)
Unni Rajagopal K  28,45,549 5.46% (16.72%)
D Devaraj  21,76,374 4.17% (20.79%)
F R Singhvi *  27,95,549 5.36% (18.19%)
D. Devaraj - HUF  6,69,175 1.28% 0.00% 
P Singhvi charitable trust  50,000 0.10% 100.00% 
Total  1,87,86,178 36.02%

	� * Pursuant to the provisions of a memorandum of understanding executed between F R Singhvi and the Singhvi Family 
Shareholders, dated 15 May, 2013, F R Singhvi is acting in trust in relation to 1,658,624 Equity Shares held by the Singhvi 
Family Shareholders.

	� The promoters of the Company are S Sekhar Vasan, F R Singhvi, Unni Rajagopal K and D Devaraj.  Promoters’ contribution 
and lock-in: Pursuant to Regulations 14 and 16 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, an aggregate of the 20% of the fully diluted 
post-Offer Equity Share capital of the Company held by Promoters shall be locked in for a period of three years as minimum 
Promoters’ contribution (“Minimum Promoters’ Contribution”) from the date of Allotment on 21 September 2021 and the 
shareholding of the Promoters in excess of 20% of the fully diluted post-Offer Equity Share capital shall be locked in for a 
period of one year from the date of Allotment on 21 September, 2021.

	� Share capital locked-in for one year: In terms of the Regulation 17 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, in addition to the Equity 
Shares proposed to be locked-in as part of the Minimum Promoters’ Contribution, the entire pre-Offer Equity Share capital 
of the Company will be locked-in for a period of one year from the date of Allotment except the Equity Shares held by 
Client Ebene Limited and CVCIGP II Employee Ebene Limited who are SEBI registered FVCIs; and  Equity Shares held by the 
employees of the Company (whether currently an employee or not) which have been or will be allotted to them under ESOP 
2015 and ESOP 2018 schemes.

17. b Instruments entirely equity in nature

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars As at   

31 March, 2022
As at   

31 March, 2021
Authorised
Preference shares
Series A 300,000 (31 March, 2021: 300,000), 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible  
Preference Shares of ` 100 each

 30.00  30.00 

Series B 750,000 (31 March, 2021: 750,000), 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible 
Preference Shares of ` 100 each

 75.00  75.00 

Total  105.00  105.00 
Issued, subscribed and paid up 
Preference shares
Series A nil (31 March, 2021: 300,000), 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible  
Preference Shares of ` 100 each

 -    30.00 

Series B nil (31 March, 2021: 750,000), 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible  
Preference Shares of ` 100 each

 -    75.00 

Total  -    105.00 
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i.	 Reconciliation of the number of preference shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Particulars As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Series A Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares (CCPS)

Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  3,00,000  30.00  3,00,000  30.00 

Add: Issued/(Converted) during the year (3,00,000) (30.00)  -    -   

Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year  -    -    3,00,000  30.00 

Series B Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares (CCPS)

Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  7,50,000  75.00  7,50,000  75.00 

Add: Issued/(Converted) during the year (7,50,000) (75.00)  -    -   

Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year  -    -    7,50,000  75.00 

ii.	 Shares held by holding / ultimate holding company and / or their subsidiaries / associates:	

Name of the shareholder As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Series A Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares (CCPS)

Client Ebene Limited  -    -    1,92,300  19.23 

CVCIGPII Employee Ebene Limited  -    -    1,07,700  10.77 

Total  -    -    3,00,000  30.00 

Series B Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) 

Client Ebene Limited  -    -    4,80,750  48.08 

CVCIGPII Employee Ebene Limited  -    -    2,69,250  26.92 

Total  -    -    7,50,000  75.00 

iii.	 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to preference shares (upto the date of conversion):

	 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) - [Series A and Series B]

	 Dividend rights

	� In accordance with the share subscription agreement dividend shall be equal to 0.0001 % per annum of the face value of 
the CCPS [Series A and Series B]. In any given financial year, the Group may not declare any dividend or other distribution 
to its holders of equity shares unless it has first declared the preferential dividend for such financial year to the holders of 
the CCPS [Series A and Series B]. The dividends are non-cumulative.

	 Conversion of  preference shares

	� CCPS [Series A and Series B] is convertible, on the expiry of 20 (twenty) years from the completion date respectively  
(7 July, 2033) and into a fixed share entitlement ratio as defined in the share subscription agreement (SSA) or earlier 
of events as defined in SSA. The equity shares issued to the holders of the CCPS [Series A and Series B] pursuant to 
conversion shall be free of all encumbrances and shall (i) be fully-paid up, (ii) be transferable to any person in  accordance 
with the terms of the agreement, (iii) carry full voting rights, and (iv) rank pari-passu in every respect with other ordinary 
fully paid up equity shares. The Company in its meeting of the Board of Directors held on 3 September, 2021, converted 
300,000 Series A Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares and 750,000 Series B Compulsorily Convertible Preference 
Shares into 4,439,900 and 1,450 equity shares respectively for ` 2 per equity share.
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18 OTHER EQUITY

Summary of other equity balances*

(Amount in ` mn)

Particulars As at   
31 March, 2022

As at   
31 March, 2021

Reserves and surplus

Capital redemption reserve  0.55  0.55 

Capital reserve  8.17  8.17 

Securities premium  1,431.39  1,216.76 

General reserve  135.48  135.48 

Retained earnings  8,311.09  6,987.35 

Share options outstanding account  223.37  182.00 

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (Net of tax)  19.46 53.24 

Total  10,129.51  8,583.55 

* Refer consolidated statement of changes in equity for detailed movement in above other equity balances.

Nature and purpose of other equity:

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve is created out of undistributed profits for purchase of its own shares.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve of ` 3.52 mn refers to the subsidy received from the Government of Karnataka, Department of Industries and 
Commerce. This subsidy was received as the Group was a small scale industry in that particular year. Balance pertains to share 
of pre-acquisition profits of a subsidiary at the time of acquisition by the Group accounted as capital reserve.

Securities premium

Securities premium comprises of premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with specific provision of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

General reserve

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the 
general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive 
income, items included in general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit and loss.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings are profits that the Group has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other 
distributions paid to investors.

Share options outstanding account

The fair value of the equity-settled share based payment transactions with employees is recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss with corresponding credit to share options outstanding account.

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign operation are recognised in other comprehensive income as described 
in accounting policy and accumulated in a separate reserve within equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss 
when the net investment is disposed off.
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19 BORROWINGS (NON-CURRENT)

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars As at   

31 March, 2022
As at   

31 March, 2021
Secured at amortised cost
Term loans from banks  2,083.83  1,403.40 
Term loans from other financial institutions  251.21  472.81 
Car loan from bank  -    0.31 
Total  2,335.04  1,876.52 
The Group has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

Repayment and interest terms 

Term loans from banks:

Repayment and interest terms Name of the 
Lender

Security As at   
31 March, 2022

As at   
31 March, 2021

Repayable in 20 equal quarterly 
instalments of ` 20.00 mn per quarter 
starting from August 2017 and to 
be settled by August 2022. The loan 
carries interest rate of 2% p.a.

Citi Bank Secured by first pari-passu charge 
on entire plant and machinery, 
both present and future, certain 
immovable properties and secured 
by second pari-passu charge on 
current assets, i.e., inventories and 
trade receivables, both present and 
future, of the Company.

 47.56  137.64 

Repayable in 20 equal quarterly 
instalments of ` 11.11 mn per quarter 
starting from April 2017 and to be 
settled by July 2022. Loan carries 
interest rate of 7.85%. p.a. - 7.9% p.a.

HSBC Bank Secured by first pari-passu charge 
on entire plant and machinery, both 
present and future, certain properties 
(land and buildings) and secured by 
second pari-passu charge on current 
assets, both present and future, of 
the Company.

 19.44  63.90 

Repayable in 18 equal quarterly 
instalments of ` 13.89 mn per quarter 
starting from September 2017 and to 
be settled by November 2022. Loan 
carries interest rate of 7.65% p.a. - 
7.9% p.a. 

HSBC Bank  36.11  91.68 

Repayable in 18 equal quarterly 
instalments of ` 13.89 mn per quarter 
starting from January 2019 and to 
be settled by July 2023. Loan carries 
interest rate of 7.65% p.a. - 7.9% p.a.

HSBC Bank  75.00  130.59 

Repayable in 20 equal quarterly 
instalments of ` 12.26 mn per quarter 
starting from April 2016 and to be 
settled by May 2021. The loan carries 
interest rate of  8.15% p.a.

HDFC Bank Secured by first pari-passu charge 
on movable fixed assets, certain 
immovable fixed assets (land and 
buildings) and secured by second 
pari-passu charge on current assets, 
viz. inventories and receivables, both 
present and future, of the Company.

 -    12.26 

Repayable in 20 equal quarterly 
instalments of ` 12.50 mn per quarter 
starting from June 2017 and to be 
settled by March 2022. The loan 
carries interest rate of  7.3% p.a.

HDFC Bank  -    50.00 
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Repayment and interest terms Name of the 
Lender

Security As at   
31 March, 2022

As at   
31 March, 2021

Repayable in 20 equal quarterly 
instalments of ` 21 mn per quarter 
starting from March 2019 and to be 
settled by August 2023. The loan 
carries interest rate of  7.25% p.a.

HDFC Bank  126.00  210.00 

Repayable in 20 equal quarterly 
instalments of ` 20 mn per quarter 
starting from September 2019 and 
to be settled by June 2024. The loan 
carries a interest rate of  7.45% p.a.

HDFC Bank  180.00  260.00 

Repayable in 20 equal quarterly 
instalments of ` 25 mn per quarter 
starting from January 2021 and to 
be settled by October 2025. The loan 
carries a interest rate of  7.6% p.a.

HDFC Bank  375.00  475.00 

Repayable in 20 equal quarterly 
instalments of ` 25 mn per quarter 
starting from Jun 2023 and to be 
settled by December 2027. The loan 
carries a interest rate of 6.5% p.a.

HDFC Bank  500.00  -   

Repayable in a bullet payment of  
` 122.92 mn in October 2021 and in 
a bullet repayment of ` 14.48 mn in 
March 22 . The loan carries interest 
rate of 1.72% p.a. 

DBS Bank Secured by first pari-passu charge 
on movable fixed assets, certain 
immovable fixed assets and secured 
by second pari-passu charge on 
current assets, including inventories 
and receivables, both present and 
future, of the Company.

 -    137.39 

Repayable in a bullet payment of  
` 15.01 mn in March 2022. The loan 
carries interest rate of 1.50% p.a. 

DBS Bank  -    15.01 

Repayable in 16 equal monthly 
instalments of ` 49.87 mn starting 
from October 2021 and to be settled by 
July 2025. The loan carries a interest 
rate of 7.35% p.a.

Axis Bank Secured by first pari-passu charge 
on entire movable fixed assets, 
both present and future, certain 
immovable properties and secured 
by second pari-passu charge on 
entire current assets, both present 
and future, of the Company.

 874.16  -   

Repayable in 54 equal monthly 
instalments of ` 18.5 mn starting from 
July 2022 and to be settled by May 
2025. The loan carries a interest rate 
of 6.7% p.a.

SBI Secured by first pari-passu charge on 
entire movable fixed assets, certain 
immovable properties and secured 
by second pari-passu charge on 
entire current assets, including 
inventories and receivables, both 
present and future, of the Company.

 633.91  557.91 
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Repayment and interest terms Name of the 
Lender

Security As at   
31 March, 2022

As at   
31 March, 2021

Repayable in 57 monthly instalments 
of ` 0.37 mn per month starting from 
August 2015 and to be settled by 
February 2022. The loan carries a 
interest rate of 7.65% p.a.

HDFC Bank Secured by first pari-passu charge 
on certain propert/immovable assets 
and movable assets and secured 
by second pari-passu charge on 
current assets i.e., inventories and 
receivables, both present and future.

 -    3.70 

Repayable in 57 monthly instalments 
of ` 0.46 mn per month starting from 
August 2015 and to be settled by 
February 2022. The loan carries a 
interest rate of 7.65% p.a.

HDFC Bank  -    4.63 

Repayable in 57 monthly instalments 
of ` 0.43 mn per month starting 
from August 2015 and to be settled 
by October 2022. The loan carries a 
interest rate of 7.65% p.a.

HDFC Bank  3.47  8.80 

Repayable in 60 monthly instalments 
of ` 0.37 mn per month starting from 
January 2020 and to be settled by July 
2024. The loan carries a interest rate 
of 8.05% p.a.

HDFC Bank  10.75  14.82 

Repayable in 60 monthly instalments 
of ` 0.46 mn per month starting from 
November 2021 and to be settled 
by October 2024. The loan carries a 
interest rate of 8.25% p.a.

HDFC Bank  44.09  51.20 

Repayable in 60 monthly instalments 
of ` 0.63 mn per month starting from 
January 2023 and to be settled by 
December 2025. The loan carries a 
interest rate of 7.55% p.a.

Axis Bank Secured by first pari-passu charge 
on certain propert/immovable assets 
and  movable fixed assets, both 
present and future, and secured by 
second pari-passu charge on current 
assets including receivables, both 
present and future.

 30.00  -   

Total  2,955.49  2,224.53 
Less: Current maturities (Refer note 23) (871.66) (821.13)
Non-current  2,083.83  1,403.40 

Term loans from other financial institutions : 

Repayment and interest terms Name of the 
Lender

Security As at   
31 March, 2022

As at   
31 March, 2021

Repayable in 20 equal quarterly 
instalments of ` 20.00 mn per quarter 
starting from July 2018 and to be 
settled by April 2024. The loan carries 
interest rate of  9% p.a.

Citicorp 
Finance 
(India) 

Limited

Secured by first pari-passu charge 
on entire plant and machinery, 
both present and future, certain 
immovable properties and secured 
by second pari-passu charge on 
current assets, i.e. inventories and 
trade receivables, both present and 
future, of the Company.

 180.00  260.00 
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Repayment and interest terms Name of the 
Lender

Security As at   
31 March, 2022

As at   
31 March, 2021

Repayable in 50 equal monthly 
instalments of ` 3.78 mn starting from 
September 2017 and to be settled by 
August 2021. The loan carries interest 
rate of 8.00% p.a. 

Bajaj 
Finance 
Limited

Secured by first pari-passu charge on 
entire movable fixed assets, certain 
immovable properties and secured 
by second pari-passu charge on 
current assets, both present and 
future, of the Company.

 -    19.16 

Repayable in 54 equal monthly 
instalments of ` 6.72 mn starting 
from April 2019 and to be settled by 
September 2023. The loan carries 
interest rate of 8.00% p.a. 

Bajaj 
Finance 
Limited

 113.63  182.17 

Repayable in 48 equal monthly 
instalments of ` 4.88 mn starting 
from February 2021 and to be settled 
by January 2025. The loan carries 
interest rate of 8.00% p.a. 

Bajaj 
Finance 
Limited

 148.09  192.86 

Repayable in 60 monthly instalments 
of ` 1.1 mn per month starting from 
May 2018 and to be settled by August 
2024.The loan carries a interest rate of 
8.75% p.a.

Bajaj 
Finance 
Limited

Secured by first pari-passu charge on 
movable fixed assets, both present 
and future and certain immovable 
properties and secured by second 
pari-passu charge on current assets 
i.e., inventories and receivables, both 
present and future.

 26.17  41.84 

Repayable in 60 monthly instalments 
of ` 0.15 mn per month starting from 
May 2019 and to be settled by May 
2025.The loan carries a interest rate of 
8.75% p.a.

Bajaj 
Finance 
Limited

 6.55  8.20 

Total  474.44  704.23 

Less: Current maturities (Refer note 23) (223.23) (231.42)

Non-current  251.21  472.81 

Car loans from banks:

Repayment and interest terms Name of the 
Lender

Security As at   
31 March, 2022

As at   
31 March, 2021

Repayable in 60 monthly instalments 
of ` 0.06 mn per month starting from 
November 2017 and to be settled by 
September 2022. The loan carries a 
interest rate of 8.25% p.a.

HDFC Bank Secured by certain movable fixed 
assets.

 0.37  1.06 

Repayable in 37 monthly instalments 
of ` 0.06 mn per month starting from 
October 2018 and to be settled by 
October 2021. The loan carries a 
interest rate of 9% p.a.

HDFC Bank  -    0.42 

Total  0.37  1.48 

Less: Current maturities (Refer note 23)  (0.37)  (1.17)

Non-current  -    0.31 
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20 PROVISIONS (NON-CURRENT)

(Amount in ` mn)

Particulars As at   
31 March, 2022

As at   
31 March, 2021

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity (Refer note 41)  82.23  151.83 

Total  82.23  151.83 

21 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars As at   

31 March, 2022
As at   

31 March, 2021

Deferred tax assets
Provision for employee benefits  49.52  60.86 
Security deposit  3.81  1.06 
Allowance for credit losses  6.85  4.58 
Right-of-use assets, net of lease liabilities (Ind AS 116)  9.84  8.81 
Others  5.43  2.63 
Total (a)  75.45  77.94 
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment  697.42  671.46 
On fair valuation of quoted investments  1.50  1.40 
Derivative contracts at fair value  11.62  9.70 
On Intangibles  4.84  -   
Exchange differences arising from foreign operations  1.96  13.32 
Others  0.04  0.04 
Total (b)  717.38  695.92 
Deferred tax liabilities (net)  (c) = (b) - (a)  641.93  617.98 

22 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars As at   

31 March, 2022
As at   

31 March, 2021
Deferred Government grant  509.82  467.16 
Total  509.82  467.16 

Movement in deferred Government grant (Current and Non-current)

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars As at   

31 March, 2022
As at   

31 March, 2021
Opening balance  514.60  467.04 
Add: Grants during the year  100.91  92.67 
Less: Income recognised in the statement of profit and loss (51.59)  (45.11)
Closing balance  563.92  514.60 
Less: Amounts expected to be recognised in the next 12 months (Refer note 26) - 
current

(54.10) (47.44)

Net Closing balance, non-current  509.82  467.16 
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The Government grant related to property, plant and equipment is recognised as income over the useful life, in proportion to the 
depreciation of the related asset under note 29 -Other income.

23 BORROWINGS (CURRENT)

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars As at   

31 March, 2022
As at   

31 March, 2021
Loans from banks - Secured - at amortised cost
	 Cash credit  -    40.95 
	 Working capital loan  1,526.78  1,518.58 
	 Packing credit  1,494.36  992.79 
Current maturities of long-term debt *  1,095.26  1,053.72 
Total  4,116.40  3,606.04 
Cash credit, working capital loan, packing credit loan from banks and others amounting to ` 3,021.14 mn as at 31 March, 2022 
(31 March, 2021: ` 2,552.32 mn) are secured by hypothecation of current assets, movable fixed assets and certain immovable 
properties of the Group.
Working capital loan carries interest rate ranging from 5.65% p.a. to 7.65% p.a., Cash credit carries interest rate ranging from 
7.1% p.a. to 7.90% p.a. and Packing credit carries interest rate ranging from 4.00 % p.a. to 4.40% p.a.
The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Group with banks or financial institutions are in agreement 
with the books of accounts.
* Current maturities of long-term debt, previously disclosed under Other financial liabilities (Refer Note 25) have been classified 
under Borrowings (Current), consequent to the amendment to Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

24 TRADE PAYABLES

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars As at   

31 March, 2022
As at   

31 March, 2021
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  77.54  86.39 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than to micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

 1,984.27  1,750.37 

Trade payable towards
	 Accrued expenses  591.16  433.70 
Total  2,652.97  2,270.46 
The Group’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to trade payables are disclosed in note 4.

Trade Payables ageing schedule

Particulars Outstanding for following  periods from due date of payment

Accrued Not due Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More  than  3 
years

Total

As at 31 March, 2022

Micro, small and medium 
enterprises

 -    76.41  1.13  -    -    -    77.54 

Others  591.16  1,846.83  128.67  7.28  0.39  1.80  2,576.13 

Total  591.16  1,923.24  129.80  7.28  0.39  1.80  2,653.67 

As at  31 March, 2021

Micro, small and medium 
enterprises

 -    79.13  5.18  2.08  -    -    86.39 

Others  433.70  1,429.66  233.58  72.87  12.98  1.28  2,184.07 

Total  433.70  1,508.79  238.76  74.95  12.98  1.28  2,270.46 
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25 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(Amount in ` mn)

Particulars As at   
31 March, 2022

As at   
31 March, 2021

Interest accrued  9.63  14.93 

Capital creditors *  112.20  168.02 

Total  121.83  182.95 

* Capital creditors include dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises amounting to ̀  28.03 mn (31 March, 2021: ` 25.00 mn).

26 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(Amount in ` mn)

Particulars As at   
31 March, 2022

As at   
31 March, 2021

Advance from customers  87.62  26.37 

Statutory liabilities  121.82  133.82 

Deferred government grant  54.10  47.44 

Total  263.54  207.63 

27 PROVISIONS (CURRENT)

(Amount in ` mn)

Particulars As at   
31 March, 2022

As at   
31 March, 2021

Provision for employee benefits

	 Provision for gratuity (Refer note 41)  29.31  26.75 

	 Provision for compensated absences  81.83  72.35 

Total  111.14  99.10 
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28 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars For the year ended  

31 March, 2022
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021
Sale of products 18,557.85 14,568.90
Sale of services 40.87 2.30
Sub-total 18,598.72 14,571.20
Other operating revenues:
	 Scrap sales 954.31 560.14
	 Tooling income 255.75 257.85
	 Export incentive benefits 81.54 103.52
Total 19,890.32 15,492.71

A.	 Disaggregation of Revenue from contracts with customers

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars For the year ended  

31 March, 2022
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021
Sale of products
	 India 11,682.89 9,466.78
	 Europe 4,428.14 3,640.52
	 USA 1,724.91 1,012.62
	 Other foreign countries 721.91 448.98
Sub-total 18,557.85 14,568.90

Sale of services
	 India 40.87 2.30

Tooling income
	 India 150.77 47.29
	 Europe 55.75 105.90
	 USA 49.23 90.07
	 Other foreign countries - 14.59
Sub-total 255.75 257.85

Total revenue from contracts with customers:
	 India 11,874.53 9,516.37
	 Europe 4,483.89 3,746.42
	 USA 1,774.14 1,102.69
	 Other foreign countries 721.91 463.57
Total revenue from contract with customers 18,854.47 14,829.05

B.	 Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised with contract and total revenue:

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars For the year ended  

31 March, 2022
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021
Total revenue from contract with customers  18,854.47  14,829.05 
Adjustments:
Other operating revenues:
	 Export incentive benefit  81.54  103.52 
	 Scrap sales  954.31  560.14 
Total  19,890.32  15,492.71 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022 (Contd.)



SANSERA ENGINEERING LIMITED

Corporate  
Overview

Statutory  
Reports

Financial  
Statements

196

C.	 Timing of revenue recognition

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars For the year ended  

31 March, 2022
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021
Good transferred at a point in time  19,634.57  15,234.86 
Service transferred over time  255.75  257.85 
Total revenue from contract with customers  19,890.32  15,492.71 
The transaction price allocated to (partially) unsatisfied performance obligations at 31 March, 2022 and 31 March, 2021 is Nil.

D.	 Contract balances

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars For the year ended  

31 March, 2022
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021
Trade receivables  4,085.64  3,129.83 
Contract assets (Unbilled revenue)  172.70  50.31 
Contract liabilities (Advance from customers)  87.62  26.37 

E.	 The Group’s revenue from its major products are as follows:

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars For the year ended  

31 March, 2022
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021
Connecting rods 7,939.10 5,778.67
Crank shaft assembly 2,995.98 2,509.90
Rocker arms 3,383.71 2,836.10
Others* 4,239.07 3,444.23
Total revenue from sale of products 18,557.86 14,568.90

* Individual items of these are less than 10% of sale of products.	

Revenue from sale of products from top three customers of the Group, who individually exceed 10% of total sales, is 44.18% (as 
at 31 March, 2021 - three customers is 51.68%).

29 OTHER INCOME

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars For the year ended  

31 March, 2022
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021
Interest income  14.42  22.42 
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss  0.39  2.05 
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment  1.88  4.77 
Gain on foreign currency transactions, net  49.07  101.80 
Income from government grants  52.01  81.92 
Other non-operating income  32.99  17.97 
Share of profit from investment in Limited Liability Partnership (LLP)  4.17  -   
Total  154.93  230.93 

30 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars For the year ended  

31 March, 2022
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021
Raw materials at the beginning of the year  838.03  722.90 
Add: Purchases  9,026.73  6,793.44 
Less: Raw materials at the end of the year  993.68  838.03 
Total  8,871.08  6,678.31 
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31 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS

(Amount in ` mn)

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March, 2022

For the year ended  
31 March, 2021

Opening balance

Finished goods  395.15  369.27 

Work-in-progress  897.45  879.62 

Total  1,292.60  1,248.89 

Closing balance

Finished goods  466.79  395.15 

Work-in-progress  1,055.89  897.45 

Total  1,522.68  1,292.60 

Changes in inventories of work-in-progress and finished goods  (230.08)  (43.71)

32 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

(Amount in ` mn)

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March, 2022

For the year ended  
31 March, 2021

Salaries and wages  2,273.14  1,804.31 

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note  41 A)  96.73  75.96 

Gratuity expenses (Refer note 41 B)  40.93  39.79 

Employee stock compensation expense (Refer note 42)  79.89  -   

Staff welfare expenses  282.89  217.44 

Total  2,773.58  2,137.50 

33 FINANCE COSTS

(Amount in ` mn)

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March, 2022

For the year ended  
31 March, 2021

Interest Cost

	 Banks and Financial institutions  408.55  335.24 

	 Others  45.25  92.83 

Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs  6.73  4.06 

Interest on obligations under lease  49.60  41.80 

Total  510.13  473.93 

34 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

(Amount in ` mn)

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March, 2022

For the year ended  
31 March, 2021

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  1,091.28  930.36 

Depreciation of right-of-use asset  94.52  79.56 

Amortisation of intangible assets  11.23  6.84 

Total  1,197.03  1,016.76 
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35 OTHER EXPENSES 

(Amount in ` mn)

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March, 2022

For the year ended  
31 March, 2021

Contract labour charges  951.73  771.14 

Freight outward  228.55  168.15 

Legal and professional (Refer note 38 and note 40)  100.62  71.14 

Rates and taxes  83.83  45.77 

Repairs and maintenance

	 Buildings  132.45  103.51 

	 Computers  60.34  51.93 

	 Vehicles  35.85  25.74 

Rent  10.41  3.08 

Traveling and conveyance  33.23  20.45 

Insurance  67.80  54.65 

Printing and Stationery  7.80  5.56 

Communication expenses  7.94  8.69 

Security charges  52.49  44.97 

Selling and advertisement  5.61  1.43 

Corporate social responsibility  34.68  29.53 

Insurance claim receivable written off  -    11.26 

Bank charges  19.56  21.55 

Allowance for credit losses  9.02  -   

Miscellaneous  43.07  28.25 

Total  1,884.98  1,466.80 

36 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year available to the shareholders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the 
profit for the year available to the shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year, after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The details are as follows:

(Amount in ` mn except no. of shares)

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March, 2022

For the year ended  
31 March, 2021

Profit available to shareholders for calculation of basic and diluted earnings 
per share A

1,304.52 1,079.86

Nominal value of equity shares (` per share) 2 2

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of basic earnings 
per share B

5,16,27,573 5,13,77,850

Basic earnings per share (in `) A/B 25.27 21.02

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of diluted earnings 
per share C

5,35,45,027 5,25,51,625

Diluted earnings per share (in `) A/C 24.36 20.55
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Computation of weighted average number of shares

(Amount in ` mn except no. of shares)
Particulars For the year ended  

31 March, 2022
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021
Weighted average number of equity shares 5,13,77,850 4,69,36,500
Weighted average number of Series A Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 
(CCPS)

- 44,39,900

Weighted average number of Series B Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 
(CCPS)

- 1,450

Weighted average number of Shares issued under Employee Stock Option 2,49,723 -
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of basic earnings per 
share

5,16,27,573 5,13,77,850

Add: Impact of potentially dilutive equity shares:
Weighted average number of Shares issued under Employee Stock Option 19,17,454 11,73,775
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of diluted earnings per 
share

5,35,45,027 5,25,51,625

37 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)

Particulars As at   
31 March, 2022

As at   
31 March, 2021

Contingent liabilities #
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts:
Excise duty, entry tax and service tax matters (Refer note A i)  50.38  80.35 
Income tax matters (Refer note A ii)  11.95  11.98 
Commitments ##
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 
not provided for

 742.89  398.56 

Note A: Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timings of cash 
flows, if any, in respect of the above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various forums/
authorities. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for wherever 
required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its consolidated financial statements. The Group does not 
expect the outcomes of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial position.

(i)	� Relating to demand for service tax on labour charges, refund granted on service tax paid under reverse charge mechanism 
(RCM), disallowance of Excise duty rebate, disallowance of Input Tax Credit (ITC) on Value Added Tax (VAT) etc.,

(ii)	� Relating to disallowance of certain expenses, additional depreciation, non-consideration of MAT (Minimum Alternate Tax) 
credit and non consideration of Tax Deducted at Source (TDS). 

# The Honourable Supreme Court of India, in the month of February 2019 had passed a judgement relating to definition of wages 
under the Provident Fund Act, 1952. The Management is of the view that there are interpretative challenges on the application of 
the judgement retrospectively. Based on the legal advice and in the absence of reliable measurement of the provision for earlier 
periods, the Group has made a provision of ` 0.58 mn for provident fund contribution pursuant to the judgement in the year 
2018-2019 from the date of Order of the Honourable Supreme Court of India. The Group will evaluate its position and update 
its provision, if required, on receiving further clarity on the subject. The Group does not expect any material impact of the same.

## As disclosed in note 4, the Company has invested in Clean Max Vega Power LLP (i.e., power producer) and entered into an 
energy supply agreement for a period of 25 years with lock in period of 5 years. Pursuant to such energy supply agreement, the 
Company has committed to purchase atleast 51% of the total power produced by the power producer.

The Group does not have any other material commitments.
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38 AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION (INCLUDED IN LEGAL AND PROFESSIONAL, NET OF TAXES) *

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars For the year ended  

31 March, 2022
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021
Statutory audit fees  5.25  3.80 
Statutory audit fees - Erstwhile auditor  -    0.59 
Limited Review  1.45  -   
Tax audit fees  0.40  0.30 
Tax audit fees - Erstwhile auditor  -    0.04 
Certifications  0.15  -   
Total  7.25  4.73 
* Excludes ` 11.85 mn (31 March, 2021: Nil) towards services rendered in connection with Initial Public Offering.

39 TAX EXPENSE

A.	 Amounts recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars For the year ended  

31 March, 2022
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021
Current tax (a)
Current year  427.85  303.87 
Changes in estimates related to prior years  7.65  -   
Deferred tax (b)
Attributable to -
Origination and reversal of temporary differences  29.29  58.98 
Income tax expense reported in the consolidated statement of profit and loss 
(a+b)

 464.79  362.85 

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
Deferred taxes
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans  6.45  (6.59)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations  (11.36)  13.32 
Income tax reported in other comprehensive income  (4.91)  6.73 
B.	 Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other comprehensive income into
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  6.45  (6.59)
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  (11.36)  13.32 
Total  (4.91)  6.73 

C.	� Reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the 
income before income taxes is summarised below:

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Profit before tax  1,783.68  1,461.45 
Tax using the Group’s domestic tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Computed expected tax expense  448.95  367.85 
Effect of:
Non-deductible expenses  8.76  7.29 
Incremental tax expense on completion of assessment for earlier years  8.63  (4.44)
Difference in tax rates of foreign operations  -    (13.19)
Tax exempt income (4.76)  -   
Others 3.21  5.34 
Income tax expense  464.79  362.85 
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D.	 Movement in temporary differences

Particulars Balance as at  
1 April, 2021 
Net deferred 

tax asset/
(liabilities)

Recognised 
in profit and 
loss during 

2021-22

Recognised 
in OCI during 

2021-22

Balance as at  
31 March, 2022 

Net deferred 
tax asset/

(liabilities)
Property, plant and equipment  (671.46)  (25.96)  -    (697.42)
Provision for employee benefits  60.86  (5.32)  (6.45)  49.52 
Security deposit  1.06  2.75  -    3.81 
Allowance for credit losses  4.58  2.27  -    6.85 
On fair valuation of quoted investments  (1.40)  (0.10)  -    (1.50)
Others  2.59  2.80  -    5.39 
Derivative contracts  (9.70)  (1.92)  -    (11.62)
Right-of-use assets, net of lease liabilities (Ind AS 116)  8.81  1.03  -    9.84 
Exchange difference on foreign operations  (13.32)  -    11.36  (1.96)
On Intangibles  -    (4.84)  -    (4.84)
Total  (617.98)  (29.29)  4.91  (641.93)

Particulars Balance as at  
1 April, 2020 
Net deferred 

tax asset/
(liabilities)

Recognised 
in profit and 
loss during 

2020-21

Recognised 
in OCI during 

2020-21

Balance as at  
31 March, 2021 

Net deferred 
tax asset/

(liabilities)
Property, plant and equipment  (633.67)  (37.79)  -    (671.46)
Provision for employee benefits  57.69  (3.42)  6.59  60.86 
Security deposit  2.12  (1.06)  -    1.06 
Allowance for credit losses  4.58  -    -    4.58 
On fair valuation of quoted investments  (0.89)  (0.51)  -    (1.40)
Others  9.66  (7.07)  -    2.59 
Derivative contracts  5.01  (14.71)  -    (9.70)
Right-of-use assets, net of lease liabilities (Ind AS 116)  7.31  1.50  -    8.81 
Exchange difference on foreign operations  -    -    (13.32)  (13.32)
On Intangibles  (4.08)  4.08  -    -   
Total  (552.27)  (58.98)  (6.73)  (617.98)

E.	 Amendment to Ind AS 12 Income Taxes: Appendix C - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

This Appendix addresses how to recognise and measure deferred and current income tax assets and liabilities where there is 
uncertainty over a tax treatment. Based on the evaluation carried out on the outstanding litigations (Refer Note 37), the Group 
has determined that there will not be any significant impact on the financial statements on account of this Appendix.
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40 RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

A.	 Significant Shareholders

	 Client Ebene Limited

	 CVCIGPII Employee Ebene Limited

B.	 Trust in which the Director is a trustee

	 Sansera Foundation

C.	 Key managerial personnel

	 S Sekhar Vasan - Chairman and Managing Director

	 F R Singhvi - Joint Managing Director

	 B R Preetham - Chief Executive Officer

	 Vikas Goel - Chief Financial Officer

	 Rajesh Kumar Modi - Company Secretary

	 Muthuswamy Lakshminarayan - Independent Director

	 Revathy Ashok - Independent Director

	 Bilaine Sylvain - Independent Director

D.	 Close members of key managerial personnel’s family

	 Lalitha Singhvi

	 Praveen Singhvi

	 Lata Singhvi

	 Jayaraj Singhvi

	 Tara Singhvi

	 Indira Singhvi

E.	 The following is the summary of related party transactions

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars For the year ended  

31 March, 2022
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021
Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
Sansera Foundation  33.98  20.32 
IPO expenses incurred (to be reimbursed by the shareholders) #
S. Sekhar Vasan  59.52  -   
F R Singhvi  5.79  -   
Lalitha Singhvi  1.77  -   
Praveen Singhvi  1.79  -   
Lata Singhvi  1.79  -   
Jayaraj Singhvi  1.79  -   
Tara Singhvi  1.79  -   
Indira Singhvi  1.79  -   
Unni Rajagopal K  16.52  -   
Devappa Devaraj  16.52  -   
Client Ebene Limited  95.45  -   
CVCIGP II Employee Ebene Limited  53.46  -   
Managerial Remuneration*
S Sekhar Vasan  14.89  7.45 
F R Singhvi  14.89  7.45 
B R Preetham  16.39  11.47 
Vikas Goel  16.31  11.80 
Rajesh Kumar Modi  4.30  3.46 
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(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars For the year ended  

31 March, 2022
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021
Legal and Professional Charges- Fixed Commission
Muthuswamy Lakshminarayan  1.20  0.60 
Revathy Ashok  1.20  0.60 
Bilaine Sylvain  1.20  0.53 
Legal and Professional Charges- Sitting fees
Muthuswamy Lakshminarayan  0.30  0.11 
Revathy Ashok  0.33  0.16 
Bilaine Sylvain  0.19  0.15 
Conversion of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) 
Client Ebene Limited  5.69  -   
CVCIGPII Employee Ebene Limited  3.19  -   

	� * Excludes contribution to employee retirement/post retirement and other employee benefits which are based on actuarial 
valuation done on an overall Company basis.

F.	 The balances receivable from and payable to related parties are:

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars As at 

31 March, 2022
As at 

31 March, 2021
IPO expenses recoverable from shareholders #
S Sekhar Vasan  0.42  11.24 
F R Singhvi  0.05  -   
Lalitha Singhvi  0.01  0.33 
Praveen Singhvi  0.01  0.56 
Lata Singhvi  0.01  0.56 
Jayaraj Singhvi  0.01  0.56 
Tara Singhvi  0.01  0.56 
Indira Singhvi  0.01  0.56 
Unni Rajagopal  0.12  3.12 
Devappa Devaraj  0.11  2.51 
Devappa Devaraj on behalf of D. Devaraj HUF  -    0.61 
Client Ebene Limited  1.74  47.18 
CVCIGP II Employee Ebene Limited  0.97  26.42 
Loan to key managerial personnel
B R Preetham  3.88  3.88 
Payable to Directors
S. Sekhar Vasan  12.86  12.87 
F R Singhvi  -    1.94 
Receivable from Director
F R Singhvi  0.36  -   

	� # The Company’s  equity  shares  have  been listed  on National  Stock  Exchange  (“NSE”)  and on  BSE  Limited  (“BSE” )  on 
24 September, 2021, by completing the Initial Public Offering (IPO) of 17,244,328  equity  Shares of face value of ` 2 each at an 
issue price of ` 744 per equity share, consisting of an offer for sale of  17,244,328 equity shares by the selling shareholders. 
For the purpose of IPO, during the current financial year,  the Company has incurred a cost of ` 257.98 mn (31 March, 2021: 
Nil). As per the arrangement with the related selling shareholders, the aforesaid expenditure is required to be borne by the 
respective selling shareholders. Outstanding cost recoverable as at 31 March, 2022 is ` 3.47 mn (31 March, 2021: ` 94.21 mn).

	 Terms and conditions:

	 All transactions with related parties are unsecured.
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41 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
 A	 Defined contribution plan	

	� The Group has defined contribution plan. Contributions are made to the Provident fund for employees at the specified rate 
of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government. 
The obligation of the Group is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive 
obligation.

(Amount in ` mn)

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March, 2022

For the year ended  
31 March, 2021

Employer contribution to Provident fund, including admin charges  82.40  63.51 

Employer contribution to Employee state insurance scheme  14.13  10.44 

Employer contribution to Labour Welfare Fund  0.20  2.01 

B	 Defined benefit plans

	� The Group sponsors funded defined benefit plans for qualifying employees. The defined benefit plans are administered by 
a separate Fund that is legally separated from the entity. The benefit vests upon completion of five years of continuous 
service and once vested it is payable to employees on retirement (Age of 58 years) or on termination of employment. In 
case of death while in service, the gratuity is payable irrespective of vesting. The Group makes annual contribution to the 
Fund. 

	 The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan as required under Ind AS 19 “Employee benefits”:

	 a)	 Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligations

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars As at   

31 March, 2022
As at   

31 March, 2021
Defined benefit obligations at the beginning of the year 357.37 293.57
Current service cost 28.92 29.37
Interest Expense 24.07 19.79
Benefits paid  (12.77)  (9.02)
Actuarial (gains) / losses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income:
	 Changes in financial assumptions  (16.07)  -   
	 Experience adjustments  (2.87)  23.66 
Defined benefit obligations at the end of the year  378.65  357.37 

	 b)	 Reconciliation of present value of plan assets

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars As at   

31 March, 2022
As at   

31 March, 2021
Plan assets at the beginning of the year  178.79  145.97 
Interest income  12.06  9.37 
Contributions paid into the plan  80.01  32.47 
Return on plan assets recognised in Other Comprehensive Income  6.70  (2.74)
Benefits paid  (10.45)  (6.28)
Plan assets at the end of the year  267.11  178.79 
Net defined benefit liability (a-b)  111.54  178.58 
Non-current  82.23  151.83 
Current  29.31  26.75 
 Total  111.54  178.58 
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c)	 Expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars For the year ended  

31 March, 2022
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021
Current service cost  28.92  29.37 
Interest expense  24.07  19.79 
Interest income  (12.06)  (9.37)
Total  40.93  39.79 

d)	 Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars For the year ended  

31 March, 2022
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021
Actuarial (gain)/loss on account of experience adjustments  (2.87)  23.20 
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from change in financial assumptions  (16.07)  -   
Return on plan assets recognised in other comprehensive income  (6.70)  2.74 
Total  (25.64)  25.94 
Total cost recognised in the statement of profit and loss, including other 
comprehensive income (c+d)

 15.29  65.73 

e)	 Actuarial assumptions

	� The following table sets out the status of the Gratuity scheme and the amount recognised in the financial statements as 
per the Actuarial Valuation done by an Independent Actuary. These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks 
such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is 
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. 
When there is a deep market for such bonds; if the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create 
a plan deficit.

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate 
of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life 
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries 
of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s 
liability.

In respect of the above plans, the most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
were carried out as at 31 March, 2022 by an independent member firm of the Institute of Actuaries of India. The present 
value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the 
projected unit credit method.	

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuations were as follows:
(Amount in ` mn)

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March, 2022

For the year ended  
31 March, 2021

Discount rate 7.20% 6.75%
Salary increase** 5.00% 4%-5% *
Mortality Rate 100% of IALM 2012-

14
100% of IALM 2012-

14
Retirement age  58 years  58 years 
Withdrawal Rate 4.00% 4.00%

	 *  Salary increment for the financial year ended 31 March, 2021 was considered as 0% due to COVID-19 effect.

	� **The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion 
and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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f)	 Sensitivity Analysis

	� Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions 
constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars For the year ended  

31 March, 2022
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (1% movement)  346.21  (333.37)  325.42  (394.32)
Future salary growth (1% movement)  416.43  (275.09)  394.64  (324.61)
Withdrawal rate (1% movement)  384.95  (299.05)  362.38  (351.57)

	� Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide 
an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

	 The expected future contribution and estimated future benefit payments from the fund are as follows:

(Amount in ` mn)
Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis): For the year ended  

31 March, 2022
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021
1 year  29.31  26.75 
2 to 5 years  112.82  93.28 
6 to 10 years  167.56  153.07 
More than 10 years  516.85  472.11 

g)	 Asset liability matching strategies

	� The Group has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on-year cash accumulation plan in which the interest 
rate is declared on yearly basis and is guaranteed for a period of one year. The insurance company, as part of the policy 
rules, makes payment of all gratuity liability occurring during the year (subject to sufficiency of funds under the policy). 
The policy, thus, mitigates the liquidity risk. However, being a cash accumulation plan, the duration of assets is shorter 
compared to the duration of liabilities. Thus, the Group is exposed to movement in interest rate (in particular, the significant 
fall in interest rates, which should result in a increase in liability without corresponding increase in the asset).

h)	� The Group has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity to the employees. Every year, the insurance 
company carries out a funding valuation based on the latest employee data provided by the group. Any deficit in the assets 
arising as a result of such valuation is funded by the Group.

42 EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS
The Company has a share option scheme for the permanent employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. In accordance with 
the terms of the plan, as approved by shareholders, permanent employees may be granted options to purchase equity shares.

Each employee share option converts into one equity share of the Company on exercise. No amounts are paid or payable by the 
recipient on receipt of the option. The options carry neither rights to dividends nor voting rights. Options may be exercised at any 
time from the date of vesting to the date of their expiry as per ESOP Schemes.

(a)	 Sansera Employee Stock Option Plan 2015

	� On 12 March, 2015, the Board of Directors of the Company approved “Sansera Employee Stock Option Plan 2015” (“the 
Plan”) for grant of stock options to the employees of the Company and its subsidiaries which was further ratified by 
the shareholders on 13 April, 2015 Further, the ESOP 2015 has been amended pursuant to resolutions passed by the 
Shareholders on 3 August, 2018, 2 June, 2021 and 31 August, 2021, respectively. The vested options can be exercised by 
the option holder and the shares can be allotted by the Board/Committee as specified in the Plan. The plans are as follows:

	 Program 1: Key management group

	� Options under this program are granted to certain employees at an exercise price of ` 0.14 per option. The entire stock 
options are completely vested.

	� The following reconciles the outstanding share options granted under employee share option plan at beginning and at the 
end of financial year:
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Particulars As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021
Number of 

Options
Weighted 

average exercise 
price in `

Number of 
Options

Weighted 
average exercise 

price in `
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 11,73,775 0.14 11,73,775 0.14
Granted during the year - - - -
Exercised during the year 1,75,000 0.14 - -
Forfeited during the year - - - -
Lapsed during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 9,98,775 0.14 11,73,775 0.14
Vested at the end of the year 9,98,775 0.14 11,73,775 0.14
Exercisable at the end of the year 9,98,775 0.14 - -

	 Program 2: Certain identified employees

	� Options under this program are granted to certain employees at an exercise price of ` 135.20 per option. Stock options 
issued carries different vesting periods, it ranges from 25 to 100 percent vesting of total options granted by the end of every 
one year from the grant date.  All stock options shall be fully vested by the end of 4 years from the grant date.

Particulars As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021
Number of 

Options
Weighted 

average exercise 
price in `

Number of 
Options

Weighted 
average exercise 

price in `

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 11,88,275 135.20 13,36,900 135.20
Granted during the year* 1,48,625 135.20 - -
Exercised during the year 6,02,965 135.20 - -
Forfeited during the year - - - -
Lapsed during the year - - - -
Surrendered during the year - - 1,48,625 135.20
Outstanding at the end of the year 7,33,935 135.20 11,88,275 135.20
Vested at the end of the year 7,33,935 135.20 11,88,275 135.20
Exercisable at the end of the year 7,33,935 135.20 - -

	� * The options granted during the year have been vested over the period of one year from the date of grant.

	� During the year ended 31 March, 2022, shares were exercised on 29 October, 2021 and March 25, 2022. The share price on 
the date of exercise was ` 707.40 and ` 563.15 respectively.

	 Measurement of fair values

	� Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model is used to value the fair value of the stock options. The fair value of the options and 
the inputs used in the measurement of the grant-date fair values of the equity-settled share based payment plans are as 
follows:

Particulars Share option plans
Program 1:  

Key Management Group
Program 2: 

Certain Identified 
Employees

Program 2: 
Certain Identified 

Employees
Grant date 29 April, 2015 29 April, 2015 01 April, 2021
Fair value at grant date 103.39 55.25 273.21
Share price at grant date 103.48 103.48 396.60
Exercise price 0.14 135.20 135.20
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 49.20% 49.20% 31.30%
Method used to determine expected volatility Expected volatility has been calculated based on volatility of the 

comparable company stock prices.
Expected term (in years) 6.50 6.50 2.00
Risk free interest rate 7.90% 7.90% 4.52%
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(b)	 Sansera Employee Stock Option Plan 2018

	� The Company, pursuant to resolution passed by its shareholders dated 8 August, 2018 has adopted “Sansera Employee 
Stock Option Plan 2018” (“the Plan”). Further, the ESOP 2018 has been amended pursuant to resolutions passed by the 
Board of Directors on 19 April, 2021 and  22 August, 2021 and Shareholders on 2 June, 2021 and 31 August, 2021. The 
aggregate number of options, which may be issued under ESOP 2018, shall be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration  
Committee  and shall not exceed such number of options which  represents 2.50% shareholding in the Company on a fully 
diluted  basis as on the date of this plan. The plans are as follows:

	� Options under this program are granted to certain employees at an exercise price of ` 744 per option. Stock options issued 
carry different vesting periods. It ranges from 25 to 100 percent vesting of total options granted by the end of every one 
year from the grant date.  All stock options shall be fully vested by the end of 4 years from the grant date.

	� The following reconciles the outstanding share options granted under employee share option plan at beginning and at the 
end of financial year:

Particulars As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021

Number of 
Options

Weighted 
average exercise 

price in `

Number of 
Options

Weighted 
average exercise 

price in `

Outstanding at the beginning of the year - - - -

Granted during the year 8,08,327 744.00 - -

Exercised during the year - - - -

Forfeited during the year - - - -

Lapsed during the year - - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year 8,08,327 744.00 - -

Vested at the end of the year - - -

Exercisable at the end of the year - - - -

Measurement of fair values

Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model is used to value the fair value of the stock options. The fair value of the options and 
the inputs used in the measurement of the grant-date fair values of the equity-settled share based payment plans are as 
follows:

Particulars Share option plan

Grant date 22-Sep-21

Fair value at grant date (Average) 200.72

Share price at grant date 744.00

Exercise price 744.00

Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) (Average) 26.68%

Expected term (in years) (Average) 3.50

Method used to determine expected volatility The expected volatility has 
been calculated based on 

historic volatility of Auto Index

Risk free interest rate (Average) 5.02%
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43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accounting classification and fair value	

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels 
in the fair value hierarchy.

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars Carrying amount Fair value

31 March, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investment in equity shares  110.90  5.97  -    104.93 
Derivative contracts at fair value  6.13  -    6.13  -   
Total  117.03  5.97  6.13  104.93 
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Loans  40.87  -    -    -   
Other non-current financial assets  287.95  -    -    -   
Trade receivables  4,085.64  -    -    -   
Cash and cash equivalents  383.44  -    -    -   
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above  119.84  -    -    -   
Other current financial assets  195.56  -    -    -   
Total  5,113.30  -    -    -   
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Non-current borrowings  2,335.04  -    -    -   
Current borrowings  4,116.40  -    -    -   
Lease liabilities  1,013.14  -    -    -   
Trade payables  2,652.97  -    -    -   
Other financial liabilities  121.83  -    -    -   
Total  10,239.38  -    -    -   

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars Carrying amount Fair value

31 March, 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investment in equity shares  42.51  5.58  -    36.93 
Derivative contracts at fair value  38.54  -    38.54  -   
Total  81.05  5.58  38.54  36.93 
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Loans  38.41 
Other non-current financial assets  289.48  -    -    -   
Trade receivables  3,129.83  -    -    -   
Cash and cash equivalents  365.00  -    -    -   
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above  286.42  -    -    -   
Other current financial assets  155.01  -    -    -   
Total  4,264.15  -    -    -   
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Non-current borrowings  1,876.52  -    -    -   
Current borrowings  3,606.04  -    -    -   
Lease liabilities  921.16  -    -    -   
Trade payables  2,270.46  -    -    -   
Other financial liabilities  182.95  -    -    -   
Total  8,857.13  -    -    -   
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Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. 
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). The derivative contracts are valued using market approach, determined using 
forward exchange rates as at the balance sheet date.

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The group has not disclosed the fair value of financial instruments such as other non-current financial assets, trade receivables, 
cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, other current financial assets, loans, borrowings, other non-current financial 
liabilities, trade payables and other current financial liabilities because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation 
of fair value.

The majority of costs and incomes are denominated in local currencies, which is not impacted by currency exchange fluctuations. 
Some of the contracts with key export customers may not allow for price adjustments in the event of unfavourable currency 
exchange rate developments. Global footprint exposes the Group to certain currency exchange risks, arising primarily from 
foreign currency receivables, import of raw materials and capital goods for operations, export of goods and  non-Indian rupee 
denominated borrowings. The Group hedges significant portion of the net foreign exchange exposure through forward contracts 
and non-Indian rupee denominated loans.

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group is exposed to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

- Market risk

(i)	 Risk management framework

	� The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk 
management framework. The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced 
by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management 
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, 
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control 
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

(ii)	 Credit risk

	� Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, 
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and 
from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and others, foreign exchange transactions and other financial 
instruments. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

	 Trade receivables

	� The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, 
management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk 
associated with the industry and country in which customers operate. In respect of trade receivables the Group performs 
credit assessment for customers on an annual basis and recognises credit risk on the basis of lifetime expected losses.

	 Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables:

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars As at  

31 March, 2022
As at  

31 March, 2021
Balance as at the beginning of the year  23.61  23.61 
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance on trade  (9.02)  -   
Balance at the end of the year  14.59  23.61 
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Security deposits, Other financial assets and Loans:

	 Expected credit loss for Security deposits, Other financial assets and Loans is as follows:

Particulars Year ended Assets of the 
Group

Estimated 
gross carrying 

amount at 
default

Expected 
probability 
of default

Expected 
credit 
losses

Carrying 
amount, net 

of impairment 
provision

Loss allowance measured at 
12 month expected credit loss: 
Financial assets for which credit 
risk has not increased significantly 
since initial recognition

31 March, 
2022

Security 
deposits

282.27 0%  -    282.27 

Other Financial 
Assets

201.69 0%  -    201.69 

Loans 40.87 0%  -    40.87 

	 Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances, fixed deposits and margin money with banks):

	� Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Group generally transacts with banks and others with high credit 
ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies.

(iii)	 Liquidity risk

	� Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to 
ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and 
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation .

	� The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross 
and undiscounted.

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars As at 31 March, 2022

Carrying 
amount

Total Less than 1 
year

1-2 years Above 2 
years

Non-current borrowings including current 
maturities

3,430.30 3,430.30 1,095.26 1,031.30 1,303.74

Current borrowings 3,021.14 3,021.14 3,021.14 - -
Trade payables 2,652.97 2,652.97 2,652.97 - -
Other financial liabilities 121.83 121.83 121.83 - -
Lease liabilities 1,013.14 1,013.14 102.51 82.25 828.38

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars As at 31 March, 2021

Carrying 
amount

Total Less than 1 
year

1-2 years Above 2 
years

Non-current borrowings including current 
maturities

2,930.24 2,930.24 1,053.72 808.73 1,067.79

Current borrowings 2,552.32 2,552.32 2,552.32 - -
Trade payables 2,270.46 2,270.46 2,270.46 - -
Other financial liabilities 182.95 182.95 182.95 - -
Lease liabilities 921.16 921.16 110.88 107.49 702.79

(iv)	 Market risk

	� Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices. Market prices comprises interest rate risk and currency rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market 
risk include loans, borrowings, receivables and payables. The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, 
including effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rate movement.
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(v)	 Interest rate risk
	� Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change 

in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to Group’s long 
term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

	 Exposure to interest rate risk
	 The exposure of the Group’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows :

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars As at  

31 March, 2022
As at  

31 March, 2021
Fixed rate instruments:
Financial liabilities  304.93  466.14 
Variable rate instruments:
Financial liabilities  6,146.51  5,016.42 
Fixed rate instruments exposed to interest rate risks  6,451.44  5,482.56 

	 Interest rate sensitivity: 
	 Sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments
	 There is no impact on the profit or loss on account of fixed rate instruments.
	 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
	� The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on exposure to interest rate. For floating rate liabilities, analysis 

is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole 
year. With all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate 
borrowings, as follows:

Particulars Currency Effect on profit before tax
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Increase of 100 basis points INR 61.47 50.16
Decrease in 100 basis points INR (61.47) (50.16)

(vi)	 Foreign currency risk
	� The Group is exposed to currency risk on certain transactions that are denominated in a currency other than the entity’s 

functional currency, hence exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise.  The risk is that the functional currency value of 
cash flows will vary as a result of movements in exchange rates. The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its 
currency risk, most with a maturity of less than one year from the reporting date.

	� Foreign currency (FC) risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group evaluates the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations by assessing its 
exposure to exchange rate risks. It hedges a part of these risks by using derivative financial instruments. The information 
on derivative instruments is as follows.

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars Currency 

Hedged
As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021

Amount in FC Amount in ` Amount in FC Amount in `
Forward contract (to hedge net 
receivables)

USD  10.93  828.05  12.36  903.27 

No. of Contracts  21  20 
Forward contract (to hedge net 
receivables)

EUR  4.65  391.20  8.75  750.31 

No. of Contracts  10  11 
Forward contract (to hedge net 
receivables)

EURUSD  -    -    1.80  154.35 

No. of Contracts  -    3 
Forward contract (to hedge borrowing) USD  -    -    7.69  561.99 
No. of Contracts  -    6 
Forward contract (to hedge borrowing) EURUSD  -    -    1.00  85.75 
No. of Contracts  -    2 
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to its operating activities when 
revenue and expense is denominated in a foreign currency.	
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The following table presents foreign currency risk from financial instruments as of:

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars Currency 

Hedged
As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021

Amount in FC Amount in ` Amount in FC Amount in `
Trade receivables USD  19.28  1,461.28  11.63  850.51 

EUR  11.42  961.79  9.54  817.96 
Cash and cash equivalents USD  0.76  57.60  0.22  15.91 

EUR  0.52  43.79  0.42  35.89 
Trade payables USD  0.36  27.29 0.38  27.97 

EUR  2.66  224.03 1.95  167.22 
JPY  -    -   39.31  25.99 
GBP  *  0.32 0.16  16.42 
CHF  0.01  0.82  -    -   

Borrowings USD  9.29  704.11  3.76  275.03 
EUR  -    -    0.18  15.01 

Sensitivity analysis

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars Percentage 

movement
Effect on profit before tax Effect on equity

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
31 March, 2022
USD 4%  31.50  (31.50)  23.57  (23.57)
EURO 2%  15.63  (15.63)  11.70  (11.70)
CHF 6%  0.05  (0.05)  -    -   
31 March, 2021
USD 2%  16.90  (16.90)  12.65  (12.65)
EURO 2%  20.15  (20.15)  15.08  (15.08)
JPY 4%  (1.30)  1.30  (0.97)  0.97 
GBP 2%  (1.15)  1.15  (0.86)  0.86 

	 * GBP 3,226 not presented above due to rounding off to nearest mn.

45 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain 
future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital employed.

The Group manages capital risk by maintaining sound/optimal capital structure through monitoring of financial ratios, such as 
debt-to-equity ratio and net borrowings-to-equity ratio and implements capital structure improvement plan when necessary.

The Group uses debt ratio as a capital management index and calculates the ratio as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt 
and total equity are based on the amounts stated in the financial statements.

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars As at  

31 March, 2022
As at  

31 March, 2021
Gross debt*  7,474.21  6,418.65 
Less : Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances  503.28  651.42 
Net debt (A)  6,970.93  5,767.23 
Total equity** (B)  10,353.16  8,887.41 
Debt ratio (A / B) 0.67 0.65
* Gross debt includes non-current borrowings, current borrowings, current maturities of long term debts, lease liabilities and 
accrued interest.

** Total equity incudes Equity share capital, instruments entirely equity in nature and other equity.
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46 CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES 
Reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the consolidated balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing 
activities:

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars Opening 

balance
Cash flows Non-cash 

movements
Closing 
balance

1 April, 2021 Proceeds Repayments Fair value 
changes

31 March, 
2022

Non-current borrowings  2,930.24  1,606.01  (1,099.93)  (6.02)  3,430.30 
Current borrowings *  2,552.32  464.91  -  3.91  3,021.13 
Total liabilities from financing activities  5,482.56  2,070.91  (1,099.93)  (2.11)  6,451.43 

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars Opening 

balance
Cash flows Non-cash 

movements
Closing 
balance

1 April, 2020 Proceeds Repayments Fair value 
changes

31 March, 
2020

Non-current borrowings  2,813.65  1,099.93  (979.92)  (3.42)  2,930.24 
Current borrowings *  3,554.12  -  (992.26)  (9.54)  2,552.32 
Total liabilities from financing activities  6,367.77  1,099.93  (1,972.18)  (12.96)  5,482.56 

* Current borrowings are disclosed net of proceeds/repayments.

47 SEGMENT REPORTING
Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment 
of segment performance focuses on the types of goods or services delivered or provided. The Group is in the business of 
manufacture and sale of automobile components, which in the context of Ind AS 108 ‘Segment Information’ represents single 
reportable business segment. The entire operations are governed by the same set of risk and returns. Accordingly, these 
operations represent a single segment. The revenues, total expenses and net profit as per the consolidated statement of profit 
and loss represents the revenue, total expenses and the net profit of the sole reportable segment.

(i)	 Geographical information

	� Geographic segmentation is based on business sourced from specific geographic regions. Other foreign countries 
comprises all other places except India, Europe and USA.

	 (a)	 Revenue from operations

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars For the year ended  

31 March, 2022
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021
India 12,895.32 10,173.04
Europe 4,498.95 3,753.41
USA 1,774.14 1,102.69
Other foreign countries 721.91 463.57
Total 19,890.32 15,492.71

(b)	 Non-current assets

(Amount in ` mn)
Particulars As at  

31 March, 2022
As at 

 31 March, 2021
India  12,546.02  10,815.83 
Other foreign countries  1,281.83  1,283.04 
Total  13,827.85  12,098.87 
Reconciling items:
Income tax assets  28.30  27.14 
Other non-current financial assets  408.60  335.57 
Total non-current assets  14,264.75  12,461.58 
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48 IMPAIRMENT 
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the cash generating units 
(CGU) or groups of CGU’s, which benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. The chief operating decision maker reviews the 
goodwill for any impairment at each entity level, which is represented as separated CGU’s.

The carrying value of goodwill, entity wise is as follows: 

(Amount in ` mn)
Entity acquired As at  

31 March, 2022
As at  

31 March, 2021
Fitwel Tools and Forgings Private Limited ('Fitwel')  146.72  146.72 
Sansera Sweden AB ('Sansera Sweden')  211.65  176.92 
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations  (6.12)  34.73 

 205.53  211.65 
Total carrying value  352.25  358.37 

The recoverable amount of a cash generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. For 
the purpose of impairment test, fair value of a CGU is determined based on the market capitalisation and the value in use 
is determined based on specific calculations. The recoverable amount of all CGU’s has been determined based on value in 
use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management 
covering a five-year period and an average of the range of each assumption mentioned below:

(Amount in ` mn)

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2022

As at  
31 March, 2021

Discount rate* 12% - 17% 12%-15%
Terminal growth rate ** 2% - 4% 2% - 4%
Operating margins 11%/16% - 15%/17% 4%/9% - 13%/16%

*These discount rate(s) are based on the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) of the Company. These estimates are likely 
to differ from future actual results of operations and cash flows.	

** The cash flow projections include specific estimates for five years and a terminal growth rate thereafter. The terminal 
growth rate has been determined based on management’s estimates of the long-term compound annual EBITDA growth rate, 
consistent with the assumptions that a market participant would make.	

The Group does its impairment evaluation on an annual basis and as of 31 March, 2022, the estimated recoverable amount of 
the CGU exceeded its carrying amount, hence impairment is not triggered. The Group has performed sensitivity analysis for 
all key assumptions, including the cash flow projections, consequent to the change in estimated future economic conditions 
arising from the possible effects due to COVID-19 and is unlikely to cause the carrying amount of the CGU exceed its estimated 
recoverable amount.

As of 31 March, 2022, the estimated recoverable amount of each of the CGU’s exceeded its carrying amount by ` 620.67 mn 
(Fitwel Tools and Forgings Private Limited) and ` 1,057.78 mn (Sansera Sweden AB), hence impairment is not triggered. The 
carrying amount of the CGU was computed by allocating the net assets to operating segments for the purpose of impairment 
testing.
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Interest in other entities

Subsidiary companies:

The consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Group includes subsidiary companies listed in the table below:

Name of the entity Country of 
incorporation

Ownership 
interest held 
by the group 

(%)

Ownership 
interest held 

by non-
controlling 

interest (%)

Ownership 
interest held 
by the group 

(%)

Ownership 
interest held 

by non-
controlling 

interest (%)
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Sansera Sweden AB Sweden 100%  - 100%  - 
Sansera Engineering Pvt. Ltd., Mauritius Mauritius 100%  - 100% -
Fitwel Tools and Forgings Private Limited India 70% 30% 70% 30%

50 The Group has considered various internal and external sources consisting of feedback from the customers and the 
market trends, up to the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements in determining the impact, if any, arising 
from the pandemic on various elements of its consolidated financial statements.  The Group has used the principles of 
prudence in applying judgments, estimates and assumptions and based on its current estimates, the Group expects 
to recover the carrying value of its financial and non-financial assets, including tangible assets and meet its financial 
obligations in the normal course of business. The eventual outcome of the possible impact of the pandemic may be 
different from that estimated as on the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements. The Group will 
continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions and consequential impact on its consolidated 
financial statements.

51 The Code on Social Security, 2020 (“the Code) which would impact the contributions by the Group towards Provident Fund 
and Gratuity has received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code have been published in the Gazette of India. 
However, the date from which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Group will complete its evaluation 
and will give appropriate impact in its consolidated financial Statements in the period in which the Code becomes effective 
and the related rules are published.	

52 Additional Regulatory Information:	
a)	� There are no transactions or balances with Companies which have been removed from the Register of Companies (Struck 

off Companies), during the year ended/as at 31 March, 2022.

b)	 The Group has not traded/invested in Cryptocurrency/Virtual currency.

c)	� The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

	 (i)	� directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

	 (ii)	 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

d)	� The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the 
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall

	 (i)	� directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

	 (ii)	 provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

e)	� The Group has no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed 
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other 
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022 (Contd.)
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53 The Board of Directors have recommended final dividend of ` 2 per equity share having face value of ` 2 each for the year 
ended 31 March, 2022, subject to approval of shareholders.

54 The Board of Directors of the Company have approved these Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company in their 
meeting held on 23 May, 2022.

for Sansera Engineering Limited
CIN: L34103KA1981PLC004542

S Sekhar Vasan F R Singhvi
Managing Director Joint Managing Director
DIN: 00361245 DIN: 00233146

B R Preetham Vikas Goel
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Rajesh Kumar Modi
Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 23 May, 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022 (Contd.)
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NOTICE is hereby given that the 40th Annual General 
Meeting of the members of Sansera Engineering Limited 
will be held on Thursday, August 18, 2022 at 11.00 a.m. (IST) 
through video conferencing (‘VC’)/Other Audio-Visual Means 
(‘OAVM’) facility to transact the following business(es):

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.	� To consider and adopt the audited standalone and 
consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2022 together with 
the Auditors’ and Board’s Report thereon.

2.	� To declare dividend of ` 2.00 per equity share for the 
year ended March 31, 2022.

3.	� To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Fatheraj Singhvi 
(DIN: 00233146) who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.	� TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE CERTAIN ARTICLES OF 
THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY.

	� To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following 
resolution as a Special Resolution:

	� “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 
thereunder, the Articles of Association of the Company, 
the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, as 
amended, the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended, (“SEBI LODR 
Regulations”), the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018 (“SEBI ICDR Regulations”), the 
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules 
and regulations made thereunder, and other applicable 
laws, rules and regulations, guidelines (including any 
statutory modification(s) thereof for the time being in 
force), the approval of the members of the Company 
be and is hereby accorded to approve Articles 43(f) 
and 43(g) of Part A and Article 18.3 and the associated 
definitions under Article 2.1 of Part B of the Articles of 
Association of the Company, as reproduced below:

	 Part A of the Articles of Association

	� Article 43 (f): Investor 1 i.e., Client Ebene Limited (CEL) 
right to appoint one nominee director on the Board.  
43(f): Investor 1 may nominate one director on the 
Board, provided that the Investor 1 holds at least 5% of 
the issued and paid-up capital on a fully diluted basis, 

NOTICE OF 40TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
who does not hold any executive position in any Person 
engaged in the Business, provided that if any Person 
holding non-executive position in any Person engaged 
in the Business, is appointed as an Investor Director, 
then such Person so appointed shall be required to be 
bound by suitable non-disclosure undertakings with 
respect to Confidential Information pertaining to the 
Company and the Subsidiaries, that may be received 
in connection with the appointment of such Person as 
an Investor Director. It is hereby clarified that Investor 2 
shall not have a right to appoint nominee directors on 
the Board, and

	� Article 43 (g): Promoters right to appoint two directors 
on the Board

	� 43(g): Promoters may nominate two directors on the 
Board, who shall be the representative of the Promoters 
on the Board, provided that the Promoters cumulatively 
hold at least 5% of the issued and paid-up capital on a 
fully diluted basis.

	 Part B of the Articles of Association

	� Article 18.3: Upside sharing arrangement inter-
se Investors (Client Ebene Limited and CVCIGP II 
Employee Ebene Limited) and Promoters of the 
Company.

	� 18.3: Each of the Investors agrees that following the 
provision of full cash exit to such Investor in compliance 
with the Transaction Documents, in the event that such 
Investor’s Inflows are (following payouts of employee 
incentives pursuant to the Shareholders Agreement) in 
excess of the Investor Benchmark Rate, such Investor 
agrees to share 30% of such excess of Inflows over 
the Investor Benchmark Rate with the Key Promoters 
(“Promoter Upside Entitlement”). The requirement to 
share the Promoter Upside Entitlement may be provided 
by such Investor at its sole discretion, either (a) by way 
of a cash payment, subject to withholding of applicable 
taxes; or (b) by any other method determined by the 
Investor that achieves the same commercial effect.

	� The method by which the payment of the Promoter 
Upside Entitlement shall be determined at the sole 
discretion of the Investors without diluting in any 
manner the Investors’ rights set out in these Articles.

SANSERA ENGINEERING LIMITED 
(CIN: L34103KA1981PLC004542)

Registered office: Plant-7, No.143/A, Jigani Link Road, Bommasandra Industrial Area, Anekal Taluk Bengaluru-560105, India
Phone No: +91 80-27839081/82/83; Fax No.+91 80 27839309  Email: rajesh.modi@sansera.in; Website: www.sansera.in
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	� Article 2.1: Associated definitions for the calculation 
of upside sharing arrangement

	� 2.1: 

	� “Inflows” means all amounts which received by an 
Investor, including, without limitation, any dividends or 
other distributions, repayments, redemptions, buybacks 
or interest received from the Company in respect of 
the Shares held by that Investor (including any shares 
into which those Shares have converted) and any 
proceeds from the sale of those Shares (or any shares 
into which those Shares have converted), and in each 
case as reduced by the amount of any Tax (including 
any surcharge, fees, interest, penalty or other amounts 
in relation to Tax) paid, payable, levied, withheld, 
accrued or provided for in relation to such Inflows under 
applicable regulations and in each case as reduced by 
the amount of expenses or costs incurred, accrued, 
paid, provided for or reimbursed by the Investor in 
relation to such Inflows. Provided that where Inflows are 
denominated in a currency other than US$, then such 
Inflows shall be converted into US$ at their respective 
actual exchange rate for an Investor and in case of any 
accruals or provisions therefor, the average exchange 
rate available on the website of the Reserve Bank of 
India, at the end of banking hours in India on the relevant 
calculation date. Provided further that for the purpose 
of this definition, the term Tax shall include all forms of 
taxes, levies, duties, charges, impost and withholding or 
other amount imposed by or payable to any tax authority 
in India or in countries other than India;

	� “Investor Benchmark Rate” means the US$ cash 
amount equal to the amount which when inserted in the 
calculation of IRR as the Inflows received at the relevant 
calculation date (where the relevant calculation date(s) 
is/are the date(s) of receipt of such Inflows received) 
would result in the Investors receiving the 25% IRR after 
taking in account:

	 (i)	� all Outflows for that Investor prior to and as at the 
relevant calculation date;

	 (ii)	� all Inflows for that Investor prior to the relevant 
calculation date; and

	 (iii)	� such part of the Inflows for that Investor as on the 
relevant calculation date as required for achieving 
the Investor Benchmark Rate;

	� “IRR” means as at the relevant calculation date, the 
internal rate of return per annum received by an Investor 
with respect to that Investor’s Outflows, calculated by 
applying the latest version of Microsoft Excel Version 
XIRR function to the Outflows and Inflows, in each case 
on the date upon which the cashflow was effected or 
in case of any Outflows or Inflows that have not yet 
occurred, the relevant calculation date, with returns 
calculated on a daily basis but compounded annually;

	� “Outflow” means all amounts comprising an Investor’s 
Investment Amount, being the US$ amount actually 
remitted by such Investor;

	� “Tax” means: (i) all forms of tax (direct and indirect), 
levy, duty (including stamp duties), charge, impost, 
withholding or other amount, whenever or wherever 
created or imposed by, or payable to any Tax Authority 
in India wherever payable on own account or in a 
representative capacity, including without limitation 
in relation to income, profits, gains, net wealth, asset 
values, turnover, expenditure, capital gains, withholding, 
employment, payroll, fringe benefits and franchise taxes 
(including surcharges and cess); and (ii) all charges, 
interest, penalties and fines incidental or relating to any 
Tax falling within (a) above or which arise as a result of 
the failure to pay any Tax on the due date or to comply 
with any obligation relating to Tax;

	� RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which expression 
shall also include any Committee duly constituted by the 
Board) of the Company be and is hereby authorised to 
do all such acts, deeds or things that may be necessary, 
proper and expedient to give effect to the aforesaid 
resolution.”

5.	� APPOINTMENT OF MR. SAMIR PURUSHOTTAM 
INAMDAR AS INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR AND FIXING 
OF REMUNERATION.

	� To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

	� “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, and applicable 
provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force, and the Articles of 
Association of the Company, Mr. Samir Purushottam 
Inamdar, DIN: 00481968, having Registration No. 
IDDB-DI-202201-040536 of Director in Independent 
Director’s Data Bank, and who was appointed as an 
Additional Independent Director upto the ensuing AGM 
by the Board of Directors with effect from May 23, 2022 
on recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee of the Board of Directors and in respect of 
whom notice under section 160 of the Act has been 
received from a member proposing his candidature 
for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as 
an Independent Director of the Company for a period 
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/ term of five (5) years from May 23, 2022 to May 22, 
2027 (both days inclusive) and whose office shall not be 
liable to retire by rotation.

	� RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Section 197, 
198 read with Schedule V of the Act and other applicable 
provisions, Mr. Samir Purushottam Inamdar, DIN: 
00481968, shall be entitled to receive fixed commission 
not exceeding ` 12.00 Lacs (Rupees Twelve Lacs only) 
per annum, plus sitting fees for attending the Board and 
Committee meetings during his tenure as Independent 
Director of the Company as may be determined by the 
Board from time to time.

	� RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which expression 
shall also include any Committee duly constituted by 
the Board) be and is hereby authorised to perform all 
such acts, deeds, matters or things and take all such 
steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give 
effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

6.	� RATIFICATION OF SANSERA ENGINEERING LIMITED 
EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN 2018.

	� To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following 
resolution as a Special Resolution:

	� “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 62 
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013, Rule 12 of the Companies (Share Capital 
and Debentures) Rules, 2014, Regulation 12 of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits And Sweat Equity) Regulations, 
2021, relevant provisions of the Securities and 
Exchange Board (Listing Obligations And Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, relevant provisions 
of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the 
Company, and subject further to such other approvals, 
permissions and sanctions as may be necessary and 
subject to such conditions and modifications as may be 
prescribed or imposed while granting such approvals, 
permissions and sanctions, consent of the members be 
and is hereby accorded to the ratification of the Sansera 
Engineering Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan 2018 
(the ESOP 2018) as aligned with the provisions of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits And Sweat Equity) Regulations, 
2021, which was originally approved by the members 
of the Company vide Special Resolution on August 
08, 2018 and amended on August 31, 2021 prior to 
initial public offer of shares of the Company, which 
now authorises the Board of Directors of the Company 
including duly constituted Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee exercising the powers conferred by the 
Board, to create, issue, offer, and grant such number 
of employee stock options to eligible employees of the 

Company, whether in India or overseas, determined 
in terms of ESOP 2018, from time to time, in one or 
more tranches as may be decided by the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and shall not exceed 
such number of options which represents 2.50% of 
shareholding in the Company on a fully diluted basis not 
exceeding 13,47,213 options.

	� RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the equity shares so issued 
as mentioned hereinbefore shall rank pari passu with 
the then existing equity shares of the Company in all 
respects including dividend.

	� RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of any corporate 
action (s) such as rights issues, bonus issues, split-
up, consolidation, merger and sale of division and 
others, if any additional equity shares that are issued 
by the Company for the purpose of making a fair and 
reasonable adjustment to the options granted earlier, 
the above ceiling of options/ equity shares shall be 
deemed to be adjusted accordingly without affecting 
any rights or obligations of the grantees.

	� RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company shall 
conform to the accounting policies prescribed from 
time to time under the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Share Based Employee Benefits And Sweat 
Equity) Regulations, 2021 and any other applicable laws 
and regulations to the extent relevant and applicable to 
ESOP 2018.

	� RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board including duly 
constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
of the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised 
on behalf of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things and to sign deeds, documents, letters 
and such other papers as may be necessary, desirable 
and expedient, as it may in its absolute discretion deem 
fit or necessary or desirable for such purpose including 
giving effect to this resolution with power on behalf 
of the Company to settle any questions, difficulties or 
doubts that may arise in this regard.

7.	� RATIFICATION TO EXTEND BENEFITS OF SANSERA 
ENGINEERING LIMITED – EMPLOYEE STOCK 
OPTION PLAN 2018 (ESOP 2018) TO EMPLOYEES OF 
SUBSIDIARY COMPANY(IES) OF THE COMPANY

	� To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following 
resolution as a Special Resolution:

	� “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 62 
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013, Rule 12 of the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debentures) Rules, 2014, Regulation 12 of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee 
Benefits And Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, relevant 
provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board (Listing 
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Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, relevant provisions of the Memorandum and 
Articles of Association of the Company, and subject 
further to such other approvals, permissions and 
sanctions as may be necessary and subject to such 
conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or 
imposed while granting such approvals, permissions 
and sanctions, consent of the members be and is hereby 
accorded to extend the benefits of Sansera Engineering 
Limited – Employee Stock Option Plan 2018 (ESOP 
2018) including the issuance of Options and shares 
thereunder to and for the benefit of eligible permanent 
employees of any existing or future Subsidiary(ies) of 
the Company and its director(s), whether whole time 
director or not but excluding independent directors, 
whether working in India or outside India but does not 
include an employee who is a promoter or a person 
belonging to the promoter group or a director(s) who 
either himself or through his relative or through any 
body corporate, directly or indirectly, holds more than 
10% of the outstanding equity shares of the Company 
(Sansera Engineering Limited).

	� RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the equity shares so issued 
as mentioned hereinbefore shall rank pari passu with 
the then existing equity shares of the Company in all 
respects including dividend.

	� RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of any corporate 
action (s) such as rights issues, bonus issues, split-
up, consolidation, merger and sale of division and 
others, if any additional equity shares that are issued 
by the Company for the purpose of making a fair and 
reasonable adjustment to the options granted earlier, 
the above ceiling of options/ equity shares shall be 
deemed to be adjusted accordingly without affecting 
any rights or obligations of the grantees.

	� RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company shall 
conform to the accounting policies prescribed from 
time to time under the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Share Based Employee Benefits And Sweat 
Equity) Regulations, 2021 and any other applicable laws 
and regulations to the extent relevant and applicable to 
ESOP 2018.

	� RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board including duly 
constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
of the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised 
on behalf of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things and sign deeds, documents, letters 
and such other papers as may be necessary, desirable 
and expedient, as it may in its absolute discretion deem 

fit or necessary or desirable for such purpose including 
giving effect to this resolution with power on behalf 
of the Company to settle any questions, difficulties or 
doubts that may arise in this regard.”

8.	� RATIFICATION OF REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO M/S. 
RAO, MURTHY AND ASSOCIATES, BENGALURU, COST 
AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY.

	� To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	� “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 
148 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 or any statutory modification 
or re-enactment thereof, the Company ratifies the 
remuneration of ` 3,00,000/- (Rupees Three Lacs only) 
plus applicable taxes, conveyance and reimbursement 
of out of pocket expenses incurred in connection 
with the cost audit payable to M/s. Rao, Murthy and 
Associates, Bengaluru (having Firm Registration No. 
000065), appointed as Cost Auditor of the Company by 
the Board of Directors of the Company on May 23, 2022 
for the financial year 2022-23 upon recommendation of 
the audit committee of the Company.

	� RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which expression 
shall also include any Committee duly constituted by the 
Board) of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do 
all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary for 
the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

9.	� CREATION OF CHARGE ON THE ASSETS OF THE 
COMPANY.

	� To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following 
resolution as a Special Resolution:

	� “RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the earlier 
resolutions passed by the shareholders if any and 
pursuant to terms of Section 180 (1) (a) and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 
(including any amendments thereto or re-enactment 
thereof, for the time being in force) read with relevant 
Rules thereof and the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company and subject to such other 
approvals and permissions as may be required, consent 
of the members be and is hereby accorded to the 
Company, to sell, mortgage and / or charge, in addition 
to the mortgages / charges created / to be created 
by the Company in such form and manner and with 
such ranking and at such time and on such terms and 
conditions as may be determined, on all or any of the 
movable and / or immovable properties of the Company, 
and / or the interest held by the Company in all or any 
of the movable and / or immovable properties, both 
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present and future and / or the whole or any part of the 
undertaking(s) of the Company, together with the power 
to take over the management of business and concern 
of the Company in certain events of default, in favour 
of lender(s), agent(s), and trustee(s) for securing the 
borrowings of the Company availed / to be availed by way 
of loan(s) (in foreign currency and / or rupee currency) 
and securities (comprising fully / partly convertible 
debentures and / or non-convertible debentures with 
or without detachable or non-detachable warrants 
and / or secured premium notes and / or floating rate 
notes / bonds or other debt instruments), issued / to 
be issued by the Company, from time to time, not 
exceeding ` 1,200.00 Crores (Rupees One Thousand 
Two Hundred Crores Only) from the existing limits 
of ` 1,000 Crores (Rupees One Thousand Crores 
Only), from time to time, together with interest at the 
respective agreed rates, additional interest, compound 
interest in case of default, accumulated interest, 
liquidated damages, commitment charges, premium 
on prepayment, remuneration of the agent(s) and / or 
trustee(s), premium (if any) on redemption, all other 
costs, charges and expenses, including any increase 
as a result of devaluation / revaluation / fluctuation in 
the rates of exchange and all other monies payable by 
the Company in terms of the Loan Agreement(s), Heads 
of Agreement(s), Debenture Trust Deed(s) or any other 
agreement /document, entered into / to be entered into 
between the Company and the lender(s) / investor(s) 
/ agent(s) and / or trustee(s), in respect of the said 

loans, borrowings / debentures and containing such 
specific terms and conditions and covenants in respect 
of enforcement of security as may be stipulated in that 
behalf and agreed to between the Company and the 
lender(s), agent(s) and / or trustee(s).

	� RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. S. Sekhar Vasan, 
Chairman & Managing Director (DIN: 00361245) or 
Mr. Fatheraj Singhvi, Joint Managing Director (DIN: 
00233146) of the Company be and is hereby severally 
authorised to finalise and settle with the Lenders, the 
terms and conditions of such mortgage or charge and 
execute such documents/deeds/writings/papers/
agreements for creation of the aforesaid mortgage 
and charge and to do all such acts, deeds, matters 
and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem 
necessary, proper and desirable and to settle any 
question, difficulty or doubt that may arise with regard 
to creating mortgages/charges as aforesaid and as 
may be required to give effect to the above resolution.

	 Registered Office: 		  By Order of the Board
	 Plant 7, No. 143/A, 		  Sansera Engineering Limited
	 Jigani Link Road, 		  Sd/-
	 Bommasandra Industrial Area	 Rajesh Kumar Modi
	 Bengaluru 560105		  Company Secretary
						      Membership No. F5176

	 Place : Bengaluru
	 Date : May 23, 2022.
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NOTES:
1.	� In view of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) vide its circular dated May 5, 
2020 read with circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 
2020, January 13, 2021, December 8, 2021, December 
14, 2021 and May 5, 2022 (collectively referred to as 
‘MCA Circulars’) and SEBI vide its circular dated May 12, 
2020, January 15, 2021 and May 13, 2022 (collectively 
referred to as ‘SEBI Circulars) permitted the holding of 
the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) through VC/OAVM 
facility, without the physical presence of the members 
at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) and the relevant MCA 
Circulars issued from time to time, the 40th AGM of the 
Company is being held through VC/OAVM on Thursday, 
August 18, 2022 at 11.00 a.m. (IST).

2.	� The deemed venue for the 40th AGM shall be the 
registered office of the Company, i.e., Plant 7, Plot No. 
143/A, Bommasandra Industrial Area, Jigani Link Road, 
Bengaluru 560105, Karnataka, India.

3.	� As per the provisions of clause 3.A. II. of the General 
Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, issued by the 
MCA, the matters of Special Business as appearing 
at Item Nos. 4 to 9 of the accompanying Notice, are 
considered to be unavoidable by the Board and hence, 
form part of this Notice.

4.	� A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Act, 
(“Explanatory Statement”) relating to the Special 
Businesses to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed 
hereto.

5.	� Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled 
to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a 
proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy 
need not be a member of the Company. Since this AGM 
is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/
OAVM facility, physical attendance of members has been 
dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment 
of proxies by the members will not be available for this 
AGM and hence the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and 
Route Map of AGM are not annexed to this Notice. In 
this notice, the terms member(s) or shareholder(s) are 
used interchangeably.

6.	� Institutional Investors and corporate members are 
encouraged to attend and vote at the 40th AGM of the 
Company through VC/OAVM facility.

7.	� Institutional/Corporate Shareholders (i.e., other than 
individuals/HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send certified 
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing 
body Resolution/Authorisation etc., authorising its 

representative to attend the AGM on its behalf and to 
vote through remote e-voting. The said Resolution/
Authorisation shall be sent to the Scrutiniser by e-mail 
through its registered e-mail address to pramod@
bmpandco.com with a copy marked to the RTA of the 
Company i.e., Link Intime India Private Limited at rnt.
helpdesk@linkintime.co.in. The facility of joining the 
AGM through VC /OAVM will be opened 30 minutes 
before and will remain open upto 30 minutes after the 
scheduled start time of the AGM and will be available 
for 1,000 members on a first-come first-served basis. 
This rule would however not apply to participation 
of shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding, 
promoters, institutional investors, directors, key and 
senior managerial personnel, auditors etc.

8.	� Members are requested to confirm their e-mail Id, or 
otherwise notify changes in the email Id, to RTA of the 
Company at: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

9.	� Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, 
pertaining to their name, postal address, telephone/
mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), 
mandates, nominations, power of attorney, to their 
Depository Participants (DPs) in case the shares are 
held by them in dematerialised form and to the RTA of 
the Company in case, the shares are held by them in 
physical form.

10.	� Brief details of the directors, who are seeking 
appointment/re-appointment, are annexed hereto 
as per requirements of regulation 36(3) of the Listing 
Regulations and the provisions of the Act.

11.	� The Board of Directors has recommended dividend of  
` 2.00 per equity share of the face value of ̀  2/- each for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2022 for the approval 
of shareholders at the 40th AGM.

12.	� Pursuant to the provisions of section 91 of the Act and 
regulation 42 of the Listing Regulations, the register of 
members and share transfer books of the Company 
will remain closed from August 12, 2022 to August 18, 
2022 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of payment 
of dividend.

13.	� Subject to the provisions of section 126 of the Act, 
dividend on equity shares, if declared at the AGM, will be 
credited/dispatched on or before September 09, 2022.

14.	� As per the Listing Regulations and pursuant to SEBI 
Circular dated April 20, 2018, the Company shall use any 
electronic mode of payment approved by the Reserve 
Bank of India for making payment of dividend to the 
members. Accordingly, the dividend, if declared will be 
paid through electronic mode, where the bank account 
details of the shareholders required for this purpose are 
available. Where dividend payments are made through 
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electronic mode, intimation regarding such remittance 
will be sent separately to the shareholders. Where the 
dividend cannot be paid through electronic mode, the 
same will be paid through physical instrument such as 
non-negotiable instruments/warrants/ Demand Draft 
with bank account details of such shareholders printed 
thereon.

	� Pursuant to Finance Act 2020, dividend income will be 
taxable in the hands of shareholders w.e.f. April 1, 2020, 
and the Company is required to deduct tax at source 
from dividend paid to shareholders at the prescribed 
rates. For the prescribed rates for various categories, 
the shareholders are requested to refer to the Finance 
Act, 2020 and amendments thereof. The shareholders 
are requested to update their PAN with the Company/ 
Registrar and Transfer Agent (in case of shares held 
in physical mode) and with their respective Depository 
Participants (in case of shares held in demat mode).

15.	� To ensure timely credit of dividend through electronic 
mode or physical instrument such as banker’s cheque 
or demand draft, members are requested to notify 
change of address or particulars of their bank account, 
if any, to RTA of the Company and to their respective 
depository participants.

16.	� In compliance with the MCA and SEBI Circulars, Notice 
of the Meeting along with the Annual Report for financial 
year FY 2021-22 is being sent only through electronic 
mode to those members whose email addresses are 
registered with the Company/Depositories. Members 
may note that the Notice and Annual Report for  
FY 2021-22 will also be made available on the website 
of the Company, i.e., www.sansera.in, website of the 
Stock Exchanges i.e., BSE Limited and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and 
www.nseindia.com respectively.

17.	� The business set out in the Notice will be transacted 
through electronic voting system and the Company 
is providing facility for voting by electronic means. 
Instructions and other information relating to e-voting 
are given in this Notice.

18.	� Members attending the Meeting through VC / OAVM 
shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 
quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

19.	� Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying 
Notice and the Explanatory Statement, Registers and 
all other documents will be available for inspection in 
electronic mode. Members can inspect the same by 
sending an email to the Company at rajesh.modi@
sansera.in.

20.	� Members seeking any information/desirous of 
asking any questions at the meeting with regard to 

the accounts or any other matter to be placed at the 
meeting are requested to send email to the Company 
Secretary at rajesh.modi@sansera.in at least 10 days 
prior to the meeting. The same will be replied by the 
Company suitably in the meeting.

21.	� In case of joint holders, the member whose name 
appears as the first holder in the order of names as per 
the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled 
to vote at the Meeting.

22.	� Share transfer documents and all correspondence 
relating thereto, should be addressed to the RTA of 
the Company at Link Intime India Private Limited, 
C 101, 247 Park, L. B. S. Marg, Vikhroli West, 
Mumbai - 400 083 or at their designated email id i.e.,  
rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

23.	� To prevent any fraudulent transactions, members 
are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the 
Company of any change in address or demise of any 
member as soon as possible. Members are also be 
advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for 
long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained 
from the concerned DP and holdings should be verified.

24.	� SEBI has mandated the submission of PAN by every 
participant of the securities market. Members holding 
shares in dematerialised form are, therefore, requested 
to submit their PAN to their DP with whom they are 
maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding 
shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to 
the RTA of the Company.

25.	� Pursuant to Section 124 of the Act, the amount of 
dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period 
of seven years from the due date is required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund (IEPF), constituted by the Central Government. 
The shares in respect of such unclaimed dividends are 
also liable to be transferred to the demat account of 
the IEPF authority. As on date of this AGM, there were 
no unpaid or unclaimed dividend amount which are 
required to be transferred to IEPF.

26.	� As mandated by SEBI, effective April 01, 2019 except 
in case of transmission or transposition of securities, 
requests for effecting transfer of securities shall 
not be processed unless the securities are held in 
dematerialised mode with a depository. Accordingly, 
the embers of the Company were requested to open a 
demat account and submit physical securities to their 
DPs.

27.	� As per Regulation 40(7) of the Listing Regulations, 
read with Schedule VII to the said Regulations, for 
registration of transfer of shares, the transferee(s) as 
well as transferor(s) shall mandatorily furnish copies of 
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their Income Tax PAN Card. Additionally, for securities 
market transactions and / or for off market / private 
transactions involving transfer of shares in physical 
mode for listed Companies, it shall be mandatory for the 
transferee(s) as well as transferor(s) to furnish copies 
of PAN Card to the RTA of the Company for registration 
of such transfer of shares. In case of transmission of 
shares held in physical mode, it is mandatory to furnish 
a copy of the PAN Card of the legal heir(s) / nominee(s). 
In exceptional cases, the transfer of physical shares 
is subject to the procedural formalities as prescribed 
under SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOS3/
CIR/P/2018/139 dated November 06, 2018.

28.	� Pursuant to Section 72 of the Act, members are entitled 
to make a nomination in respect of shares held by them. 
Members desirous of making a nomination, pursuant 
to the Rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debentures) Rules, 2014 are requested to send their 
requests in Form No. SH- 13, to RTA. Further, members 
desirous of cancelling/varying nomination pursuant 
to the Rule 19(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debentures) Rules, 2014, are requested to send their 
requests in Form No. SH-14, to RTA. These forms will 
be made available by RTA on request.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REGISTRATION 
OF E-MAIL ADDRESS AND BANK DETAILS ARE AS 
FOLLOWS:

i.	 Temporary Registration for Demat shareholders:

	� The members of the Company holding Equity Shares 
of the Company in Demat Form and who have not 
registered their e-mail addresses may temporarily 
get their e-mail addresses registered with Link Intime 
by clicking the link: https://linkintime.co.in/emailreg/
email_register.html in their website www.linkintime. 
co.in at the Investor Services tab by choosing the 
e-mail Registration heading and follow the registration 
process as guided therein. The members are requested 
to provide details such as Name, DP ID, Client ID/ PAN, 
mobile number and e-mail id. In case of any query, a 
member may send an e-mail to RTA. 

	� On submission of the Shareholders details an OTP 
will be received by the Shareholder which needs to be 
entered in the link for verification.

ii.	 Permanent Registration for Demat Shareholders:

	� It is clarified that for permanent registration of e-mail 
address, the members are requested to register their 
e-mail address, in respect of demat holdings with the 
respective Depository Participant (“DP”) by following 
the procedure prescribed by the DP.

iii.	� Registration of email id for Shareholders holding 
physical shares:

	� The members of the Company holding Equity Shares 
of the Company in physical Form and who have not 
registered their e-mail addresses may get their e-mail 
addresses registered with RTA, by clicking the link: 
https://linkintime.co.in/emailreg/email_register.html 
in their website www.linkintime.co.in at the Investor 
Services tab by choosing the E mail / Bank Registration 
heading and follow the registration process as guided 
therein. The members are requested to provide details 
such as Name, Folio Number, Certificate number, PAN, 
mobile number and e-mail id and also upload the image 
of share certificate in PDF or JPEG format. (upto 1 MB). 
In case of any query, a member may send an e-mail to 
RTA at rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

	� On submission of the Shareholders details an OTP 
will be received by the Shareholder which needs to be 
entered in the link for verification.

iv. �	� Registration of Bank Details for Physical 
Shareholders:

	� The members of the Company holding Equity Shares 
of the Company in physical Form and who have not 
registered their bank details can get the same registered 
with RTA by clicking the link: https://linkintime.
co.in/emailreg/email_register.html in their website  
www.linkintime.co.in at the Investor Services tab by 
choosing the E mail/Bank Registration heading and 
follow the registration process as guided therein. The 
members are requested to provide details such as Name, 
Folio Number, Certificate number, PAN, email id along 
with the copy of the cheque leaf with the first named 
Shareholders name imprinted in the face of the cheque 
leaf containing bank name and branch, type of account, 
bank account number, MICR details and IFSC code in 
PDF or JPEG format. In case of any query, a member may 
send an email to RTA at rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

	� On submission of the Shareholders details an OTP 
will be received by the Shareholder which needs to be 
entered in the link for verification.

29. �	� Information and other instructions relating to e-voting 
are as under:

I	� The remote e-voting facility will be available during the 
following period:

	 Commencement of e-voting: From 9:00 a.m. (IST) on 	
	 Monday, August 15, 2022.

	� End of e-voting: Up to 5:00 p.m. (IST) on Wednesday, 
August 17, 2022.

	� The remote e-voting will not be allowed beyond the 
aforesaid date and time and the e-voting module shall 
be disabled upon expiry of the aforesaid period.
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II.	� Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 and other 
applicable provisions of the Act and Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014, as amended and Regulation 44 of the Listing 
Regulations, MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Company is 
pleased to provide its members facility to exercise their 
right to vote on resolutions proposed to be passed in 
the meeting by electronic means.

III.	� The Company has engaged the services of Link Intime 
India Private Limited to provide remote e-voting facility 
to the members.

IV.	� Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of 
shares registered in the name of the member/beneficial 
owner (in case of electronic shareholding) as on the 
cut-off date, i.e., Thursday, August 11, 2022. A person 
who is not a member as on the cut-off date should treat 
this Notice for information purposes only.

V.	� A person, whose name is recorded in the Register 
of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners 
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date, 
only shall be entitled to avail the facility of e-voting.

VI.	� Members who are holding shares in physical form or 
who have not registered their email address with the 
Company/Depository or any person who acquires 
shares of the Company and becomes a member of the 
Company after the Notice has been sent electronically 
by the Company, and holds shares as of the cut-off date, 
such member may obtain the User ID and password by 
sending a request at rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in.

VII.	� The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed 
CS Pramod SM or failing him CS Biswajit Ghosh of 
M/s. BMP & Co., LLP, a Practicing Company Secretary 
firm, Bengaluru as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting 
process in a fair and transparent manner.

VIII.	� The Scrutinizer, after scrutinizing the votes, will, not 
later than forty-eight hours from the conclusion of 
the meeting; make a consolidated Scrutinizer’s report 
which shall be placed on the website of the Company, 
i.e., www.sansera.in. The results shall simultaneously 
be communicated to the Stock Exchanges i.e., BSE and 
NSE.

IX.	� Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the 
resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of 
the meeting, i.e., Thursday, August 18, 2022.

X.	 Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders:
	� As per the SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, 

individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode can register directly with the depository or will 
have the option of accessing various ESP portals 
directly from their demat accounts.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode is given below:

1.	� Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL

	 1.	� Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services 
website of NSDL viz... https://eservices.nsdl.com 
either on a personal computer or on a mobile. On 
the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial 
Owner” icon under “Login”” which is available under 
‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter your 
existing User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 
services under Value added services. Click on 
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click 
on Company name or e-Voting service provider 
name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be re-directed 
to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period.

	 2.	� If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, 
option to register is available at https://eservices.
nsdl.com Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” 
or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/
IdeasDirectReg.jsp

	 3.	� Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web 
browser by typing the following URL:  https://
eservices.nsdl.com either on a personal computer 
or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting 
system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 
is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A 
new screen will open. You will have to enter your 
User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit demat account 
number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After 
successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting 
page. Click on Company name or e-Voting service 
provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be 
redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period.

2.	� Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL

	 1.	� Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, 
can login through their user id and password. 
Option  will be made available to reach e-Voting 
page without any further authentication. The URL 
for users to login to Easi / Easiest are  https://
web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login  or  www.
cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.
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	 2.	� After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user 
will be able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu 
will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. 
LINKINTIME. Click on LINKINTIME and you will be 
redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period.

	 3.	� If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option 
to register is available at  https://web.cdslindia.
com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration.

	 4.	� Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting 
page by providing demat account number and PAN 
No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. 
The system will authenticate the user by sending 
OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 
demat Account. After successful authentication, 
user will be provided links for the respective ESP 
i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on LINKINTIME and you will 
be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

3.	� Individual Shareholders (holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their depository participants 
You can also login using the login credentials of your 
demat account through your Depository Participant 
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon 
logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click 
on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein 
you can see e-Voting feature. Click on Company name 
or e-Voting service provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and 
you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in physical form is given below:

Individual Shareholders of the Company, holding shares in 
physical form as on the cut-off date for e-voting may register 
for e-Voting facility of Link Intime as under:

1.	� Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://
instavote.linkintime.co.in

2.	� Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and 
register with your following details: -

	 A. 	� User ID: Shareholders holding shares in physical 
form shall provide Event No + Folio Number 
registered with the Company.

	 B. 	 �PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) (Shareholders who have not 
updated their PAN with the Depository Participant 
(DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number 
provided to you, if applicable.

	 C. 	� DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of 
Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with your DP / 
Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format)

	 D. 	� Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account 
Number (last four digits), as recorded with your 
DP/Company.

*Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form 
but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall provide their Folio 
number in ‘D’ above

 	� Set the password of your choice (The password should 
contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special 
Character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one 
alphabet and at least one capital letter).

	 Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated).

3.	 Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab.

4.	� Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification 
(CAPTCHA) Code and click on ‘Submit’.

Cast your vote electronically:

1.	� After successful login, you will be able to see the 
notification for e-voting. Select ‘View’ icon.

2.	 E-voting page will appear.

3.	� Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by 
selecting your desired option ‘Favour / Against’ (If you 
wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the 
‘View Resolution’ file link).

4.	� After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, 
click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation box will be displayed. 
If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to 
change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify 
your vote.

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders:

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, 
NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on the e-voting 
system of LIIPL at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and 
register themselves as ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate 
Body’. They are also required to upload a scanned certified 
true copy of the board resolution /authority letter/power of 
attorney etc. together with attested specimen signature of 
the duly authorised representative(s) in PDF format in the 
‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’ login for the 
Scrutinizer to verify the same.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders:

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact 
Link Intime INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a request at 
enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000.
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Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak during 
the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:
1.	� Shareholders who would like to speak during the 

meeting must register their request upto August 09, 
2022 (5.00 pm IST) with the Company on the email id  
rajesh.modi@sansera.in .

2.	� Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first 
basis depending upon the provision made by the client.

3.	� Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once 
they mark attendance for the meeting.

4.	� Other shareholder may ask questions to the panelist, via 
active chat-board during the meeting.

5.	� Please remember speaking serial number and start 
your conversation with panelist by switching on video 
mode and audio of your device.

�Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator 
of the meeting/ management will announce the name and 
serial number for speaking.

�Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Vote during 
the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:
Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/ 
moderator during the meeting, shareholders/ members who 
have not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting 
can cast the vote as under:

1.	� On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for 
e-Voting “Cast your vote”

2.	� Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. 
and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ 
registered email Id) received during registration for 
InstaMEET and click on ‘Submit’.

3.	� After successful login, you will see “Resolution 
Description” and against the same the option “Favour/ 
Against” for voting.

4.	� Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. 
“Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of 
shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off 
date under ‘Favour/Against’.

5.	� After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/
Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click 
on “Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you 
wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to 

change your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly 
modify your vote.

6.	� Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you 
will not be allowed to modify or change your vote 
subsequently.

Note: Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the 
Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and have 
not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote 
e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 
eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting. 
Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote 
e-Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting will be eligible 
to attend/ participate in the Annual General Meeting through 
InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again 
during the meeting.

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting 
through Tablets/ Laptops connected through broadband for 
better experience.

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a 
good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to avoid 
any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from 
Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting 
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to 
fluctuation in their network. It is therefore recommended to 
use stable Wi-FI or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of 
aforesaid glitches.

In case Shareholders/ Members have any queries regarding 
login/ e-voting, they may send an email to instameet@
linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022-49186175.

Guidelines to attend the AGM proceedings of Link 
Intime India Private Limited: InstaMEET
For a smooth experience of viewing the AGM proceedings of 
Link Intime India Private Limited InstaMEET, Shareholders/ 
Members who are registered as speakers for the event are 
requested to download and install the Webex application in 
advance by following the instructions as under:

a)	� Please download and install the Webex application 
by clicking on the link https://www.webex.com/
downloads.html/

	� https://meetingsapac30.webex.com/webappng/sites/
meetingsapac30/dashboard?siteurl=meetingsapac30
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Step 
1

Enter your First Name, Last Name and Email ID and click on Join Now.

 1 (A) If you have already installed the Webex application on your device, join the meeting by clicking on Join Now
 1 (B) If Webex application is not installed, a new page will appear giving you an option to either Add Webex to chrome or Run 

a temporary application.

Click on Run a temporary application, an exe file will be downloaded. Click on this exe file to run the application and join 
the meeting by clicking on Join Now

or

b)	� If you do not want to download and install the Webex application, you may join the meeting by following the process 
mentioned as under:
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In case shareholders/members have any queries regarding 
login, they may send an e-mail to instameet@linkintime.co.in 
or contact on: - Tel: 022-49186175.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO. 
4 TO 9 ARE GIVEN HEREUNDER AND THE SAME FORMING 
PART OF THE NOTICE.

ITEM NO. 4:
As disclosed in the offer documents i.e., DRHP dated June 
09, 2021, RHP dated September 6, 2021 and Prospectus 
dated September 17, 2021, filed with SEBI / stock exchanges 
during IPO of the Company, certain articles of Articles of 
Association of the Company relating to (i) right of Client 
Ebene Limited (CEL or Investor 1) to appoint one nominee 
director on the Board of Company, (ii) right of Promoters to 
appoint two directors on the Board of Company and (iii) the 
right of Promoters to receive upside sharing from Investors 
(Client Ebene Limited and CVCIGP II Employee Ebene 
Limited) shall be subject to receipt of shareholders’ approval 
by way of a special resolution, post listing of equity shares 
on the recognised stock exchanges pursuant to the IPO of 
the Company.

As the equity shares of the Company have been listed 
on recognised stock exchange in India on September 24, 
2021, therefore, the Board recommends approval of Articles 
43(f), 43(g) of Part A and Article 18.3 along with associated 
definitions under Article 2.1 of Part B of the Articles of 
Association, as reproduced in the resolution accompanying 
this notice to the Shareholders for their approval as a Special 
Resolution.

Save and except, Mr. S Sekhar Vasan, Mr. F R Singhvi and 
Mr. Raunak Gupta and their relatives (to the extent of their 
shareholding in the Company), none of the other Directors, 
key managerial personnel and relatives of Directors and/or 
key managerial personnel (as defined in the Companies Act, 
2013) are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in the proposed resolution set out at item no. 4 of 
the notice except to the extent of their shareholding in the 
Company.

ITEM NO. 5: APPOINTMENT OF MR. SAMIR 
PURUSHOTTAM INAMDAR AS INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
Based on recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee (NRC), the Board of Directors appointed Mr. Samir 
Purushottam Inamdar (DIN: 00481968.), having Registration 
No. IDDB-DI-202201-040536 of Director in Independent 
Director’s Data Bank as an Additional Independent Director 
of the Company at its meeting held on May 23, 2022 whose 
office shall not be liable to retire by rotation, and to hold office 
for a period/ term of five (5) years i.e. from May 23, 2022 up 
to May 22, 2027 (both days inclusive) subject to approval of 
the members.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of Association 
of the Company, Mr. Samir Purushottam Inamdar shall 
hold office up to the date of this AGM and is eligible to be 
appointed as a Director. The resolution seeks the approval 
of members for the appointment of Mr. Samir Purushottam 
Inamdar as an independent director of the Company 
including fixed commission of ` 12 Lacs per annum payable 
to him up to May 22, 2027 plus sitting fees for attending the 
Board and Committee meetings during his tenure as Non-
Executive Independent Directors of the Company as may 
be determined by the Board from time to time, pursuant 
to Section 197, 198 read with Schedule V of Act alongwith 
other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof) and his office shall not be liable to 
retire by rotation. The Company has, in terms of Section 
160(1) of the Act, received in writing a notice from member, 
proposing his candidature for the office of Director.

Mr. Samir Purushottam Inamdar has given his declaration 
to the Board that he meets the criteria of independence as 
provided under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)
(b) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (“Listing Regulations”), is not restrained from acting 
as a Director by virtue of any Order passed by SEBI or any 
such authority and is eligible to be appointed as a Director in 
terms of Section 164 of the Act. In terms of Regulation 25(8) 
of SEBI Listing Regulations, he has confirmed that he is not 
aware of any circumstances or situation which exists or may 
be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact his 
ability to discharge his duties. He has also given his consent 
to act as an Independent Director of the Company.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Samir Purushottam Inamdar 
is a person of integrity, possesses the relevant expertise / 
experience and fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and 
the Listing Regulations for appointment as an Independent 
Director of the Company.

Given his skills and experience, and upon recommendation 
of NRC, the Board considers it desirable and in the interest 
of the Company to have Mr. Samir Purushottam Inamdar 
on the Board of the Company and accordingly the Board 
recommends the appointment of Mr. Samir Purushottam 
Inamdar as an Independent Director including payment of 
fixed commission of ` 12 Lacs per annum as proposed in the 
resolution set out at Item No. 5 for approval by the members 
by way of Special Resolution.

Director setting out the terms and conditions of appointment 
would be available for inspection by the members, by writing 
an email to the Company at rajesh.modi@sansera.in

The additional information required under Regulation 36 of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and applicable Secretarial Standards is 
annexed as Annexure-I.
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Except Mr. Samir Purushottam Inamdar and/or his relatives, 
no other Director, Key Managerial Personnel or their 
respective relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

ITEM NOS. 6 and 7: RATIFICATION OF SANSERA 
ENGINEERING LIMITED EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION 
PLAN 2018 TO ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY 
INCLUDING EMPLOYEES OF ITS SUBSIDIARIES.
The Company had introduced Sansera Engineering Limited 
– Employee Stock Option Plan 2018 (ESOP 2018) to attract, 
retain, incentivize and motivate the Company’s employees 
and employees of its subsidiaries vide special resolution 
passed by members of the Company on August 31, 2021 
prior to listing of its equity shares on BSE Limited and 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

In terms of Regulation 12(1) of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 
Equity) Regulations, 2021 (“SEBI SBEBSE Regulations”), no 
Company shall make any fresh grant of employee stock 
options which involves allotment or transfer of shares to 
its employees under any scheme formulated prior to its 
Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) and prior to the listing of its 
equity shares (“Pre- IPO Scheme”) unless (i) such Pre IPO 
Scheme is in conformity with the SEBI SBEBSE Regulations; 
and (ii) such Pre IPO Scheme is ratified by its shareholders 
subsequent to the IPO. Further, as per proviso to Regulations 
12(1) of SEBI SBEB Regulations, the ratification under clause 
(ii) may be done any time prior to grant of new options under 
such Pre - IPO Schemes.

Considering that the Company came out with an IPO of its 
equity shares and got listed on the BSE Limited and the 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited. on September 24, 
2021, the Company’s ESOP 2018 is required to be ratified by 
the Shareholders of the Company in terms of the Regulations 
12(1) of the SEBI SBEBSE Regulations, for making any fresh 
grants under ESOP 2018 to its employees and employees 
of its subsidiaries. Accordingly, the same is referred to the 
Shareholders for their ratification in terms Regulations 
12(1) and other applicable provisions of the SEBI SBEBSE 
Regulations.

The ESOP 2018 is in conformity with the SEBI SBEBSE 
Regulations and the Company has not granted any fresh 
grant of options to employees after IPO of the Company. 
However, prior to listing, the Company had granted 8,08,327 
options to eligible employees including employees of 
subsidiaries which shall be vested over a period of 4 years 
i.e., 25% in each year as per ESOP 2018 plan. The same was 
disclosed by the Company in the basis of allotment filed with 
SEBI/ stock exchanges prior to listing.

However, no amendment to the ESOP 2018 will invalidate 
any of the act already undertaken or decision already 
implemented by the NRC / Board prior to this ratification.

The salient features of the ESOP 2018 pursuant to Section 
62(1)(b) of the. Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of 
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and 
SEBI SBEBSE Regulations and SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/
POLICY/CELL/2/2015 dated June 16, 2015 (as amended 
from time to time) are as under:

a)	 Brief description of ESOP 2018
	� The ESOP 2018 has been implemented to provide means 

to enable the Company and its subsidiaries (if any) to 
attract, retain and reward appropriate human intellect in 
its employment and its subsidiaries, respectively.

	� After vesting of options, the Eligible Employees earn 
a right, but not an obligation, to exercise the vested 
options within the exercise period and subscribe to 
equity shares of the Company subject to compliance 
with the requirements of the ESOP 2018, including 
payment of exercise price and satisfaction of any tax 
obligation arising thereon.

b)	 Total number of stock options to be granted
	� The Nomination and Remuneration Committee may 

from time-to-time Grant Options to one or more 
Employee(s) of the Company including employee(s) of 
its subsidiary(ies), which may include recurring Options 
to the same Employee. The aggregate number of Shares 
underlying an Option that may be granted under the Plan 
shall be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and shall not exceed such number of 
options which represents 2.50% shareholding in the 
Company on a fully diluted basis which is coming out 
to be 13,47,213 options. Each option when exercised 
would be converted into one equity share of ` 2 (Indian 
Rupees Two) each fully paid-up.

	� The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was 
entitled to grant up to 60% of the aforesaid options post 
filing of the Prospectus with Registrar of Companies, 
Karnataka, located at Bangalore and prior to listing of 
the Company on the stock exchanges, pursuant to the 
IPO. The balance options shall be reserved for future 
and shall be granted from time-to-time post completion 
of the IPO.

	� If there is a ‘Change in the Capital Structure of the 
Company’ before the Options Granted under this 
Plan are exercised, the Employee shall be entitled on 
Exercise of the Options, to such number of Resultant 
Shares to which he would have been entitled as if all 
the outstanding Options exercised by him, had been 
exercised before such ‘Change in the Capital Structure” 
had taken place and the rights under the Options shall 
stand correspondingly adjusted.

	� If any Option granted under the Plan lapses, expires, is 
forfeited or cancelled or becomes un-exercisable due to 
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upon the market price of the equity shares as on the 
date of sale of equity shares arising out of exercise of 
options.

l)	� Whether the ESOP 2018 is to be implemented and 
administered directly or through a trust

	� The ESOP 2018 shall be implemented and administered 
directly by the Company, under the superintendence of 
the NRC. However, the Board or the NRC has the power 
to create a trust, subject to requisite approval.

m)	� Whether the ESOP 2018 involves new issue of 
equity shares or secondary acquisition of equity 
shares or both

	� The ESOP 2018 contemplates issue of fresh equity 
shares by the Company on exercise of options.

n)	 Lock-in Period

	� The equity shares arising out of exercise of vested 
options shall not be subject to any lock-in period from 
the date of allotment of such equity shares under the 
ESOP 2018, provided that the sale or transfer of equity 
shares allotted on such exercise will be subject to the 
provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (as 
amended from time to time) and the Code of Conduct 
to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Designated 
Persons of the Company framed thereunder, to the 
extent applicable.

o)	 Transferability of Stock Options

	� The options granted to an employee shall not be 
transferable to any person and shall not be pledged, 
hypothecated, mortgaged or otherwise alienated in any 
manner.

	� However, in the event of the death of the employee while 
in employment, all the stock options granted to him/her 
till such date shall forthwith vest in his/her designated 
nominee or nominees (who may be named contingently 
or successively), or such employee’s legal heir, and can 
be exercisable by them within the time period as may be 
prescribed under the ESOP 2018.

p)	� Amount of loan to be provided for implementation 
of the scheme(s) by the Company to the trust, its 
tenure, utilisation, repayment terms, etc.

	� This is currently not contemplated under the present 
ESOP 2018.

q)	� Maximum percentage of secondary acquisition 
that can be made by the trust for purposes of the 
ESOP 2018

	 Not applicable

r)	 Accounting and Disclosure Policies
	� The Company shall follow the IND AS 102 on Share 

based Payments and/ or any relevant Accounting 
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the 
Accounting Standards prescribed by the Central 
Government in terms of section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (18 of 2013) including any ‘Guidance Note 
on Accounting for employee share based Payments’ 
issued in that regard from time to time.

s)	 Method of option valuation
	� The Company shall use the fair value method or such 

valuation method as may be prescribed from time to 
time in accordance with applicable laws for valuation 
of the Stock Options granted, to calculate the employee 
compensation cost.

t)	�� Variation of terms of Scheme
	� Subject to compliance with the requirements of the 

Companies Act and SEBI SBEB Regulations, to the 
extent applicable, and other applicable laws, the 
Company may, from time to time, amend or vary the 
Scheme or any terms and conditions in the Scheme 
or alter any options granted in such respects as the 
NRC may deem necessary or desirable, provided that 
approval of the shareholders of the Company is taken 
by way of a special resolution in a general meeting for 
effecting such change, if such approval is required under 
applicable law and such change is not detrimental or 
prejudicial to the interests of the grantees, provided that 
the Company shall be entitled to vary the terms of the 
Scheme to meet any regulatory requirements.

u)	 Declaration
	� The Company will use fair value method for option 

valuation and therefore declaration regarding disclosure 
for difference between the employee compensation cost 
based on intrinsic value and fair value is not applicable.

v)	 Certificate from the Secretarial Auditor
	� The Board of Directors shall at each annual general 

meeting place before the members a certificate 
from the Secretarial Auditor of the Company that the 
Scheme(s) has been implemented in accordance with 
the prescribed regulations and in accordance with the 
resolution of the Company in the general meeting.

w)	 Rights of the option holder
	� The option holder shall not have right to receive any 

dividend or to vote or in any manner enjoy the benefits 
of a shareholder in respect of option granted to him/
her, till equity shares are allotted upon exercise of such 
option.
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x)	� Terms & conditions for buyback, if any, of specified 
securities covered under these regulations.

The procedure for buy-back of specified securities issued 
under these regulations, if to be undertaken at any time 
by the Company, and the applicable terms and conditions, 
including:

(i)	 permissible sources of financing for buy-back;

(ii)	� any minimum financial thresholds to be maintained by 
the Company as per its last financial statements; and

(iii)	� limits upon quantum of specified securities that the 
Company may buy-back in a financial year.

No amendment to the ESOP 2018 as aforesaid will invalidate 
any of the act already undertaken or decision already 
implemented by the NRC / Board prior to this notice. The 
copies of the related documents will be open for inspection 
by the members through electronic mode on all working 
days, during business hours up to the date of meeting.

The Board recommends the resolutions set out at Item Nos. 
6 and 7 of the accompanying notice for your approval as 
special resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel, except to 
the extent of options granted to them / shares held by them, 
of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, concerned 
or interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolutions.

ITEM NO. 8: RATIFICATION OF FEE PAYABLE TO COST 
AUDITORS

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to 
time, the Company is required to have audit of its cost records 
by the Cost Accountant. Based on the recommendation of 
the Audit Committee, the Board at its meeting held on May 
23, 2022, approved the appointment of M/s. Rao, Murthy 
and Associates, Bengaluru (having Firm Registration No. 
000065), as the Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct 
audit of cost records maintained by the Company, pertaining 
to the relevant products prescribed under the Companies 
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, for the financial year 
2022-23 at a remuneration not exceeding ` 3,00,000/- 
(Rupees Three Lacs Only) plus applicable taxes, out-of-
pocket and other expenses.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act 
read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, ratification for 
the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors to audit the 
cost records of the Company for the said financial year by 
way of an Ordinary Resolution is being sought from the 
members as set out at Item No. 8 of the Notice.

M/s. Rao, Murthy and Associates have furnished a certificate 
dated April 28, 2022 regarding their eligibility for appointment 
as Cost Auditors of the Company. They have vast experience 
in the field of cost audit and have conducted the audit of the 
cost records of the Company for previous years under the 
provisions of the Act.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out 
at Item No. 8 of the Notice for approval by the members. 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their 
relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially 
or otherwise, in the said resolution.

ITEM NO. 9: CREATION OF CHARGE ON ASSETS OF THE 
COMPANY

In connection with the loan/credit facilities to be availed by 
the Company, as and when required, through various sources 
for business purposes, the Company might be required to 
create charges over its assets, properties and licenses by 
way of hypothecation, mortgage, lien, pledge etc. in favour 
of its lenders for an amount not exceeding ` 1200.00 Cr. 
(Rupees One Thousand two Hundred Crores Only) for the 
purposes of securing the loan/credit facilities extended by 
them to the Company. Presently, the current limit previously 
approved by the shareholders is ` 1,000 Cr. (Rupees One 
Thousand Crores Only). Further, upon occurrence of default 
under the relevant Loan/facility agreements and other 
documents as may be executed by the Company with the 
lenders, the lenders would have certain rights in respect of 
the Company’s assets, properties and licenses including 
the rights of sale/disposal thereof, creation of charge/s as 
aforesaid and enforcement of assets by the Company’s 
lenders upon occurrence of default would amount to a 
sale/disposal of the whole or substantially the whole of the 
undertaking of the Company, pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, 
the Board recommends the Special Resolution set forth in 
Item No.9 of the Notice for approval of the members.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their 
relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially 
or otherwise, in the said resolution.

Registered Office: 			   By Order of the Board
Plant 7, No. 143/A, 			   Sansera Engineering Limited
Jigani Link Road, 			   Sd/-
Bommasandra Industrial Area	 Rajesh Kumar Modi
Bengaluru 560105			   Company Secretary
						      Membership No. F5176

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 23, 2022.



SANSERA ENGINEERING LIMITED

Corporate  
Overview

Statutory  
Reports

Financial  
Statements

238

ANNEXURE-I

Additional information of Director seeking appointment/ re-appointment as required under Regulation 36(3) of the 
Listing Regulation, 2015 and applicable Secretarial Standards:

Name of the Director Mr. Fatheraj Singhvi Mr. Samir Purushottam Inamdar
DIN 00233146 00481968

Date of Birth (Age)  March 15, 1955 (67 years)  July 30, 1958 (64 years)

Nationality Indian Indian

Date of First Appointment on the 
Board

March 3, 1991, vacated office on June 
11, 2018 and again appointed as 
Managing Director on August 6, 2019 
for period of 5 years.

May 23, 2022

Brief Resume & Experience Mr. Fatheraj Singhvi is the Joint 
Managing Director of the Company. 
He is currently the chairman of Pillar 
3 of ACMA overseeing the activities 
of ACT, ASDC, HR, YBLF. He has over 
39 years of professional experience. 
He is a chartered accountant and is a 
member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. He was a partner 
at of M/s. Singhvi, Dev & Unni from 
1981 to 2006. He manages the Artificial 
Limb’s Centre and Dialysis Centre for 
Karnataka Marwari Youth Federation 
since 1982.

Mr. Samir Inamdar has over 4 decades of 
experience in industry; former President & CEO 
of GE Consumer & Industrial, South Asia; former 
MD & CEO of Tyco Electronics, South Asia. He 
was part of the automotive industry for over 
15 years with Maruti and with Tata Motors. 
He currently is the Co-founder, MD & CEO of a 
fund management Company which manages 
PE funds. Mr. Inamdar is a member of the 
Global Advisory Board of MAP, a Zurich based 
management consultancy firm. He is also a 
Global Mentor with the Unreasonable Group, 
USA. He is a board member on Sigma Electric 
Mfg. Co., a $350+ mill US-PE owned leader in 
aluminium castings and precision machining for 
Power T&D, Appliances markets in the US.

Expertise in specific functional area Finance, Audit and Strategic matters. Business Strategy, M&A, General Management, 
PE & VC investing

Qualification Fellow member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

Bachelor of Engineering (Mechanical) from 
Mumbai University and Post Graduate Diploma 
in Management (MBA) from Indian Institute of 
Management (“IIM”), Calcutta.

No. of Board Meetings attended 
during the financial year 2021-22 
as a Director.

 9 -

Terms and conditions of 
appointment

As per the Ordinary Resolution passed 
by the shareholders at 37th AGM of the 
Company held on September 27, 2019 
and duly amended by the shareholders 
at 39th AGM of the Company held on 
June 02, 2021.

As per the Special Resolution set forth at item no. 
5 of this notice, read with explanatory statement 
thereto.

Directorships held in other Public 
Companies alongwith listed 
companies from which the person 
has resigned in the past three years

Nil Nil
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Name of the Director Mr. Fatheraj Singhvi Mr. Samir Purushottam Inamdar
Memberships / Chairmanships 
of Committees of other Public 
Companies alongwith listed 
companies from which the person 
has resigned in the past three 
years.

(includes only Audit Committee 
and Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee)

Nil Nil

Number of shares held in the 
Company, including shareholding 
as a beneficial owner

27,95,549 Nil

Remuneration last drawn 
(excluding sitting fees)

` 14.89 mn Nil

Remuneration sought to be paid - -

Relationships between Directors 
inter-se

Nil Nil

Occupation Business Employed



Notes
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